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FERITEEAERA A
CITIC Bank International Limited

FERTERERAA(THFERITERIRIA
THDAPGEReRERERAA(THEHE
2N E2ENBLAR PERITRAERQ A
FEOMTEHMIRTOANFEREE£7032% %
29.68% Y fE 2% ©

RITHEZEBRARPERBHAEFRASTR
AEEE SMEEENERBRRITHEER
FAEABEMREFHMENGH KF RRAEERS
BRAKFREINEFIBEEPERT]

TERITERBZEEMATE BEFTBD
ZS+EITARILERE EB RIIREPI S
Bolbtih RITEYRAN BEBRFNERE
BHDT-BEARER T AITIBaa2l NIiEEFF
A MEEBBBRAFRIBBB+]

CITIC Bank International Limited (“CBI” or “the Bank”) is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited (“CIFH"), which in turn is 70.32%-owned by
China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and 29.68%-owned by
Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. (“BBVA”) of Spain.

By providing value-creating financial solutions to define
and exceed both the wealth management and international
business objectives of our Greater China and overseas
customers, the Bank aspires to be the “China Bank of Choice”,
with the best international standards and capabilities.

The Bank’s footprint in Greater China includes 30 branches
in Hong Kong, as well as branches and presence in Beijing,
Shanghai, Shenzhen and Macau. The Bank also has overseas
branches in New York, Los Angeles and Singapore. The Bank
is rated “Baa2” by Moody'’s Investors Service and “BBB+" by
Fitch Ratings.
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RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

7= = Our Vision

REENPEIRIT
The China Bank of Choice

{Fap Our Mission

BPEAERFERDIMREERNBED  KAKE
REAEFPIEENFTERIT]

BERMPETETENRIDER - A A ERE A KB
BMUARNEFRSETEMNRA BERRMLARR &
FMETAIEEE-

BPWETERFES ERASES BEEBEW #EA
DERKRKLE -

To be the China Financial Solutions Provider of Choice for
institutional and personal customers who aspire to realise the
growth potential in Asia.

We focus on value creation for our stakeholders. Core to
our offering is our intimate knowledge of and our network
capability in China, coupled with our customer-centric
execution of world-class quality.

Nurturing of talent, team spirit and sharing of ownership and
success are a key competitive advantage of ours.



ZIMEE

LERE

#i S 3 B
%

il
it
o4

=l

Hoi
i3
[

i
i

& A

0%
i

S

Our Core Values
Customer-Centric

Progressive

Execution

Value Creating

Building People, Building Team
Integrity
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Financial Performance

2010 Financial Highlights

o, B
2F(BEART) For the year (HK$ million) 2010 2009 % ?;w?]ge
F B A Net interest income 1,813 1937 64
FER B A Non-interest income 1,193 1257 51
P ] Operating expenses (1,452) (1,595) -89
EREEBFTREEIE Impairment losses on loans and advances (262) (559) -53.1
A & K Profit before taxation 1,160 1,120 +36
FiT 15 ¢ Income tax (103) (167) 383
A% R & 15 5 Profit attributable to shareholders 1,057 953 +10.9
REZB(BE®E T At year end (HK$ million) 2010 2009 % change
O EE N Loans and advances 88,818 73,251 +213
BE®RE Total assets 148,209 120,123 +234
T S48 FE Total deposits 120,451 97,935 +230
A% B RE 2 Shareholders’ equity 13,352 12,231 492
B 3% b & Financial ratios 2010 2009
BEARAFTRBILE Capital adequacy 19.0% 16.4%
EEVFHRBPERL X Average liquidity 44.7% 48.8%

BEfFt=E Loans to deposits 73.7% 74.8%
B 7S 3 U b Cost to income 48.3% 49.9%
HRERITEIRERA A

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



RS (BBHBT)

Shareholders’ equity (HK$ million)

BEERE (B8B#ERT)

Total assets (HKS million)

REREMGET (BEET)

Profit attributable to shareholders (HKS million)

09 953 09 120,123 09 12,231
o8 128 08 121,810 08 9,531
07 106 07 110,783 07 9,638
06 9218 06 89,672 06 7,282
EEBMBEHER Five Year Financial Summary
2HEL£E(GEB ) Fortheyear (HKS million) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
A B KA Net interest income 1,813 1,937 1,546 1,400 1,061
JER B WA (EE)  Non-interest income/(1oss) 1,193 1,257 302 % 91)* 1,243
e Operating expenses (1,452) (1,595) (1,325) (1,179) (1,094)
EXRBTREEE  Imparmentlosses on loans and advances (262) (559) (383) (72) (54)
5 A Y A Profit before taxation 1,160 1,120 164 106 1,109
FiRCY Income tax (103) (167) (36) 0.04 (191)
PR 3R FE 15 i A Profit attributable to shareholders 1,057 953 128 106 918
* EREABMERETA * Including net loss and write-down on SIVs

B F B R i E

(2008 : 7.18 {B/&7T) (2008: HK$718 million)

(2007 : 13.11 {8%7T) (2007: HK$1,311 million)
RELB(EEHBT) Atyearend (HKS million) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
BERRBK Loans and advances 88,818 73,251 74,231 67,357 51,177
N RERE X ] Impairment allowance 658 624 485 294 330
BEEHRE Total assets 148,209 120,123 121,810 110,783 89,672
15 F B %5 & E 42 {8 Average interest earnings assets 131,337 112,709 103,461 90,589 72,281
TR ERE Total deposits 120,451 97,935 99,454 90,881 73,223
LER: En Shareholders’ equity 13,352 12,231 9,531 9,638 7,282
Bt # b = Financial ratios 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
EARF R X Capital adequacy 19.0% 16.4% 14.7% 15.8% 16.8%
2EFHRHE S b X Average liquidity 44.7% 48.8% 37.0% 40.8% 40.4%
EFLX Loans to deposits 73.7% 74.8% 74.6% 74.1% 69.9%
EFHEEBELE  Loanstototal assets 59.9% 61.0% 60.9% 60.8% 57.1%
GATEEEL X Collective assessment coverage 0.4% 0.4% 0.3% 0.3% 0.5%
BNl PN = Cost to income 48.3% 49.9% 71.7% 90.1% 47.5%
B ER R R Return on assets 0.8% 0.8% 0.1% 0.1% 1.1%
[i% 2R % 5 [0 33 =R Return on shareholders’ equity 8.2% 8.7% 13% 1.3% 12.9%

—E-TEFR
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Financial Performance

TR Deposits*
1. ZERE D By type 2010 2009
£ 2k Current 13.0% 16.3%
G Savings 21.6% 27.0%
£ 8 Fixed 65.4% 56.7%
& &t Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. ZEHAEES By maturity 2010 2009
BB 5 8 On demand 34.6% 433%
L3 1E A Less than 3 months 56.1% 41.8%
H@IEAESEF Over 3 months but less than 1 year 6.2% 13.8%
BB1TFBRENRSF Over 1 year but less than 5 years 3.1% 1.1%
At Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. BRE®E S By currency 2010 2009
78 TT HKD 61.1% 61.2%
ETT usD 22.2% 27.4%
H Others 16.7% 11.4%
At Total 100.0% 100.0%
4, FRERE®E Number of deposit accounts 2010 2009
253,795 247,546

* AP RAER

47.8% BERDMH
Total Deposits
Breakdown
30% 5.8%
FIERITEEERDA

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

¥ Based on customer deposits only

43.4%

TERITE
Retail Banking Group

7
Certificates of Deposit

EHth
Others

BEERITER
Wholesale Banking Group

58.0%

353%

Total Loans
Breakdown

6.7%
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Financial Performance

EX Loan Portfolio
1 RIT¥&8 D By industry sectors 2010 2009
BAREENEXR Loans and advances for use in Hong Kong
Tk i Industrial, commercial and financial:
e Property development 0.4% 0.4%
MERE Property investment 13.0% 12.8%
% @ R Financial concerns 4.9% 6.1%
RELLRL Stockbrokers 0.2% 0.0%
HELREEEZEH Wholesale and retail trade 10.4% 5.2%
RUE Manufacturing 10.7% 7.2%
EHENEBRE Transport and transport equipment 3.3% 4.0%
S ) Recreational activities 0.3% 0.3%
BAR Information technology 0.0% 0.0%
H A Others 3.0% 3.4%
A : \ Individuals:
BEIEEBHEEZ] Loans for the purchase of flats under the Home
[FAANEBEREEB2ERE Ownership Scheme, Private Sector Participation
eI M HEBEHE Scheme and Tenants Purchase Scheme
5T & EJE = %/\ 1% 1%
tEEFINE ‘ 0.1% 0.1%
BEHEMATEMENER Loans for the purchase of other residential properties  12.2% 14.8%
ERAEEE Credit card advances 0.3% 0.4%
Hl Others 5.0% 5.0%
goRE Trade finance 8.3% 4.7%
BAREB AN T B ER KB Loans and advances for use outside Hong Kong 27.9% 35.6%
BF Total 100.0% 100.0%
2. ZihE 5 82 By geographical spread 2010 2009
B Hong Kong 67.5% 70.3%
F B A b Mainland China 22.1% 17.2%
x USA 2.0% 24%
Hth Others 8.4% 10.1%
&5t Total 100.0% 100.0%
3. REHED By maturity 2010 2009
Bl 8 12 Repayable on demand 1.7% 1.8%
LR E Less than 1 year 38.3% 25.8%
BEI1FELNF Over 1 year but less than 5 years 35.0% 44.6%
HE A5 F Over 5 years 23.5% 26.6%
EmETHH Undated 1.5% 1.2%
& &t Total 100.0% 100.0%
4 BRERE D By currency 2010 2009
BT HKD 61.4% 71.5%
ETT usb 35.6% 24.7%
Hth Others 3.0% 3.8%
&5t Total 100.0% 100.0%
5 EXEREHEAE Number of loan accounts 2010 2009
316,087 306,562
—E-TEEH

Annual Report 2010
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Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen
Chief Executive Officer

KREFR

“E-TERBLBEEABRER EET
&Hxﬁi%ﬁ%ﬁ&%‘ﬁfléﬁtﬁ’ﬁaiﬁ—l—

ZF‘?I%L@MLLJ@JE'Jﬂﬁj‘Eméi}%Z}K
THEEERE BERFERRER E
EZEHERREKTF UREBRFARE
EBEPRABREBRRABER TREER -
MREARTRANEBNNRLERE -

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

TRERITEERE= TERER
1THRERTT E’\JSE%&%%Q%E THY 1
57 RRELENEBETEET
RILEEHS "
“With the support from parent bank,
China CITIC Bank, and the continuous
effort of all staff members, CITIC Bank
International delivered a historical high

profit attributable to shareholders at
over HKS1 billion in 2010.”

Operating Environment

Hong Kong's economy continued to gain traction in 2010 with
an apparent improvement in investment and consumption
sentiment of the public buoyed by the stock and property
market rallies as well as salary rises. An escalation in deposit
competition among banks raised the cost of funding and
narrowed net interest margins, but stronger growth in the loan
book was registered and credit quality has also stood in good
shape. The development of offshore RMB business in Hong
Kong took a leap forward during the year under the Chinese
central government’s further liberalisation policy, and all these
positive factors contributed to a more benign operating
environment for banks in Hong Kong.
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1. BERAE 2.
BETHHEHRV R ARG
Mr. Archie Tsim
Alternate Chief Executive Officer &
Director of Finance & Corporate
Planning

5. EBELE 6.
BTG - BEEMmFR
BB IRT TR 4EES
Mr. Roy Huang
Alternate Chief Executive Officer
General Counsel &
Head of International Banking Group

9. MRI-%K&E 10.

HEHARGESHES
Mr.CY Ling

Director of Special Projects &
Corporate Services

Bzt
PEEBRITELIE

Ms. Margaret Man
Executive General Manager
China Banking Group

BERLE

b ERAE

Mr. Jaime Azcoiti Leyva
Director of Risks

BRER L
AE
Mr. Woody Chan

Treasurer

11.

ERAE

BEITHRAHEGR
REIRTTEB NI THRA R

Mr. Nick Huang

Alternate Chief Executive Officer &
Executive General Manager
Wholesale Banking Group

THERE
ANERRTRIEE
Mr. John Lee
Executive Vice President
Human Resources Group

EEREE
WisRE

Mr. Steve Wong
Chief Financial Officer

12.

IFxX¥urt
TERITEBRITRLIE
Ms. Phoebe Wong
Executive General Manager
Retail Banking Group

BEBEE

EHE N AFBHTRIE R
Mr. Edmund Poon
Executive Vice President
Operations & Technology Group

ERF L+
EreE

Ms. Anna Li
Head of Audit

10
1 12
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RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Economic conditions elsewhere in the world have been very
much different, though. In Europe, a sovereign debt crisis
swept through the continent; and in the US, continued
weakness of the economy prompted policy makers into
unveiling a further round of quantitative easing measures to
prop up recovery. The consequence of excess liquidity across
the globe has significantly increased the risk of asset bubbles
forming in Hong Kong, Mainland China, and other markets, thus
presenting new challenges to Hong Kong's financial industry.

CITIC Bank International Limited ("CBI" or “the Bank”) capitalised
on the local economy’s buoyancy in 2010 to drive quality loan
growth and forged ahead to launch new businesses such as
private banking and transaction banking. With the official
renaming as CITIC Bank International in May 2010, the Bank
continued to deepen cross-border business collaboration with
its parent bank, China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (“CNCB").
In fulfilling its role as CNCB Group's offshore platform to pursue
international expansion, CBI opened its Singapore Branch in
December 2010. The new branch has established a strategic
foothold for the CNCB Group in the ASEAN region and marked
a major milestone in the implementation of its international
expansion strategy.

Business Performance

Earnings

CBI actively sought business development and expanded its
network in 2010 in a bid to further strengthen the foundation
for deepening its Hong Kong business, while developing its
regional business against the backdrop of a favourable
economic setting in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
Nevertheless, interest margins narrowed in tandem with the
market trend. The recovery of interest on an exceptional legacy
impaired loan in 2009 led to a relatively high basis for
comparison. As a result, the Bank’s operating income and
operating profit before impairment dropped by 5.9% and 2.8%
year-on-year to HK$3,006 million and HKS$1,554 million,
respectively.

The Bank has strived to upgrade its risk management standards
over the past two years. Leveraging on the advanced
techniques of its strategic shareholder, Banco Bilbao Vizcaya
Argentaria, S.A. ("“BBVA”"), the Bank put in place a
comprehensive Risk Management Plan to further enhance its
asset quality. This, coupled with improvement in Hong Kong’s
overall economic environment, contributed to a significant
53.1% year-on-year reduction in the Bank’s net impairment
losses to HK$262 million during the year. As a result, the Bank's
operating profit rose 24.2% year-on-year to HKS$ 1,292 million.
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FRNATHESRME-—XAEEE  B8EHE
EXECENERLYEENAE T8
&8 7T LA & A& P # Farmington Finance Limited
([Farmington ) M E R EIEEHME SNEART
NEBEBT - BRSAMEERN X1TE A
EHEEBRNMBREELZEBE -TRE
EMEEHRE—TREEB T ATHA
BAZF EAZHET—RBEATEBT K
HEGRAMIEFERIOW E+HERATE
BEAT HEELRNEEALE-

FHNE KA
FRARTEFBWATRA%E +\VE—
FZEEB T BHRARAMBITRER
HEBEZ AMESTEROESRKA: N
ERTAREYEREMNERER UG %
BRREBEEZERENTE R_Z—ZTF XA
pETHEBERIEE N T FHEEZE
FHEX6875% HEBMNEZHITER—
FERN HEEARREEYHFMEWALS
KOFFTE - EFEMREZFET K17
- EFEFEETR =TS FE138%

FEFE WA

FAR ANTZMEFENEFNBERAHTER
SABRENRR BEEBERALEF £
285% ESEHEBEEWAELRIL% M E
HEMCERITHILNSERTIZEREIERX
HEMEER  EHSHHEBERAKRE LFAE
—fF-AR HEAHLEEEFNFHEX
ERAL70%E—F+tEEB L M_ZEZF N
FARTA-—BLCERPRIES LT MES
—EMHENERRA —E—ZFETREH
W AN SIBFRIEF B WAL ES51%
E+—EBAT=Z=EEBT-

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

During the year, the Bank recorded two one-off items including
a one-off disposal gain of HK$522 million from the sale of its
properties at Lippo Centre in Admiralty, Hong Kong and the
write-down of HK$668 million on the Bank’s capital notes
investments issued by Farmington Finance Limited
(“Farmington”). With this write-down, the Bank has made full
provision on all its investments in Farmington capital notes. In
addition, with HK$15 million in revaluation gain on investment
properties, the Bank’s profit before taxation increased by 3.6%
year-on-year to HK$1,160 million while its profit attributable to
shareholders also surged by 10.9% year-on-year to a historical
high of HK$1,057 million.

Net Interest Income

In 2010, the Bank’s net interest income dropped by 6.4% to
HK$1,813 million, partly because the fierce competition for
deposits among local banks had pushed up the funding costs
for deposits. As a further step to bolster its capital strength to
meet the business and regional development needs, the Bank
issued US$500 million 10-year subordinated debts carrying a
coupon of 6.875% in June 2010. The issuance of sub-debts
added considerable pressure on the Bank’s overall interest
expenses, which offset the positive effect of faster loan growth
on net interest income. Influenced by the above mentioned
factors, the Bank's net interest margin therefore contracted 34
basis points to 1.38% in 2010.

Non-Interest Income

During the year, the Bank recorded encouraging results in non-
interest income from various businesses. The Bank achieved a
23.5% year-on-year growth in wealth management related
income and a 12.5% year-on-year growth in trade bills
commission income. Through close collaboration with
Wholesale Banking Group and Retail Banking Group, Treasury
and Markets Group successfully cross-sold many of its treasury
products and boosted related income by almost 100%.
However, net gain from the sale of available-for-sale securities
reduced significantly by 70.9% to HK$17 million. A handsome
fee gained from the successful listing of a corporate customer
in Hong Kong in 2009 was not repeated in 2010. As a result, the
Bank's non-interest income fell 5.1% year-on-year to HK$1,193
million.

“E-TEER
Annual Report 2010
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BEATAREEELRABRR URER
BEBOARBBEFTLONERL BARK
HEREEREBZ TLIELER -

RERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Operating Expenses

In 2010, the Bank's operating expenses dropped by 8.9% year-
on-year to HK$1,452 million due to a relatively high basis for
comparison created by the full provision on the amount
payable under the Lehman-Brothers Minibonds Repurchase
Scheme and related expenses in 2009. Excluding this one-off
item, the Bank's operating expenses would have recorded a low
double-digit growth mainly because of increased investments
and expenses for new business development and branch
network expansion in Hong Kong and Asia. Overall, the Bank’s
cost to income ratio improved to 48.3% from the previous
year's 49.9%.

Impairment Allowances

As the overall economic environment improved and the Bank
upgraded its risk management standards, the Bank registered a
net charge in impairment losses on loans and advances and
other accounts totalling HK$262 million during the year,
representing a significant 53.1% reduction over 2009. The net
charge on individually assessed loans reduced by 59.6% year-
on-year to HK$221 million; while the net charge on collectively
assessed loans reduced by 37.4% year-on-year to HK$62 million.
Bad debt recoveries dropped by 76.0% year-on-year to HKS$21
million.

Asset Quality

Asset, Loan and Deposit Sizes

In 2010, the Bank delivered outstanding results in stepping up
to grow quality lending. As at end-December 2010, the Bank's
total loans grew by 21.3% to HK$88.8 billion as compared to
2009 year-end while its total assets increased by 23.4% to
HK$148.2 billion. Meanwhile, under the prolonged low interest
rate environment, Retail Banking Group and Wholesale Banking
Group worked closely with Treasury and Markets Group to
introduce an expanded variety of customer-driven deposit
products which received encouraging response from
customers. As a result, total deposits grew by 23.0% to
HK$120.5 billion.

In July 2010, the Bank became the first Hong Kong financial
institution to issue offshore RMB Certificate of Deposit ("CD").
The total issue size of the one-year RMB CD was RMB500
million. This RMB CD issuance optimised the Bank's RMB asset
and liability position and diversified its RMB investment product
portfolio, while spearheading the Bank to make its contribution
to the development of Hong Kong as an offshore RMB centre.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Asset Quality Indicators

As at end-December 2010, impaired loans ratio dropped to
1.39% from 1.78% as at end-December 2009. Separately, the
Bank's residential mortgage delinquency ratio also continued to
perform better than industry average.

Financial Position

To support its rapid business growth and in preparation for its
regional expansion, the Bank issued US$500 million 10-year
subordinated debts in June 2010. The issuance of sub-debts
further enhanced the Bank’s capital strength. As at end-
December 2010, the Bank’s capital adequacy ratio reached
19.0%, representing an improvement by 2.6 percentage points
from 2009 year-end. Meanwhile, despite tightening market
liquidity, the roll-out of a series of successful customer deposit
promotional campaigns and active asset and liability
management programmes enabled the Bank to maintain its
average liquidity ratio and loans to deposits ratio at the healthy
levels of 44.7% and 73.7% respectively as at end-December
2010.

FZRITEIBE F B R H R CBI's Key Financial Ratios
—E-EF “EENF
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
B AR FE Rt =& Capital adequacy 19.0% 16.4%
BEOLEARTRLEE Core capital adequacy 11.2% 11.9%
FHRBHES L E Average liquidity 44.7% 48.8%
BF =R Loans to deposits 73.7% 74.8%
ERHEERLBELX Loans to total assets 59.9% 61.0%
HEERL X Impaired loans 1.39% 1.78%
BEx' Coverage' 45.5% 485%
ERBEEEX Loan loss coverage 53.4% 47.9%
ARG @B R R Mainland loans to total customer advances 22.1% 17.6%

UORHE R S 1B B AT (8 R E 2 4 RORE B R M
ZMB AR EE KRB -

' Calculated by dividing the sum of individually assessed impairment

allowances and collateral of impaired loans by the gross impaired
loans.

—E-TEER
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Business Development

Retail Banking Group (“RBG")

Riding on the improved local economy and the rebranding
campaign momentum of the Bank, RBG recorded a robust full-
year 2010 with solid business strengths. Profit before taxation
peaked to a record HK$566 million. In view of strong interest in
RMB business against the background of China’s sustained
economic growth, a range of innovative products was launched
and supported by extensive marketing campaigns. This
contributed to balanced revenue growth in different business
dimensions. Total retail loan balances grew by 15.9% year-on-
year to HK$31.3 billion at the end of 2010 and retail deposits
reached HKS$52.3 billion, up 7.1% year-on-year. Net interest
income increased by 7.9% year-on-year to a new high of
HKS$819 million, while wealth management business expansion
and loan growth lifted non-interest income by 23.5% year-on-
year to HK$410 million.

A continuous focus on operating efficiency and cost
management ensured that operating expenses recorded just
single-digit growth after excluding the costs associated with
meeting customer claims in relation to Lehman Brother-linked
products for 2009.

The key engines behind the growth in the Bank's retail loan
portfolio were mortgages and secured SME loans. Some bad
debts incurred several years ago were also successfully
recovered and impairment losses fell by 98.3% year-on-year to
just HKS$1.1 million.

With the foundation built for CITICfirst as the “New Standard of
Private Wealth Management”, the proposition made further
inroad in 2010 via building up the market insights capability
leveraging on stock market research and delivering a new
collateralised overdraft service based on total customer assets
under management. As at the end of 2010, the total number of
CITICfirst customers increased by 14% from 2009 year-end to
over 16,900. Total customer assets under management grew
by 17% to over HKS$50 billion.

To fulfill Mainland customers’ cross-border needs, RBG made
significant headway with the introduction of related businesses.
In addition to the wealth management service provided by
CITICfirst, private banking services were initiated in the second
half of 2010 with a full launch planned for 2011. RBG also
stepped up the pace of its retail network expansion by opening
three new branches in Causeway Bay, Mei Foo, and Tseung
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Kwan O during the year. In 2011, more new branches will be
opened as the Bank continues to extend its retail presence in
Hong Kong.

Wholesale Banking Group (“WBG")

WBG delivered another satisfactory year as a result of staying
focused on its strategic priorities of revenue stream
diversification, product capability upgrades, regional expansion,
and cross business-unit collaboration. Both net interest income
and non-lending fee income (including treasury income)
achieved record highs with year-on-year growth of 2.1% and
92.5% respectively.

WBG continued to deepen its collaboration with CNCB and
capitalised on this edge to tap opportunities arising from the
recently increased pace of growth in RMB trade settlement
business. Cross-business referrals between the Bank and CNCB
have increased considerably to a new level and proved that the
collaboration model was crucial to the Bank’s unique
competitive advantage and long-term growth.

WBG was committed to growing sustainable revenues during
the year by making investments in product capabilities fulfilling
customer needs and up-to-date technologies meeting
international bank standards. In August 2010, a high-calibre
transaction banking team was formed to execute a mid- to
long-term product development and channel distribution plan,
with a strong focus on trade and cash management products
and services.

The soft opening of the Singapore Branch in December 2010
represented a major milestone in the roll-out of WBG's network
in South East Asia, delivering best-in-class support to clients
with existing presence in that region. Leveraging the Bank’s
expertise in RMB products and China-related cross-border
services, WBG is well positioned to provide an offshore financial
platform for its corporate customers as well as customers of
CNCB.

During the year, WBG embarked on several important initiatives
to introduce strict customer management and lending
disciplines, which reflected its commitment to instil a strong risk
management culture among all staff. With continual prudent
risk management and appetite, provision for credit losses
registered a year-on-year 47.4% improvement.
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China Banking

2010 witnessed a further breakthrough in the cooperation
between the Bank and its parent bank, CNCB, as well as its
ultimate shareholder, CITIC Group. Approved facilities and loan
drawdowns arising from CNCB business referrals surged by
262% and 168% respectively over 2009. CNCB established a
bank-wide key performance indicator system for cross-border
business referrals which significantly accelerated the pace of
such referrals. Meanwhile, the Bank made encouraging
progress towards establishing collaboration with CITIC Group
subsidiaries as well as their upstream and downstream
companies, thus generating substantial new opportunities for
its structured finance and deposit business.

Significant progress was also made by CBI and CNCB in product
development that facilitated cross-border business
cooperation. CBI collaborated with more CNCB branches to
provide RMB non-deliverable forward (“"NDF") contracts for
Mainland customers and as a result the volume of RMB NDF
transactions and related profit grew 55% and 60% year-on-year
respectively in 2010. Robust growth was also recorded in the
business volume of other new products and related profits, in
particular in RMB trade settlement products. Being one of the
leading banks in Hong Kong to conduct cross-border RMB
trade settlement business, CBI was the first local bank to
conduct cross-border RMB settlement business for service
trade. It was also the first bank to conduct cross-border RMB
remittances in Beijing and Hangzhou and to complete cross-
border RMB transfer to non-resident accounts in Fuzhou, and
one of the first to provide non-trade RMB exchange services.

During the year, CITIC Bank International (China) Limited (“CBI
(China)", formerly known as CITIC Ka Wah Bank (China) Limited),
took an important step towards strengthening its function as
an onshore platform for cross-border business cooperation. CBI
(China) played a key role in executions by establishing
collaboration with CNCB and CITIC Group. In this regard,
extensive business exchanges with an extensive number of
CNCB branches were conducted, resulting in the establishment
of a clearer co-operative framework, closer business
cooperation, and the accelerated transmission of business
referrals between CBI (China) and CNCB branches. Business
portfolios became more cross-border-oriented and onshore
RMB trade settlement business also kicked off subsequently. As
a result, CBI (China) delivered a considerably improved financial
performance, with a sharp rise in both revenue and profit and a
significantly better loans to deposits ratio.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Treasury and Markets Group (“TMG")

During the year, TMG actively expanded its marketing team and
strengthened its capabilities to capture the opportunities
arising from the prolonged low interest rate environment and
the more favourable RMB business regulations. Greater efforts
were put into product development, focusing especially on
RMB products to fulfill customer needs. Leveraging on the
large customer base and network of the parent bank, CNCB,
and working in close collaboration with WBG and RBG, TMG
provided customers with timely and diversified yield
enhancement and hedging solutions, which enabled rapid
growth in business volume. Boosted by cross-selling of treasury
products to customers, TMG's total client-driven revenue for the
year almost doubled over 2009 to an historical high of HK$161
million.

In the area of central treasury management, more stringent
investment guidelines were applied to bond investment in the
Bank’s available-for-sale (“AFS") investment securities portfolio
during the year in response to the European debt crisis and the
overall changes in market conditions. Moreover, given the
prevailing low yield on quality bonds, the Bank could only re-
invest in lower yield bonds when existing bonds became
mature. Quality of the bond portfolio was maintained but at
the same time the overall return of the portfolio was adversely
affected. Separately, the issuance of the new US$500 million
subordinated debt in June 2010 also increased the interest cost
for the Bank. On the other investment in the portfolio, the
remaining portable alpha notes left over after the closure of the
fund investment business in 2008 were unwound during the
year to avoid undue volatility.

Risk Management

The economic environment in 2010 was full of asymmetries.
Economic growth remained strong in some countries such as
China and Germany, while others such as the US and a number
of countries in Europe went through uncertainties that, in most
cases, have not yet been resolved. Amidst this tumultuous
climate, the Risk Management Group continued its focused
efforts in tightening underwriting practices, conducting
rigorous risk reviews, and enhancing critical risk tools and
methodologies through the implementation of its
comprehensive Risk Management Plan ("RMP”").

In 2010, the Bank continued to invest in and strengthen its risk
management infrastructure and risk capabilities by leveraging
on the comprehensive risk management intelligence of its
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

strategic shareholder, BBVA. The comprehensive RMP, which
integrates the expertise of BBVA, aims to create a world-class
risk infrastructure to identify, quantify, monitor and mitigate the
risks of the Bank and facilitate value creation while preserving
financial strength. The plan focuses on ensuring that
appropriate tools, methodologies and processes are in place in
key risk areas to meet the highest possible standard on risk
management under the Basel framework. The roll-out of these
initiatives has also led to substantial enhancements, particularly
in the credit risk and market risk management areas.

The Bank adopted the standardised approach for credit risk and
market risk, and the basic indicator approach for operational
risk. Accordingly, the Bank has overhauled its systems and
controls in order to meet the standards required for these
approaches. Based on the Basel framework, the Bank has
developed the risk based pricing model and economic capital
measurement tools for more effective capital management to
cater to the Bank's strategic decisions and future growth. The
concept of economic capital is a very significant factor in the
evaluation of the Bank’s risk profile and can provide a more
accurate calculation of risk-weighted return for different
businesses across the Bank. Risk management integration with
business is constantly being enhanced into the Basel framework
with ultimate goals to reinforce capital planning and
monitoring of the Bank's risk profile.

In the areas of corporate governance, the Credit and Risk
Management Committee ("CRMC") is empowered by the Board
to ensure that the risk management practices in place are
commensurate with the Bank’s strategies and business
activities, encompassing oversight of the Bank’s risk profile,
policies, and risk control framework. The prime responsibility of
the Director of Risks is to ensure that effective risk control
framework and processes are implemented and that the CRMC
is apprised of critical risk issues and developments.

Established policies and procedures are in place to identify and
analyse the risks to which the Bank is exposed, set appropriate
risk control limits, monitor risks and ensure that necessary
mitigation plans are put in place. The Bank continually modifies
and enhances its risk policies, procedures and frameworks in
line with the market, product offering and international best
practices. Furthermore, the Internal Audit Group conducts
regular independent reviews of the Bank’s risk management
practices to ensure compliance with internal policies as well as
regulatory requirements.
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Report of the Chief Executive Officer

The Bank’s market risk appetite is controlled through a well-
defined limit-setting process. Rigorous risk controls are in place,
and market risk limits are monitored daily. Stress testing is
performed regularly and monitored for rare but plausible
events. Front line businesses and the market risk department
interact closely to proactively review limits arising from strategic
changes.

The strategic collaboration between the Bank, CNCB and BBVA
is well underway with substantial focus on achieving synergies
in the risk management area. This formidable alliance has
enabled the Bank to better capture the opportunities from the
growing economic pre-eminence of the Greater China and
Asian region. Risk management remains a fundamental and
integral part of the Bank's business activities. In 2011, priorities
will be given to the implementation of the RMP, which will
primarily focus on streamlining its processes, looking after the
Bank’s capital, re-assessing the Bank's risk appetite, and actively
managing the asset quality.

Human Resources Development

With the improvement in economic sentiment, the manpower
market quickly turned around in 2010 and drove up attrition
rates. The Bank rose to the challenge and continued to grow its
talent base for new business needs as well as the expansion of
branches in Hong Kong and overseas. A number of executives
and seasoned managers joined different business and support
units of the Bank, bringing with them a wealth of experience
and know-how.

On people development, the Bank conducted a series of
structured learning programmes to enhance competency levels
among all staff and to raise professional standards. The Retail
Sales Trainee Programme and the Wholesale Banking
Management Associate programme were successful in building
talent pipelines in those two businesses. Recognition for
outstanding performance of the Bank and its staff during the
year came in the form of several prestigious awards, including
Manpower Developer 1st Award by the Employees Retraining
Board, Grand Award in Outstanding Financial Management
Planner Awards 2010 by the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and
Certificate of Merit in the Award for Excellence in Training and
Development by the Hong Kong Management Association.
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To generate sustainable results, the Bank continued to instil its
core values through initiatives such as a new on-boarding
process, the iREADY workshops, and the STAR Award staff
incentive scheme. Exemplary behaviour and actions were
recognised and rewarded. Also, to enable all staff to work as
one, a variety of staff communication forums was held to
encourage a multi-directional exchange of information and
opinions. Team events, sporting activities, and community
participation served to promote health awareness, social
service, and environmental protection as well as to enrich the
work experience of the staff within the Bank.

With the support of a solid and talented workforce, CBl is poised
to deliver sustainable growth.

Future Outlook

In stark contrast to lingering uncertainties over the economic
health of major developed countries in Europe and the US,
emerging markets in Asia have achieved remarkable recoveries.
The focus of the global economy is expected to shift further
eastwards in 2011 and China, the world’s second largest
economy, will remain the key driver of sustained growth in the
Asian region. Prospects for Hong Kong's economy look
relatively positive in the coming year given its established
advantages and the Chinese hinterland’s robust growth.

The pool of RMB capital in Hong Kong has increased to a
respectable level. Given this liquidity as well as strong
consumer demand, the depth and width of the market for RMB
business will be enhanced by further diversification and the
launch of more new products. This trend will lift Hong Kong's
development as an offshore RMB centre to the next level and
inject fresh momentum into the growth of Hong Kong's
financial industry.

Underscoring its conviction in the strength and potential of the
fast-growing RMB business in Hong Kong, the Bank will build
on its existing advantages to facilitate new products
development. Its partnership with CNCB will be further
strengthened by integrating with its extensive Mainland
customer base and network to grow RMB business in Hong
Kong and across the border.

In an effort to entrench its business presence in Hong Kong, the
Bank will continue to extend and enhance its retail branch
network. At the same time, more resources will be allocated to
develop new business including transaction banking and
private banking services with a view to further fortifying the
Bank's competitive edge.



TR RS

AOITKBEANBHBEERFERITEE
BB FanAse - ERINARMINK DT
B AIRBNRIHBHOAEICESE
EedE BEETHBNEEIE A17
RAE - BT R I K TS R R SRS
BEMAREARTREERAXBRTER
BRSNS BREATPRHEERS
MEEN BN LEFTHERTEREERR
M HMNRITOERE N REF  NTE
BREEF —RIEEEMNEZE R RS RE
B ARERITEBRBEPERAFRT
mEEKBR-

BR 5 2

Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen
T A&,
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
B —E-——F=ZA=+H

Report of the Chief Executive Officer

Going forward, the Bank is committed to ensconcing its role as
CNCB Group's offshore platform for international expansion.
After the successful opening of its Singapore Branch, the Board
of Directors has approved to push ahead with plans to establish
a new foothold in Australia and preparation works are in
progress. The Bank’s regional network and business expansion
strategy will significantly enhance its capability to better serve
Hong Kong, Mainland and regional customers with business
needs and aspirations in the region. With the strength and
support of its parent bank CNCB and strategic shareholder
BBVA, the Bank is ready to take on the opportunities offered by
a vibrant, dynamic and rising Asia together with its customers
in building the CITIC commercial banking franchise into a
world-leading brand.
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Review of Operations

Retail Banking Group

o HATBRRMAKFH753.8% ' EREASATFAAEEET
HESHS

Profit before tax surged by 753.8% to a record
high of HK$566 million

CITICfirst UEERXREFANBEB—BAT
NBA AEFEEREERBERRNITARE
T FHRHEEERERABRAER23.5%

CITICfirst wealth management franchise

grew to over 16,900 customers with more
than HK$50 billion customer assets under
management, driving wealth management fee
income up by 23.5%

The Bank's Retail Banking Group (“RBG") broke all major
performance records in 2010. Strong financial performance
was underpinned by a further strengthening of fee income
generating capability and discipline in margin and risk
management. Coupled with a widened Prime-HIBOR gap and
sturdy growth of retail lending and deposits, net interest
income rose by 7.9% year-on-year to HK$819 million, while non-
interest income increased by 23.5% over 2009 to HKS$410
million. Further improvement in market sentiment in 2010 was
reflected in increased demand for services and growing
confidence among customers in the suite of wealth
management products offered by RBG. A continuing drive to
deliver greater operational efficiency contributed to a 31.1% fall
in total operating expenses versus 2009. Excluding the cost of
paying customer claims to Lehman Brothers-linked products in
2009, total operating expenses increased year-on-year by only
9.3%. Loan impairment losses decreased by 98.3% to HKS$1.1
million during the year, because of an improved credit
environment and rigorous risk management discipline. As a
result, RBG registered a record high profit before tax of HK$566
million, up 753.8% over the 2009 result.

Upgrading Service Standard for CITICfirst

RBG continued to upgrade service standard for its signature
private wealth management franchise, CITICfirst. Total number
of customers grew by 14% from 2009 year-end to over 16,900
at 2010 year-end. Total customer assets under management
grew by 17% compared to 2009 year-end, breaking through the
HKS$50 billion mark.
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The ability of RBG's qualified wealth management talents to
leverage on CITICfirst's innovative and customer-oriented
business model saw its star performers scoop several top
honours at the Outstanding Financial Management Planner
Awards 2010, organised by the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers,
including the Grand Award, four Financial Planner Awards, two
Certificates of Merit, and the Best Presentation Award.

RBG has embarked on its branch footprint expansion plan.
Three new branches incorporating CITICfirst banking centres
were opened at Causeway Bay, Mei Foo and Tseung Kwan O in
2010 to provide comprehensive banking services to valued
customers, bringing the number of CITICfirst banking centres to
a total of 19. Furthermore, three new branches with dedicated
CITICfirst banking centres are scheduled to be opened in 2011.

Strengthening Balance Sheet for Sustainable Growth

RBG successfully strengthened its retail deposit product
offering, especially in RMB products and services, to support the
Bank'’s vision of being the “China Bank of Choice” Various RMB
deposit products, including RMB Flexible Time Deposit, RMB
Savings Builder 2, and RMB Certificate of Deposit, were
launched during the year and all met with positive responses
from customers. Retail deposits rose year-on-year by 7.1% to
HK$52.3 billion. This helped strengthen CBI's liquidity position
with longer-term funding. Apart from RMB deposit products,
various RMB- and China-themed investment products such as
RMB Structured Deposits, RMB Bonds, RMB non-deliverable
forward contracts, CSI China-Hong Kong Leaders Fund,
Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors (“QFIl") Linked
Investment Funds and Private Placement QFIl Funds were also
rolled out in 2010. These efforts helped generate encouraging
growth in assets under management for CITICfirst customers.

RBG made substantial progress in 2010 with growing residential
mortgages and lending to SME. The loans were supported by
collaterals, including those under the Government Special Loan
Scheme. By the end of 2010, the outstanding retail loan
balance reached HK$31.3 billion, registering a growth of 15.9%
compared to year-end 2009.

—B-TEEH
Annual Report 2010
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As economic conditions continue to improve, loan demand
from SME recorded healthy growth, with trade and non-trade
related loans growing 79.2% and 35.9% respectively on a year-
on-year basis. Investment will be made in 2011 to enhance the
Bank's marketing and servicing capabilities in this segment to
capture SME business opportunities at the Pearl River Delta
Region in Mainland China.

Significant Improvement in Asset Quality

Despite satisfactory loan growth in 2010, asset quality remained
high as a result of rigorous credit risk management and
significant improvement in effective collection management
and delinquency rate reduction. Loan impairment losses
remained low at 0.35 basis point or HK$1.1 million, attributable
to higher write-backs in the SME business and a lower net
charge-off in the credit card portfolio. The residential mortgage
delinquency ratio remained lower than the industry benchmark
provided by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Launch of Private Banking Services

In July 2010, the Bank soft-launched its Private Banking Services
to create a competitive CITIC private banking platform in Hong
Kong by providing financial solutions for high net worth
individuals and corporations in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
The new service is to become the offshore wealth management
platform for CITIC group companies by leveraging CITICfirst's
proven track record in serving high net worth individuals in
Hong Kong. It seeks to complement product and service
offerings and to maximise the revenue potential of onshore
private banking for Mainland Chinese high net worth
individuals, through seamless offshore financial services to
CNCB private banking customers. The new service will also aim
to capture a slice of international investment flows in Asia and
will progressively expand into other regions in Asia, such as
Singapore. Strategic targets set for the new service, including
customer acquisition and assets under management, were on
track as of 2010 year-end.
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2011 Outlook

Despite the launch of the second round of Quantitative Easing
Measures ("QE2") by US Federal Reserve in early November
2010, the economy in the US is likely to remain relatively weak
and interest rates at a low level in 2011. At the meanwhile, the
debt crisis in some European countries is yet to be resolved.

On the other hand, economic growth in Mainland China and
Hong Kong is sound. Solid economic foundations, low interest
rates, reasonable valuations, and robust demand from Mainland
China should continue to give momentum for the economic
growth in Hong Kong.

The positive outlook will support the ongoing transformation
and expansion of RBG. The CITICfirst franchise is now better
positioned among competitors. With continuing support from
CNCB and BBVA, RBG will continue to strengthen its balance
sheet, expand customer segment diversity, better customer
services, broaden its distribution network, hire more talents and
deepen customer relations. It is committed to build a strong
and integrated wealth management platform to serve the
affluent segment in Greater China and Asia.

—B-TEEH
Annual Report 2010
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Mr. Nick Huang

Alternate Chief Executive Officer &
Executive General Manager
Wholesale Banking Group
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Wholesale Banking Group
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Net interest income and non-lending fee
income (including treasury income), both
achieved record highs

HRREARLERRBNFEEREY - £8

FEHERAEARFEEER KA KIE 92.5%

Non-lending fee income (including treasury
income), as a result of strategic re-allocation
of resources into non-lending business
activities, surged by 92.5%

At the beginning of 2010, Wholesale Banking Group ("WBG") set
clear strategic priorities focusing on revenue stream
diversification, product capability upgrade, regional expansion,
and cross business-unit collaboration. The focus on priorities
ensured the Bank's continuing successful operation during the
year, and provided a roadmap of ongoing internationalisation.
Cooperation with the Bank's parent bank, CNCB, was key to the
successful execution of these strategic priorities, which were
proven to be effective with both net interest income and non-
lending fee income (including treasury income) reaching new
highs. Net interest income recorded a year-on-year growth of
2.1%, while non-lending fee income including treasury income
rose by 92.5%. In addition, by applying strict lending rules and
prudent risk management disciplines, impairment losses were
47 4% lower compared to the previous year.

Revenue Stream Diversification

WBG continued a strategic re-allocation of resources from
traditional lending activities into business activities that
generate non-lending fee income. The re-balancing of its asset
portfolio will contribute to reduce income volatility in the long
run, notwithstanding periodic vagaries experienced in
economic cycles. Relationship managers’ effort in cross-selling
Global Markets and non-lending products showed encouraging
results. Fee income from non-lending activities rose to 18.8% of
total WBG operating income, more than double the
contribution in 2009.
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Product Capability Upgrade

With the aspiration to become an all-around solution-oriented
bank, WBG continued to increase its product breadth and
depth to satisfy customers’ diversified needs. Its dedicated
treasury sales force worked closely with all marketing teams in
WBG to provide customised solutions for customers. Treasury
income more than tripled compared with last year.

In August 2010, a Transaction Banking Team, comprising experts
with years of field experience, was established to execute a
mid- to long-term plan with the ambition of offering customers
a full range of sophisticated products. In addition to product
development, the team was charged with the responsibility of
upgrading WBG's distribution channels for trade and cash
management products and services, both in Hong Kong and its
overseas branches.

The Structured Finance and Syndication Team worked jointly
with the marketing teams to strengthen customer relations by
providing practical advice and structuring support. In the
second half of the year, the team was engaged in close
discussions with CNCB, paving the way to expand the Bank's
investment banking and cross-border distribution capabilities.

Regional Expansion

On 29 December 2010, the Bank’s Singapore Branch was
officially opened for business. This marked a major milestone in
the Bank’s continuing expansion in South East Asia and
development of the CITIC commercial banking franchise into a
world-leading brand. As the hub in the region, Singapore
Branch provides a range of comprehensive wholesale banking
and treasury services from RMB products and services to
working capital financing, cash management, trade finance and
foreign exchange services.

—B-TEEH
Annual Report 2010
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CBI-CNCB Connectivity

With the strategic priorities in place, WBG recognised that
collaboration among all marketing teams, overseas branches, as
well as its parent CNCB was critical to the execution of its
aspiration. Solid and sustained business interactions not only
drove the connectivity between the two banks to a new phase,
but also allowed the Bank to enhance cross-border capabilities
and offer a wide range of RMB products by leveraging on
CNCB’s strong network in Mainland China and opportunities
arising from the latest RMB developments. All these resulted in
a high volume of cross-referral business and joint participation
deals booked during the year. With sustained support from
China Banking Group, WBG will continue to elevate the
cooperation with CNCB to arrive at synergies and migration of
best practices between the two banks. In the long run, the CBI-
CNCB bonding will further differentiate the Bank from other
Chinese banks in Hong Kong and secure distinct advantages for
WABG to achieve its aspirations.

Prudent Risk Management

Effective risk management was another critical element in the
execution of the strategic plan and fundamental to the success
of the Bank. In response to the economic challenges in recent
years, WBG strived for growth and profit sustainability by clearly
defining its risk appetite for the year and continuing to apply
strict risk control and customer management disciplines.
During the year, various measures were put in place to instil a
strong risk culture among all marketing, product and support
teams. These measures included the implementation of a more
refined set of guidelines on target markets, facility structures,
and product offerings to ensure that the credit portfolio was
performing as expected. At the meanwhile, WBG continued to
vigorously apply the Bank's risk-based pricing methodology to
achieve a healthy balance between risk and return. With
ongoing efforts, a stable net interest margin was achieved,
along with an improvement in the quality of the portfolio.

Recognition of the importance of up-to-date infrastructure for a
robust risk management framework led to the formation of a
task force charged with working with Risk Management Group
to upgrade the Bank's credit rating platform, with a target
implementation date of early 2011. The upgraded platform will
improve the efficiency of counter-party credit rating and
strengthen WBG's ability in stress testing as well as portfolio
management.
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2011 Outlook

It is highly likely that the economies of the US and some
European countries will remain challenging in 2011, and as a
result, market focus will continue to be placed on opportunities
in Asia, particularly Mainland China. In Mainland China, the
planned internationalisation of the RMB will continue to present
vast opportunities in the private consumption and export
sectors. Based on the Bank's solid positioning in Hong Kong
and expanding footprint in South East Asia, WBG, by riding on
CNCB's strong network in Mainland China, is at a vantage point
to capitalise on these opportunities ahead.

Investment in infrastructure and products for the benefits of
customers is always at the heart of WBG's business
commitment. With this commitment, WBG strives to provide
solutions and services that will add to customers’ business
growth. In addition, by leveraging product strengths of both
CNCB and BBVA, WBG is positioned to widen the Bank’s core
customer base and sustainable revenue growth going forward.

A major contributing factor to WBG's success is the
commitment to continuously upgrade the skill of its staff.
Having the right leaders in place to execute strategies and
nurture talents is vital for ongoing success and future growth.
WBG will continue to actively identify and develop talent while
training programmes will continue to keep all staff informed of
up-to-date market information and product developments.
Regular exchanges with CNCB and BBVA will also be
encouraged for those staff who are keen to enrich their working
experience in different cultures and broaden their networking
for future growth.

With a strong track record, support from its parents, CNCB and
BBVA, and a dedicated focus on the execution of the strategic
priorities, WBG is well placed to become the offshore regional
banking platform of CNCB and support the Bank’s vision of
becoming the “China Bank of Choice”in Asia.

—E-TEER
Annual Report 2010
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Treasury and Markets Group
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Global Markets’ operating unit generated
record revenue of HK$273 million, an increase
of 65.3% from 2009

BARBEZENBRRPETHPHEE PR AR
BRERNEBRARA  B-ZEZNFE2799.9%

Fee income generated by the sale of hedging
and yield-enhancement products by a
restructured and expanded marketing team
surged by 99.9% from 2009

Treasury and Markets Group (“TMG") delivered satisfactory
results in various business aspects for 2010 notwithstanding the
challenging operating environment arising from market
concerns over the Euro Zone sovereign debt crisis, US
quantitative easing and currency turmoil. Risk averse
investment managers responded to fears of contagion by
parking their funds in emerging markets, especially Mainland
China, which offered the combined attractions of being the
world'’s fastest growing economy as well as prospects of a
currency appreciation. Against this daunting background, TMG
was able to leverage the competitive advantages it enjoys over
its rivals by drawing on its relationship with its ultimate holding
company, CITIC Group and parent bank, CNCB to expand its
customer base. Within TMG, the Global Markets’ operating unit
generated record revenue of HK$273 million, an increase of
65.3% from 2009. Fee income generated by the sale of hedging
and yield-enhancement products by a restructured and
expanded marketing team accounted for 69.3% of total Global
Markets revenue, up 99.9% from 2009's result. Total revenue of
foreign exchange and interest rate trading was up by 18.9%.

Central Treasury Unit responded to market turbulence caused
by the Euro Zone debt crisis by tightening credit risk controls
on its bond investment in the Bank’s available-for-sale (“AFS")
investment securities portfolio. QE2 by the US injected liquidity
into the market, brought credit and funding costs to a relatively
low level, and reduced yields on the new issues that replaced
maturing bonds in the portfolio. As a result, both operating
income and operating profit of TMG were adversely affected.
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TMG continued to work closely with Wholesale Banking Group
("WBG") and Retail Banking Group ("RBG") to cross-sell treasury
products both for yield enhancement and hedging purposes.
The policy environment in which business was conducted
encountered several major changes. In June 2009, the People’s
Bank of China ("PBOC") launched a pilot scheme for RMB
settlement of cross-border trade, with Hong Kong as one of the
piloting grounds for the scheme. In February 2010, the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA”) issued new regulations
allowing participating banks to develop RMB business, provided
that funds would not flow back into the Mainland. In July,
HKMA further relaxed the rules and removed restrictions on
transfer of RMB deposits under the same name between banks
in Hong Kong, creating a new offshore deliverable RMB market.
The new measures brought the opportunity for a greatly
expanded offshore RMB bond market and RMB foreign
exchange market, and provided a spur for a host of products
from mutual funds to money market instruments and swaps.

To stay abreast of the opportunities created by the relaxation of
controls over the RMB currency, an RMB business task force was
established to formulate RMB business direction and strategy
for the whole Bank. Since the beginning of 2010, TMG's
marketing team had been working closely with CNCB to
structure hedging deals for Mainland customers employing
non-deliverable forward (“NDF") contracts and other
instruments. As a result, the volume of RMB NDF transactions
and related profit surged substantially compared to 2009.
Robust growth was also recorded in the business volume of
other new products and related profits, in particular that of RMB
trade settlement products.

TMG also expanded its own RMB product capabilities on
structured products such as RMB non-deliverable swaps, RMB
Capped Forwards and Ratio Par Forwards. The expanded suite
of products enabled TMG to help its clients take advantage of
the low interest rate environment to achieve cost-effective
financing through simple swaps and options. Clients were also
able to hedge currency pegs by selling options and cross
currency swaps. By focusing on its strategic RMB franchise
strengths, TMG nearly tripled the revenues from these sources.

Besides leveraging on WBG's customer base to achieve wider
coverage, TMG's marketing team also targeted at SME clients of
RBG Business Banking for cross-selling of existing treasury
products. In the last quarter of 2010, it increased staff dedicated
to such cross-selling opportunities.

—B-TEEH
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In the area of central treasury management, given the
prevailing low yield on quality bonds, the Bank could only re-
invest maturing bonds in its fixed-income AFS securities
portfolio at an inevitably lower rate, which affected the overall
return on the portfolio. Thanks to strict investment guidelines,
the Bank nonetheless managed to maintain the quality of its
bond portfolio at a high standard despite a number of
uncertainties in the external investment environment. As at
2010 year-end, 83.7% of the portfolio was comprised of high
quality bonds rated A- or above, while fixed-rate and floating-
rate bonds accounted for 68% and 32% of the portfolio
respectively. The average tenor for fixed-rate bonds was seven
months. In general, the maturity tenor would not exceed seven
years with the exception of several perpetual bonds.

On other investment in the portfolio, the remaining portable
alpha notes left over from the closure of the fund investment
business in 2008 were unwound during the year to avoid
undue volatility.

In 2010, the Bank incurred a write-down of HK$668 million on
its capital notes investments issued by Farmington Finance
Limited ("Farmington”). With this write-down, the Bank has
made full provision on all its investments in Farmington capital
notes.

Due to the uncertainty and turmoil in the financial markets,
TMG had been closely monitoring liquidity and balance sheet
management which are essential to any financial institution in
the event of shock to the system. In 2010, the Bank issued
HK$6.6 billion or equivalent Certificate of Deposits (“CD"), with
an average tenor of two years for longer-term funding, and
offered competitive pricing to attract and retain customer
deposits to support the Bank’s loan growth.

In July 2010, after HKMA announced further relaxation on the
conduct of RMB business in Hong Kong, the Bank became the
first Hong Kong financial institution to issue offshore RMB CD.
The total issue size of the one-year RMB CD was RMB500 million
and the issuance optimised the Bank's RMB asset and liability
position while advancing its mission to become the “China
Bank of Choice” for customers. Diverse RMB-related investment
products also contributed to the development of Hong Kong as
an offshore RMB centre. This issue also won the “Best Offshore
RMB CD Issuance” award from MTN-i.
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To support its rapid business growth and regional expansion
plans, the Bank also issued US$500 million of 10-year
subordinated debt carrying a coupon of 6.875% in June 2010.
The issuance of sub-debt further enhanced the Bank’s capital
strength and as of end-December 2010, the Bank’s capital
adequacy ratio reached 19.0%, representing an improvement of
2.6 percentage points from 2009 year-end. The strong capital
position provides a safeguard to the Bank in a volatile global
market.

TMG anticipates a busy year in 2011. The initiation of an RMB
trade settlement scheme has triggered a chain reaction in
capital markets. Given China’s expressed desire to see Hong
Kong prosper as China’s offshore RMB trade settlement centre
and become the testing ground for RMB internationalisation,
further pioneering developments may be expected in the year
ahead. Applications by Chinese companies to be listed on the
local market are also likely to continue at high levels, and the
RMB bond issuance market could also expand considerably in
the year ahead as many issuers seek to tap into this very liquid
funding source.

TMG will focus on aggressively strengthening its RMB business
by riding on CITIC's and CNCB'’s RMB franchises and client bases,
as well as BBVA's technical support, to gain an extensive market
share in new RMB bond issuance, initial public offering
mandates, and the sale of structured products. It will also
continue to collaborate with CNCB to sell its wide range of
products and solutions, as well as pursue opportunities arising
from collaboration with CITIC Group and related companies.
TMG will also strengthen and deepen its support for RBG's SME
clients and its newly-established private banking unit by
offering its extensive treasury and global markets products to
meet clients’ needs.

The establishment of the Bank's Singapore Branch will present
TMG with an opportunity to grow its presence and customer
base in ASEAN countries. In the year ahead, it will also continue
a close focus on liquidity and the maintenance of a strong
“fortress balance sheet”. The implementation of a new Asset
and Liability Management system will enable TMG to make
swift and transforming decisions on balance sheet
management.

With a sound strategy and diligent efforts, TMG is cautiously
optimistic that 2011 will be another rewarding year.

—B-TEEH
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Corporate Social Responsibility

c BTRIBRB—EZT=8F /K
Volunteer service reached 10,307 hours
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Awarded the Caring Company logo by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the
eighth consecutive year and Gold Certificate
by the Social Welfare Department's Volunteer
Movement for the third consecutive year

At CBI, Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR") plays an
important role in helping the Bank achieve business success on
a sustainable basis. As a good corporate citizen, CBI is
committed to the community in which it operates, and actively
participates in a broad range of CSR initiatives.

In driving its sustainability agenda in 2010, the Bank continued
to focus its CSR efforts on three established key themes —
nurturing youths to become future leaders while enhancing
the quality of education for underprivileged children, building
harmonious relationship with the environment and caring for
underserved communities.

Engagement is an essential part of CBI's approach to managing
its CSR mandate, and staff participation that takes many forms is
always encouraged. During the year, a total of 10,307 volunteer
service hours were logged for its activities in Hong Kong alone,
representing an average of over six hours per staff. Meanwhile,
total donation and spending in CSR projects summed to nearly
to HK$3 million.
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Leadership Development and Education

Dedicated to developing and nurturing human capital through
thought-provoking education, CBI continued to focus its effort
on enhancing the quality of education for children from
financially challenged families as an important means to help
relieve inter-generational penury. Four key sponsorships were
granted in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

CBI partnered with The Boys' & Girls' Clubs Association of Hong
Kong to launch “CBI-Children Talent Development Fund”for the
first time and received matched funding from the Social Welfare
Department’s Partnership Fund for the Disadvantaged
("SWDPFD") to support the initiative. The full HK$800,000 fund
provides financial support to 100 children from low-income
families so that they can enroll in relevant talent development
trainings or courses to cultivate their talents and build up their
confidence, competence and capacity which are the key
human assets to fight against poverty. The project will also
cover Live-Guide Programme and Talent Show cum
Appreciation Event.

For the third consecutive year, the Bank sponsored “CBI
Knowledge Angel Project” and once again received matched
funding from SWDPFD to run the initiative. This HK$1.23 million
project operated by St. James' Settlement aims to alleviate the
pressure of daily homework supervision for less-educated
parents with financial difficulties through the provision of free
tutorial sessions to 240 primary school students. The project
will also include an encouragement activity, an English Week,
an educational outing for students and parents, as well as
sponsorships to outstanding students to broaden their
exposure to extra-curricular activities during the summer
vacation.

In Mainland China, CBI aimed at providing learning
opportunities for underprivileged children. During the year, the
Bank sponsored World Vision Hong Kong to run the Senior High
School Grant & Teenagers Capacity Building Project in Yang
County of Shaanxi Province. The project would enable 100
financially-challenged students there to complete their high
school education through a three-year subsidy. It will also
increase their sense of social responsibility and equip them with
all-round capabilities by facilitating them to participate in
voluntary services as a way to give back to the society.

—B-TEEH
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In addition, CBI sponsored Fountainhead Association, a Hong
Kong-based Christian charitable organisation, to run English
summer camps for 95 Mainland students in Guangxi Province
in August.

The Bank also contributed to the Community Chest’s Corporate
and Employee Contribution Programme 2009/10 to benefit the
youth leadership programmes organised by its member
agencies.

Environmental Awareness and Sustainability

Climate change presents a fundamental challenge to our way
of life and is becoming an increasingly pressing issue for society.
CBI'is committed to growing in harmony with the society and
environment by reducing its own carbon footprint. Its green
programmes are initiated along the four key principles of its
environmental pledge: Energy Efficiency, Resource Efficiency,
Ethical Code of Conduct and Commitment to the Promotion of
Green Awareness, with the objective to promote environmental
protection awareness among the Bank's staff and the general
public of Hong Kong.

CBI firmly believes in the power of education to raise green
awareness, especially among the younger generation. Since
2008, CBI has been partnering with Green Power to launch
educational programmes to promote green awareness among
local schools. During the year, the Bank and Green Power put
together three green educational programmes including
Campus Rooftop Garden Programme, Friends of Polar Bear and
an eco-tour of Tai Po Kau Nature Reserve.

The Bank-sponsored Campus Rooftop Garden Programme — the
first project in the territory combining rooftop gardens and
trainings to foster the development of environmental education
in schools — was completed in 2010. With professional advice
and guidance from Green Power, three rooftop gardens in the
themes of herbs, butterflies and organic farming were
successfully built at the campus of HKICC Lee Shau Kee School
of Creativity in Kowloon, Baptist Lui Ming Choi Primary School
in the New Territories and Precious Blood Primary School (South
Horizons) in Hong Kong Island respectively. The rooftop
gardens serve as a “nature classroom” for students to learn
about ecology and participate in herbs gardening, breeding
butterflies and organic farming. The three schools will also
organise Open Days to promote the benefits of rooftop gardens
to the general public.
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Another innovative programme Friends of Polar Bear was jointly
launched by Green Power and DEER Theatre in local primary
schools in December 2010. This green educational programme
combined school competition and drama to raise sustainable
green awareness and interest among primary school students.
Primary school students were invited to sign up as members of
Friends of Polar Bear to learn more about ecology, conservation
and global warming through a dedicated website developed
by Green Power before joining Messages to Polar Bear
Competition. To further enhance their green awareness, Friends
of Polar Bear drama series would be staged by DEER Theatre in
2011 at 30 primary schools with the most participants in
Messages to Polar Bear Competition. All the participating
schools will also receive a DVD of the Friends of Polar Bear
drama.

During the year, the Bank also organised a series of internal
programmes to cultivate a “green” mindset among its staff.
These included CBI Green Day on 29 October encompassing
the distribution of healthy breakfast packets to all its staff, two
green talks, Green Creativity Competition and Green Dress
Competition, an organic dinner in December, the launch of
Helping Uncle Earth article series on the Bank's Enterprise
Information Portal, and the launch of Green Ideas Campaign to
encourage its staff to suggest environmental protection
initiatives which are practical and applicable to the Bank'’s office
environment.

On recycled usage and waste reduction, the Bank organised an
internal staff campaign to collect used books and toys for
Christian Action to re-distribute to the needy or sell at its charity
flea market to raise funds for its charitable services and
programmes.

Energy conservation is considered the most effective and
quickest way to alleviate global climate change and improve air
quality. The Bank launched PC Switch Off Campaign to
encourage its staff to turn off their computers after work to save
energy. In addition, the Bank joined Power Smart Campaign
2010 organised by Friends of the Earth (HK) ("FOE") between 15
June and 12 September 2010. The three-month campaign
aimed to encourage corporations and households to reduce
electricity consumption.

—B-TEEH
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To arouse staff awareness in nature preservation, CBI sponsored
20 staff members to form five teams to participate in Tree
Planting Challenge 2010 organised by FOE in April. The CBI
participants hiked on the 13-km trail to plant close to 200
seedlings along the Grassy Hill at Shing Mun Country Park.

In June, CBl appealed to its staff members to make donations to
support The Community Chest Green Day. The event
encouraged the general public to take a greener form of
transport and reduce the carbon footprint at workplace and, at
the same time, raise funds for The Community Chest.

Community Services and Donations

CBI's commitment to community service and donation ("CSD")
activities is a genuine reflection of its belief of giving back to
and benefiting the community it serves. The Bank’'s CSD
Committee, comprising of representatives from its business and
functional units is responsible for laying down and
implementing the Bank's CSD policies, and also approving and
coordinating related activities.

During the year, the Bank partnered with a number of charitable
organisations to implement various meaningful initiatives that
engaged broad-based voluntary staff participation to reach out
to underprivileged and needy groups in Hong Kong. Staff
across the Bank made active and generous contributions in
time and effort to support 18 initiatives. Highlights of these
initiatives include:

February — Participation in Green Power Hike 2010
organised by Green Power to raise funds for environmental
education.

Donation of household appliances and goods to new
arrivals and single-parent families via Christian Action
during the Chinese New Year.

March — Story-telling activity for new immigrant children
from Mainland China to celebrate the third anniversary of
CBI Libraries at two community centres of Christian Action
in Mongkok and Kowloon Bay.

Easter cookie making class for primary school students in
Tin Shui Wai.
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meOuu vard Journey to Inner Challenge

May — Green Kaleidoscope Making Workshop for children
to encourage their creativity and to promote green
awareness.

June — Dragon Boat Festival Luncheon Party cum a rice
dumpling making workshop for 60 elderlies living alone in
Tsuen Wan.

July — Summer Party and Movie Day for primary school
students from financially challenged families in Yau Tong.

August — Internal Food Drive to encourage staff donation
to support People’s Food Bank run by St. James' Settlement.

September — Mid-autumn Festival Luncheon Party and
gift packs for 65 elderlies living alone in Chai Wan.

Donation to Feed the Hungry for the provision of food and
education subsidy to Sichuan children.

November — Participation in Inner Challenge 2010
organised by Breakthrough Organisation to support fund-
raising for the outlays of youth development work.

Little Big Chefs at Sheung Shui Farm for children with
learning difficulties.

December — Christmas celebration parties for children
and elderlies with needs. These initiatives included special
Christmas gifts for children from Small Group Homes of
The Boys' and Girls' Clubs Association of Hong Kong, and a
knitting campaign where 145 bank staff members along
with their friends and families made 316 hand-knitted
neckerchiefs for elderlies living alone in the Yau Tsim Mong
district.

—B-TEEH
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Awards

To recognise CBI's commitment to caring for the community
and its efforts to establish good corporate citizenship, the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service awarded the Bank the Caring
Company logo for the eighth consecutive year in April 2011.
The Bank also received a Gold Certificate from the Social Welfare
Department’s Volunteer Movement in April 2011 for its
contribution of over 1,000 volunteer service hours in 2010.

A Focus on Vision, Opportunity and Positive Impact

CBI strongly believes that to achieve business success on a
sustainable basis, one needs to conduct business in a
responsible way. Sustainability challenges are stimuli for
innovation within the business. As a responsible corporate
citizen, the Bank will maintain the momentum of its CSR efforts
in 2011 and continuously identify and invest in meaningful
causes and initiatives to create value for the business,
customers, stakeholders and the society at large.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Dou Jianzhong

Chairman

Appointed as a Director of CITIC Bank International Limited
("the Bank”) on 25 November 2002 and was elected Chairman
on 17 October 2006. Mr. Dou is an Executive Director and Vice
President of CITIC Group, Chairman of CITIC Holdings Limited
and CITIC Prudential Life Insurance Co., Ltd., Non-executive
Director of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, Director and
Chief Executive Officer of CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited, Director of CITIC International Assets Management
Limited, Chairman of CIAM Group Limited and Director of
CITIC Capital Holdings Limited. Mr. Dou graduated from the
University of International Business and Economics, Beijing
in 1979 and obtained a Master Degree in Economics from
Liao Ning University. He was granted the prestigious title of
“Senior Economist” by CITIC Group. Mr. Dou was formerly the
President of CITIC Industrial Bank (now known as China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited) and has extensive experience in the
finance industry.

Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen

Chief Executive Officer

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 17 January 2002 and
was further appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Bank
on 16 April 2002. Mrs. Chan is a Director of CITIC Group, Non-
executive Director of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited,
Director, Managing Director and Alternate Chief Executive
Officer of CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited,
Chairman of HKCB Finance Limited, CITIC Insurance Brokers
Limited and CITIC Bank International (China) Limited. Prior
to joining the Bank, she was in charge of the retail banking
business for a major international bank in Hong Kong. Mrs.
Chan is also active in her support for non-profit organisations.
She is currently serving on the board of Haven of Hope
Christian Service and as a member of the Hospital Governing
Committee of the Haven of Hope Hospital. In addition,
Mrs. Chan is the Chairman of China Graduate School of
Theology and an appointed member of the Council and the
Finance Committee of Hong Kong Baptist University, and of
the Board of Governors of the Hong Kong Baptist University
Foundation.
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RERITERERAS
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Biographies of Directors

Mr. Jose Barreiro

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 3 December 2009.
Mr. Barreiro is a Non-executive Director of China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited and CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited. He is also a Director of Global Wholesale Banking and
Asset Management of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.
("BBVA”"), member of the Executive Committee of BBVA Group
and the board of directors of Bolsas y Mercados Espanoles and
Desarrollo Urbanistico Chamartin. Mr. Barreiro holds a Bachelor
Degree in Economics from the Universidad Complutense of
Madrid in Spain. He has extensive business connections and
experience in wholesale banking and finance.

Mr. Cao Guogiang

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 23 October 2009.
Mr. Cao is an Executive Vice President of China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited, a Non-executive Director of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited and a Director of
China Investment and Finance Limited. Mr. Cao has 22 years of
experience in China’s banking industry. Prior to joining China
CITIC Bank Corporation Limited in 2005, he had held various
senior positions at China Merchants Bank, including General
Manager of the Planning and Treasury Department at its
headquarters and at its Shenzhen Administrative Department
respectively. He had also worked at the Planning and Treasury
Department of the Shaanxi Branch of The People’s Bank of
China from July 1988 to June 1992. Mr. Cao graduated from
Hunan College of Finance and Economics with a Bachelor
Degree in Money and Banking. He received his Master Degree
in Money and Banking from Shaanxi College of Finance and
Economics.

Mr. Cao Tong

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 23 October 2009.
Mr. Cao is an Executive Vice President of China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited and a Non-executive Director of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Cao has 21 years
of banking experience in China. Prior to joining China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited in 2004, he had held various senior
positions at China Merchants Bank and had also worked at the
Beijing Branch of The People’s Bank of China from July 1990 to
January 1994. Mr. Cao graduated from Renmin University of
China with a Bachelor Degree in Economics as well as a Master
Degree in Finance.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Chang Zhenming

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 18 November 2006. Mr.
Chang is the Chairman of CITIC Group, Vice Chairman of China
CITIC Bank Corporation Limited and CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited, and Chairman of CITIC International Assets
Management Limited, CITIC Capital Holdings Limited and CITIC
Pacific Limited. He holds an MBA from the Insurance College
of New York and has over 20 years' broad range of experience
in banking, finance and securities business. Mr. Chang was
the Vice Chairman and President of China Construction Bank
Corporation during the period from September 2004 to July
2006.

Dr. Chen Xiaoxian

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 17 January 2005. Dr.
Chen is the Executive Director and Vice President of CITIC
Group, Director and President of China CITIC Bank Corporation
Limited, and a Non-executive Director of CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited. Dr. Chen is a mentor for doctoral
student and visiting professor of Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics, as well as visiting professor of Renmin
University of China. Before joining CITIC Group, Dr. Chen was
a director and Executive Vice President of China Merchants
Bank. Dr. Chen graduated from Renmin University of China
with a Bachelor Degree in Finance. He received his Master
Degree in Finance from Xinan University of Finance and
Economics and his Ph.D. in Finance from Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics. He is a “Senior Economist” and
has 28 years of extensive experience in banking. From 2005
to 2010 consecutively, Dr. Chen received the “China’s Top Ten
Finance Figures of the Year Award” from “The Chinese Banker”
magazine. He also received the “Top Ten New Leaders in
Finance of the Year Award” from the China International Forum
in 2006 and 2007.

Mr. Manuel Galatas

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 3 December 2009.
Mr. Galatas is a Non-executive Director of CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited and the General Manager for Asia
of BBVA. He has been working within BBVA Group since
1994. Mr. Galatas holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Business
Administration and International Finance from Georgetown
University in the United States. He was formerly the Chairman
of BBVA Switzerland. He has extensive business connections
and experience in private banking, asset management and in
banking services.
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CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Biographies of Directors

Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Credit & Risk Management Committee of the
Bank on 20 October 2003. Mr. Gil-Tienda is an Independent
Non-executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited and the Chairman of Marsh & McLennan Companies
Inc.in Asia. Mr. Gil-Tienda obtained a Bachelor Degree in
Philosophy, Politics and Economics from the Oxford University
and an MBA from the University of California, Berkeley. He was
formerly with Standard Chartered Bank and Citibank and has
over 25 years of banking experience.

Mr. Huang Yi Nick

Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Executive General Manager,
Wholesale Banking Group

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 1 July 2010. Mr. Huang is
also an Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Executive General
Manager of Wholesale Banking Group of the Bank. Mr. Huang is
a career banker with over 20 years of experience in the industry.
He started as a management associate at Citibank, and received
comprehensive exposure including various roles in corporate
and investment banking covering full range of banking
services from commercial bank to investment bank and asset
management. Mr. Huang also has extensive experience in the
Taiwan and PRC markets, and before joining the Bank, he was
Greater China Financial Institutions and China Public Sector
Head and Senior Credit Officer based in China for Citigroup. Mr.
Huang holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil Engineering
and Master of Business Administration Degree from National
Taiwan University.

Mr. Ju Weimin

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 25 November 2002.
Mr. Ju is an Executive Director, Vice President and the Chief
Financial Officer of CITIC Group, Chairman of CITIC Trust
Company Limited, and Non-executive Director of Asia Satellite
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, CITIC Pacific Limited,
CITIC Securities Co., Ltd, China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited
and CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Ju
graduated from the Renmin University of China with a Master
Degree in Accounting.
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Biographies of Directors

Mr. Kong Dan

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 25 November 2002.
Mr. Kong is the former Chairman of CITIC Group. He is now
the Chairman of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited and CITIC Resources
Holdings Limited. He holds a Master Degree in Economics
from the China Academy of Social Sciences. Mr. Kong had also
been the Vice Chairman and President of China Everbright
Group Limited, Vice Chairman of China Everbright Limited and
Chairman of China Everbright Technology Limited. He has
extensive business connections and experience in investment
and finance.

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Bank on 17 January 2002. Mr. Lam is the Vice Chairman of BOC
International Holdings Limited and the Independent Non-
executive Director of CITIC International Financial Holdings
Limited, China Overseas Land & Investment Limited, Fujian
Holdings Limited, Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited and Yuzhou
Properties Co., Ltd. He was formerly the Deputy Chief Executive
of Bank of China Hongkong-Macau Regional Office, Chairman
of Po Sang Bank Limited, Vice Chairman of Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited and a Director of Bank of China, BOC China
Fund Limited and Henderson China Holdings Limited. He has
over 40 years of continuous banking experience.

Mr. Gregoire de Lestapis

Non-executive Director

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 3 December 2009. Mr.
de Lestapis is the Managing Director of Wholesale Banking
and Asset Management in Latin America of BBVA. He has
been working with BBVA Group since 2002. Mr. de Lestapis
holds a Bachelor Degree in Finance and a Master Degree in
International Capital Markets respectively from the University
Paris IX Dauphine.
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RERITERERAS
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Biographies of Directors

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Bank on 1 September
2004. Mr. Tsang is also an Independent Non-executive Director
and Chairman of the Audit Committee of CITIC International
Financial Holdings Limited and two listed companies in Hong
Kong, namely Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited
and L. K. Technology Holdings Limited. He is a professional
accountant and a Fellow Member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, The Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators. Mr. Tsang was with KPMG for more than
27 years, where he was a senior banking partner until he retired
from the firm on 31 March 2003.

Mr. Tsim Tak Chee Archie

Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Director of Finance &
Corporate Planning

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 1 July 2010. Mr. Tsim
is also an Alternate Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Finance & Corporate Planning of the Bank. He is also the
Group Chief Financial Officer of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited. Mr. Tsim has over 26 years of experience
in the banking and finance industry. He started his career in
accounting and gained comprehensive exposure in financial
management, corporate finance and advisory, and business
operations, primarily from The Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited and The Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited. Prior to joining the Bank, he was the
Chief Financial Officer and Head of Finance & Administration of
The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Mr. Zhao Shengbiao

Executive Vice President and Country Head, U.S.A.

Appointed as a Director of the Bank on 25 November 2002. He is
now also the Executive Vice President and Country Head, US.A.
of the Bank and in charge of the overall business operations in
U.S.A. Further, Mr. Zhao is also an Executive Director of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. He graduated from
the University of International Business and Economics, Beijing
and obtained a Master Degree in Finance from the College
of Insurance, New York. He has over 30 years of experience
in international banking and worked in Beijing, London, Paris,
Hong Kong and New York.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Ms. Anna Li

Head of Audit

Joined the Bank in June 2005 as Head of Audit. Ms. Li holds
a MBA Degree from the University of South Australia and is
a Fellow Member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an Associate Member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She has over 27 years
of experience in auditing. Before joining the Bank, Ms. Li was
the Assistant General Manager and Head of Business Planning &
Development in Belgian Bank.

Mr.CY Ling

Director of Special Projects & Corporate Services

Joined the Bank in April 2003 as Senior Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer and was promoted to Executive Vice
President in November of the same year. Mr. Ling is now the
Director of Special Projects & Corporate Services of the Bank.
He has over 30 years of experience in information technology
and operations. Mr. Ling obtained a Bachelor Degree in Physics
from Williams College and a M.Sc. in Computers Sciences from
the University of Wisconsin. Before joining the Bank, Mr. Ling
was the Head of Operations, Consumer Banking of Standard
Chartered Bank.

Mr. Edmund Poon

Executive Vice President, Operations & Technology Group

Joined the Bank in October 2004 as Head of Operations and
was appointed as Head of Information Technology since June
2007. Mr. Poon is now an Executive Vice President, Operations
& Technology Group of the Bank. He has over 28 years of
experience in technology management, 21 years of which
was in financial or related industries. Before joining the Bank,
he had held various senior local and regional positions with
Standard Chartered Bank and IBM Canada Limited. Mr. Poon
holds a Bachelor and Master Degree in Mathematics (Computer
Science) from the University of Waterloo in Canada.
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RERITERERAS
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Jaime Azcoiti Leyva

Director of Risks

Joined the Bank in January 2009 as Director of Risks. Mr. Azcoiti
is responsible for managing risks of the Bank and developing
the tripartite strategic alignment. He has over 20 years of
experience in Risk Management. Mr. Azcoiti holds a Bachelor
Degree in Business Administration from Universidad Pontificia
de Comillas and a Bachelor Degree in Law from Universidad
Nacional de Educacion a Distancia in Spain. Before joining
the Bank, Mr. Azcoiti was Director of Risk for Global Clients &
Structured Finance in Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A.

Mr. John Lee

Executive Vice President, Human Resources Group

Joined the Bank in July 2006 as Senior Vice President. Mr. Lee
is now an Executive Vice President, Human Resources Group
of the Bank. He also serves as the Head of Group Human
Resources in CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited. Mr.
Lee holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics and a Master Degree
in Business Administration. He started his banking career
with Standard Chartered Bank in the information technology
function and served for 20 years in various management
positions in several business and support functions, including
consumer banking, human resources, and post-merger
integration in Asia Pacific. Before joining the Bank, Mr. Lee
headed the people development function in Mass Transit
Railway Corporation.

Ms. Margaret Man

Executive General Manager, China Banking Group

Joined the Bank in October 1998 as Senior Vice President.
Ms. Man is now an Executive General Manager, China
Banking Group of the Bank, and Vice Chairman of CITIC
Bank International (China) Limited. She has over 20 years of
experience in China banking. Ms. Man graduated from Shanxi
Financial and Economics University obtaining a Bachelor
Degree in Economics and further studied in the Graduate
School of the People’s Bank of China obtaining a Master Degree
in Banking and Finance. Ms. Man had been a Division Chief in
the People’s Bank of China ("PBOC") and worked for PBOC for 7
years in 1980's. Before joining the Bank, Ms. Man was a Deputy
Managing Director of China Venturetechno International Co.
Ltd.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Ms. Phoebe Wong

Executive General Manager, Retail Banking Group

Joined the Bank in November 2004 as Senior Vice President
and Head of Wealth Management & Strategic Planning. Ms.
Wong is now an Executive General Manager, Retail Banking
Group of the Bank. She has over 20 years of experience in retail
banking with exposure to the various retail customer segments,
different product disciplines as well as customer sales and
service management. Ms. Wong holds a Master Degree in
Business Administration from the University of Brunel and a
Bachelor Degree in Arts from the University of Hong Kong.
Before joining the Bank, Ms. Wong was the Head of Strategic
Partnership Development of Standard Chartered Bank.

Mr. Roy Huang

Alternate Chief Executive Officer, General Counsel and Head of
International Banking Group

Joined the Bank in November 2004 as Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Head of Compliance. Mr. Huang is now
an Alternate Chief Executive Officer, General Counsel and
Head of International Banking Group of the Bank. He is also
the Group General Counsel of CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited. Mr. Huang has over 25 years of experience in
legal and regulatory affairs in Hong Kong and the United States.
He graduated from the University of California, Berkeley and
Georgetown University Law School. Before joining the Bank,
Mr. Huang was partner in charge of legal affairs Asia-Pacific at
Andersen Worldwide.

Mr. Steve Wong

Chief Financial Officer

Joined the Bank in July 2005 as Chief Financial Officer. Mr.
Wong graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and is
a Fellow Member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and a member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries & Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute
of Company Secretaries. Before joining the Bank, Mr. Wong
held senior management positions in Chase Manhattan Bank,
Manhattan Card Company Limited and DBS Bank.
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Biographies of Senior Executives

Mr. Woody Chan

Treasurer

Joined the Bank in October 2008 as Treasurer. Mr. Chan is
responsible for the Bank's funding and liquidity management as
well as to spearhead the development of its global markets and
treasury business. He is a veteran banker with over 27 years of
experience in the treasury markets operations. Mr. Chan started
his career in the money markets operations of HSBC Hong Kong
and later progressed to head its balance sheet management
operations in Asia Pacific with functional responsibilities over
18 Asian sites. He was General Manager and Treasurer for Dah
Sing Bank in Hong Kong before joining the Bank. Mr. Chan
holds a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences from the University
of Hong Kong, a Master Degree in Applied Finance from
Macquarie University. He also holds the Chartered Financial
Analyst designation.
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Chairman

Mr. Dou Jianzhong

Executive Directors

Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Yi Nick (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tsim Tak Chee Archie (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhao Shengbiao

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jose Barreiro

Mr. Cao Guogiang

Mr. Cao Tong

Mr. Chang Zhenming

Dr. Chen Xiaoxian

Mr. Manuel Galatas

Mr. Ju Weimin

Mr. Kong Dan

Mr. Gregoire de Lestapis

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

Audit Committee

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul (Chairman)
Mr. Cao Guogiang

Mr. Manuel Galatas

Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Registered Office

232 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.
Tel: (852) 3603 6633

Fax: (852) 3603 4000
www.citicbankintl.com

Auditors

KPMG
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Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2010.

Change of Name

Pursuant to the written resolution of the Board of Directors passed on
7 May 2010, the company name was changed from CITIC Ka Wah Bank
Limited to CITIC Bank International Limited with effect from 7 May 2010

Principal Place of Business

CITIC Bank International Limited (“the Bank”) is a licensed bank
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office
at 232 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Bank operates overseas
branches in Macau, Shanghai, Cayman Islands, Singapore, New York and
Los Angeles.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) are
the provision of general banking and related financial services primarily in
Hong Kong. Particulars of the Bank’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2010 are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2010
and the state of the Bank's and the Group’s affairs at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 58 to 223.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
financial year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil).

Property and Equipment

Movements in property and equipment are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.
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PERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Directors

Reserves

Profit attributable to shareholders before dividends of HK$1,056,657,000
(2009: HK$952,899,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in the reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Bank during the financial
year are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2010 and up
to the date of this report are as follows:

Chairman
Mr. Dou Jianzhong

Executive Directors
Mrs. Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Yi Nick (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 1 July 2010)
Mr. Tsim Tak Chee Archie (Alternate Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 1 July 2010)
Mr. Zhao Shengbiao (Executive Vice President and Country Head, U.S.A.)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jose Barreiro

Mr. Cao Guogiang

Mr. Cao Tong

Mr. Chang Zhenming

Dr. Chen Xiaoxian

Mr. Manuel Galatas

Mr. Ju Weimin

Mr. Kong Dan

Mr. Gregoire de Lestapis

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Rafael Gil-Tienda

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu

Mr. Tsang Yiu Keung Paul

In accordance with Article 97 of the Bank’s Articles of Association, all
present Directors shall retire at the next Annual General Meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ Interests

At no time during the financial year was the Bank, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other body
corporate.

No contract of significance to which the Bank, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during the financial
year.

Compliance with Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2010
comply fully with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A

resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Bank is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Dou Jianzhong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
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PERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
CITIC Bank International Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CITIC Bank
International Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
set out on pages 58 to 223, which comprise the consolidated and the Bank
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2010, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31 December
2010 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-Z2F —EENF
2010 2009
B et BET T BT T
Note HKS$’000 HKS$'000
FEHA Interest income 4(a) 2,830,882 2,963,256
FEZH Interest expense 4(b) (1,018,087) (1,026,056)
BRI EWA Net interest income 1,812,795 1,937,200
ERKAESIA Fee and commission income 721,607 884,853
ERNEELH Fee and commission expense (30,877) (26,603)
FEARASWA Net fee and commission income 690,730 858,250
FR WA Net trading income 421,184 286,850
BT ARIBIERE A R Net gain/(loss) from financial instruments
MER T BT (EE) designated at fair value through profit or loss 23,152 (4,719)
R EE Net hedging loss (1,022) (3,734)
HETHBERFFE Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities 16,799 57,751
H i & WA Other operating income 10 42,551 62,463
L&A Operating income 3,006,189 3,194,061
R H Operating expenses 11 (1,452,197) (1,594,713)
HIBR BB 248 AT 2 8 Operating profit before impairment 1,553,992 1,599,348
BERERBRREMIRIBERERRE Impairment losses on loans and advances and
other accounts 13 (261,936) (558,895)
A & 35 R B B 18 o 13 Impairment losses written back on
available-for-sale securities 7 4
BEEE Impairment losses (261,929) (558,891)
mEER Operating profit 1,292,063 1,040,457
BAREBRERERME Impairment and write-down on capital
notes investments 23 (668,385) -
HE W KRB F R Net gain on disposal of property and equipment 521,672 42,948
KEYEEm WS Revaluation gain on investment properties 26(a) 14,858 36,116
B AR Profit before taxation 1,160,208 1,119,521
FTig %% Income tax 14 (103,551) (166,622)
REERER Profit for the year 15 1,056,657 952,899
BEERAITRRNER Attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank 1,056,657 952,899

65 B BIE 223 A B AN 5k — &b

HERTEBRERAE

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The notes on pages 65 to 223 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-TF —TTNF
2010 2009
B aE BT T BT T
Note HKS$'000 HKS$'000
AEERF Profit for the year 1,056,657 952,899
AEEHM2HEKE Other comprehensive income for the year
(RBREHIERER) (after tax and reclassification adjustments) 16
HBREFINE B R Al BB SRR &Y Exchange differences on translation of financial
N =% statements of overseas subsidiaries 22,430 (40,863)
HmEEGHHE Other property revaluation reserve
—KBHEMMEETDER — surplus on revaluation of other premises upon
KREMENEH R reclassification to investment properties - 7,719
—EHEHEMMEBEER - release of deferred tax liabilities upon
KEMEMEIRMN disposal of investment properties
RIEHIERE transferred from other premises 3,204 -
A HEES Available-for-sale securities
— AR BENES ~ change in fair value (121,018) 155,371
—HEREZNGFR — transfer to income statement on disposal (18,919) (59,546)
—HEREZERZFR — transfer to income statement on impairment 186,402 -
— R IR — transfer to deferred tax (7,660) (15,811)
64,439 46,870
AEEEHWEHAEE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,121,096 999,769
FEARTRRENESR Attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank 1,121,096 999,769

65 A B|E 223 A B A A — &b -

The notes on pages 65 to 223 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position

at 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-BF —“TTAF
2010 2009
LhEzs BT T BT T
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
EE Assets
e RIERTT » PRIBITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks
Hih e piiEmasTr and other financial institutions 18 21,225,122 6,898,339
EIRIT  PRIBITNEMES R Placements with and advances to banks,
HENTFAREERR central banks and other financial institutions 19 12,229,126 15,562,509
RHRMEEE Trading assets 20 1,633,657 1,783,875
5 R iBiRB R AR I Securities designated at fair value through
AR BEENES profit or loss 21 646,508 580,636
EEERRBR Loans and advances to customers and
N H Ath BR 1A other accounts 22 90,714,680 74,069,969
A HEEE Available-for-sale securities 23 20,857,745 20,073,727
%%& 51 Property and equipment 26
PE-C/ES — Investment property 159,250 183,192
—HE b KRG - Other property and equipment 582,496 845,147
AU B A I8 Tax recoverable 31(a 59,744 24,036
RIETIBE E Deferred tax assets 31(b) 100,573 101,355
EERH Total assets 148,208,901 120,122,785
ERkEE Equity and liabilities
IRIT M EMEREERN Deposits and balances of banks and
FRk&ERF other financial institutions 27 1,850,372 2,794,355
BEFEm Deposits from customers 28 113,466,113 94,240,980
RHRABAE Trading liabilities 29 1,477,528 1,108,009
BEITERE Certificates of deposit issued 30 6,985,054 3,693,598
BEEITERRE Debt securities issued 32 231,900 71,800
ANHATR IR Current taxation 31(a) 18,972 11,564
RIERIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 31(b) 2,197 1,718
HihBE&E Other liabilities 33 3,061,233 2,054,037
BEEAR Loan capital 35 7,763,729 3,916,017
=NELG Total liabilities 134,857,098 107,892,078
S Equity
% Share capital 36(a) 7,283,341 7,283,341
T Reserves 6,068,462 4,947,366
BEERAITRRN Total equity attributable to equity
RERAE shareholders of the Bank 13,351,803 12,230,707
EEkEEHE Total equity and liabilities 148,208,901 120,122,785
EEgR T ——F - A= THRENEEE o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2011.
PR 5 2 3t BR EEE EHER
Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen Huang Yi Nick Tsim Tak Chee Archie Wong Ho Sing Steve
EFFITHAER EFFEMFTHEH EFFREFTHAAL B e Es
Director and Chief Executive Officer Director and Alternate Chief Director and Alternate Chief Chief Financial Officer

Executive Officer Executive Officer

65 B B £ 223 A RIM ST B AT H5 R — 8517 -

The notes on pages 65 to 223 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

at 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-®F _—TTAF
2010 2009
Bt aE BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
BE Assets
He MERTT « PRIFITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks
HEih o msEnET and other financial institutions 18 20,686,359 5,944,423
EIRTT  PRIBIT R E AR Placements with and advances to banks, central
HEMNTFER LR banks and other financial institutions 19 9,000,325 14,206,596
RE5RGEE Trading assets 20 1,620,822 1,781,727
EERRBE R AR Securities designated at fair value through
AR BENES profit or loss 21 646,508 580,636
EFEERRBR Loans and advances to customers and
N EARRIR other accounts 22 81,362,775 65,795,733
Al EE S Available-for-sale securities 23 20,798,979 20,073,727
A NCIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 24 7,261,783 6,601,437
WEARIRE Investments in subsidiaries 25 1,274,990 1,270,250
I E IS E L] Property and equipment 26
—KEME - Investment property 133,897 157,800
—HAE KR — Other property and equipment 566,062 829,274
CIEEIR Rz Tax recoverable 31(a) 57,771 23,984
RIETIBE E Deferred tax assets 31(b) 89,169 93,567
EERH Total assets 143,499,440 117,359,154
ERREE Equity and liabilities
IRIT R EMEmEERN Deposits and balances of banks and
R R EEF other financial institutions 27 727,892 2,639,253
ZRER Deposits from customers 28 110,601,692 92,047,445
RHRAEEE Trading liabilities 29 1,464,497 1,107,049
EBITERE Certificates of deposit issued 30 6,985,054 3,693,598
RNERFR 1A Current taxation 31(a) 3,268 3,052
ELEFEAE Deferred tax liabilities 31(b) 487 8
HihBE Other liabilities 33 2,707,508 1,752,380
FETHTE A B FE Amounts due to subsidiaries 34 2,511,132 2,371,533
BEER Loan capital 35 5,791,576 1,938,661
=NEEEG Total liabilities 130,793,106 105,552,979
s Equity
fi% Share capital 36(a) 7,283,341 7,283,341
(et Reserves 36(b) 5,422,993 4,522,834
FEANARITIRERA Total equity attributable to equity
S shareholders of the Bank 12,706,334 11,806,175
ERkEEHEE Total equity and liabilities 143,499,440 117,359,154
BEEeN T ——F - A= T HIZELREREM o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2011.
PR 5 2 3t BR EER EHER
Chan Hui Dor Lam Doreen Huang Yi Nick Tsim Tak Chee Archie Wong Ho Sing Steve
EFFTHAEE EFFEMFTHEH BEFFEFTHAEH BI5aEE
Director and Chief Executive Officer Director and Alternate Chief Director and Alternate Chief Chief Financial Officer

Executive Officer Executive Officer

E65E FIE223 B MM B A Rk — b7 o The notes on pages 65 to 223 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

HE_Z-ZF+ _A=1T—HIFEUABEREML) for the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
%48
The Group
EXZE UXEf REEM HE fkEE
fite fite R iEER -REE (Hi&36(0)
RE  RORE EXEE -BEE  Exchange  Property Investment BB Regulatory REEF Total  EREE
Share Share  Capital  General differences revaluation revaluation ~Statutory  general  Retained  reserves Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits ~ (note 36(c)) equity
AT BETn B%Tn A%t B%Tn BETr RNTn A%Tn B%TR BT BfTr BETr
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKY000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000
201081818 At 1 January 2010 7283341 282,930 6,589 100,000 (15) 20932 (270,815) 6,567 57,099 4744079 4,947,366 12,230,707
BE010EHERES :  Changes in equity for 2010:
TEEEH Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 1,056,657 1,056,657 1,056,657
AEREM2AREAE  Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 22,430 3,204 38,805 - - - 64,439 64,439
TEE2ENGEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 22,430 3,204 38,805 - - 1,056,657 1,121,096 1,121,09
EeREEN Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 585 16531 (1) - -
REENEMEBNEE  Release of reserve upon disposal
of property - - - - - (19418) - - - 19,418 - -
20108128318 At 31 December 2010 7,283,341 282,930 6,589 100,000 22,415 4718 (232,010 11,802 73,636 5798382 6,068,462 13,351,803
R009%E1 A1 At 1 January 2009 5,583,341 282930 6,589 100,000 40848 20932 (350829) 3475 47236 379416 3947597 9530938
HEN09EMERED :  Changesin equity for 2009
REREN Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - - 089 9289 952899
REEEMRTRELE  Other comprehensive income
for the year - - - - (40,863) 7719 80,014 - - - 46870 46,870
TER2EYERE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - (40,863) 7719 80014 - - 952,899 999,769 999,769
BIRAEHR Issuance and allotment of shares 1,700,000 - - - - - - - 1,700,000
ERREER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 3092 9863 (12959 - -
RAEMEMERNHES  Release of reserve upon disposal
of property - - - - - (779 - - - 779 - -
#2009E 128318 At 31 December 2009 7283341 282930 6,589 100,000 (15) 20932 (270815) 6,567 57099 4744079 4947366 12,230,707

$65EF|F2238

HERTEBRERAE

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

R B AR B A HR R — B D o

The notes on pages 65 to 223 form part of these financial statements.



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2010

%‘/T/IZ\EE kv //Ibi?%

BE—ZZF+ A=+ HALFEUABEREMN)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—g-8F  ITNE

2010 2009
B aE BT T BETFT
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
i Operating activities
754 Al A Profit before taxation 1,160,208 119,521
JFREHEFHE Adjustments for non-cash items:
REEFRBRLEMRE Impairment losses on loans and advances and
ﬁﬁ}@ﬂﬁ other accounts 261,936 558,895
SRS REHEDE Impairment losses written back on available-for-sale securities 7 )
EARZRKRERERME Impairment and write-down on capital notes investments 668,385 -
HEMHEEFEHF NG Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities (16,799) (57,751)
HEME kBT Net gain on disposal of property and equipment (521,672) (42,948)
HEWESHIE Revaluation gain on investment properties (14,858) (36,116)
RS 5 Amortisation of deferred expenses 52,895 55,269
MERRETE Depreciation on property and equipment 74,778 75,428
BEEFBREWRA Dividend income from equity securities (4,660) (4,445)
REEARFEXH Interest expense on loan capital 355,904 229,600
0 =% Foreign exchange differences 51,757 (38,357)
2,067,867 1,859,092
"EEEEM ALY (Increase)/decrease in operating assets
[ E 57 B B3B38 A MR TT Placements with and advances to banks, central banks
R ERAT KR ELA B B A A and other financial institutions with original
TR maturity beyond three months 6,770,594 (6,354,262)
REIEAHBE3EANEE S Treasury bills with original maturity beyond three months (721,050) (20,385)
JREVERH @B B3E AR Certificates of deposit held with original maturity
FBFRE beyond three months 13,408 (1,344,057)
RHBREE Trading assets 150,218 281,871
BERBRBRARR Securities designated at fair value through
NHBENES profit or loss (65,872) (58,802)
BEERRBAREMERIE Loans and advances to customers and other accounts (16,957,496) 1,320,238
Al EES Available-for-sale securities 469,696 1,621,941
(10,340,502) (4,553,456)
meaEEmn/ (Bd) Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
RITREMEBEBEOHTTR Deposits and balances of banks and
MEF other financial institutions (943,983) 1,867,018
BPER Deposits from customers 19,225,133 (1,091,358)
RHBREE Trading liabilities 369,519 (277,877)
BEITFNE Certificates of deposit issued 3,267,812 (430,927)
BRITERKES Debt securities issued 160,100 61,178
HtaE Other liabilities 969,156 (2,195,805)
___________ 23,047,737 (2,067,771)
®E /(AR EEEBNESE Cash generated from/(used in) operations 14,775,102 (4,762,135)
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GERERERE) Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (cont'd)

HE_Z-ZF+-_A=+—RBIFEUNBEAELM) for the year ended 31 December 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—E-ZF “ETNF
2010 2009
BtsE BT BETFT
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
KA (AR)EEEKMWEEE  Cash generated from/(used in) operations 14,775,102 (4,762,135)
2R ES Income tax paid
EEBFIEH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (122,649) (2,622)
BEINRIE Overseas tax paid (14,415) (28,025)
KE/(BR)REEENEEEE  Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 14,638,038 (4,792,782)
REEK Investing activities
B R E AR A Dividends received from equity securities 4,660 4,445
BAME MR Purchase of property and equipment (111,023) (38,391)
HEMERZBEHRIE Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 859,585 57,277
REREEKNESEE Net cash generated from investing activities 753,222 23,331
mEE Financing activities
BT FTSFUA Proceeds from shares issued - 1,700,000
BITEBEARMERIE Proceeds from loan capital issued 3,876,200 -
Y HEBE AR B Interest paid on loan capital (352,284) (232,837)
BO BB TEKES Redemption of debt securities issued - (2,325,005)
®E/ ARREEBNRSTE Net cash generated from/(used in) financing
activities 3,523,916 (857,842)
RERBLSEEM CRAP)EE  Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,915,176 (5,627,293)
MB1ANEELRELSEER Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 11,988,356 17,615,649
M12B31EMIRERELEEER Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 38 30,903,532 11,988,356
REERELNRESREEIE Cash flows from operating activities included:
BUFH B Interest received 2,724,407 3,076,165
ERAE Interest paid (591,547) (918,864)
F658 2|F 223 B MM B AN Kk —ab M ° The notes on pages 65 to 223 form part of these financial statements.
FIERITEEERAQA

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

(a)

(b)

Principal Activities

The principal activities of CITIC Bank International Limited (“the Bank”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which materially affect the results or
comprise the assets and liabilities of the Group, are the provision of
banking and related financial services.

Significant Accounting Policies

CITIC Bank International Limited is a licensed bank incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office at 232 Des Voeux
Road Central, Hong Kong. The consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2010 comprise the Bank and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”).

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"), and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Bank. Note 3 provides information on
the changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

- financial instruments classified as trading, designated at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale (see note 2(e)(ii); and

- investment property (see note 2(h)).
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PERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (cont’d)

(c)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 47.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the income statement as
follows:

(i) Interestincome
Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments is
recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(c) Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Interest income (cont’d)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call
and similar options) but does not consider future credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Cash
rebates granted in relation to residential mortgage loans are
capitalised and amortised to the income statement over their
expected life.

For impaired loans, the accrual of interest income based on the
original terms of the loan is discontinued, but any increase in the
present value of impaired loans due to the passage of time is
reported as interest income.

Net income from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss and net trading income comprises all gains
and losses from changes in fair value (net of accrued coupon) of
such financial assets and financial liabilities, together with interest
income and expense and dividend income attributable to those
financial instruments.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the
corresponding service is provided, except where the fee is
charged to cover the costs of a continuing service to, or risk borne
for, the customer, or is interest in nature. In these cases, the fee
is recognised as income in the accounting period in which the
costs or risk is incurred and is accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Group
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial assets
are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate. When a loan commitment is not expected to
result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.
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PERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(c)

(d)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Revenue recognition (cont’d)

(iii) Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract
Finance income implicit in the finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognised as interest income over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of return, on the outstanding net investment in the leases
for each accounting period. Commission paid to dealers for
acquisition of finance lease loans or hire purchase contracts is
included in the carrying value of the assets and amortised to
the income statement over the expected life of the lease as an
adjustment to interest income.

(iv) Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is recognised
as other operating income in equal installments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(v) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment is quoted ex-dividend.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable
are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(d)

(e)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(e)(i)).

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, its investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (see note

2(1)).

Financial instruments

(i) Initial recognition
The Group classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The
categories are: fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale securities and other financial
liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price plus, in case of a
financial asset or financial liability not held at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets or issue of the financial liability.
Transaction costs on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed immediately.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on
the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A regular purchase or sale of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
using trade date accounting. Other financial assets and financial
liabilities are recognised using settlement date accounting.
From these dates, any gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded.
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CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(e) Financial instruments (cont’d)
(i) Categorisation

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition, but exclude those investments in equity
instruments that do not have a quoted market price and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial
liabilities which are acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of trading, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting (note 2(g))
are accounted for as trading instruments.

The Group has the option to designate its financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when:

- the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported
internally on a fair value basis;

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise;

- the asset or liability contains embedded derivatives that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required under the contract; or

— the separation of the embedded derivatives from the
financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and liabilities under this category are carried at
fair value. Changes in the fair value are included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise. Upon disposal or
repurchase, the difference between the net sale proceeds or the
net payment and the carrying value is included in the income
statement.



BT IR M

Notes to the Financial Statements

2 FESHBERE)

2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(e) £ET A ()

(i) 7 (&)

(e) Financial instruments (cont’d)
(ii) Categorisation (cont’d)

BN ERIA

BN PR BR TR A5 BB (B 5E s TR RE A
RELEEETSHRENFTLEEHME
B - HERR T () AR SR B AN S RE B A
HEMBIRRFIERZAE + )AL
BRVIAHERR EEE ABBRE AR
RAREBEKAIHEES  HOAXKHE
Al RE AW H A A #B H1R 1 E (B
EEREBCmMEEKREERIN IS
BRAIHEE - ERNERRRTIES
REFERRBRAERTT - PRI|IT
REMESREEBNEAR - WIRAERF
XK - WA SR ERE(IE)
(2BAMTE20) R IR -

AT ER S
AHERSRET AN fEERITE
257 bt — @ —ER R M FEOTAE
TREE - BEEETEHRRITEN
TREE  HRIBERERBES T KL
SRR MHE -

AHHERFRRAAEEYIR - KW
B E MG I8 B Fro| SR EE
1BRSNE BB AT WS R ERI - AR
nEEESHMmES 2 AERKE LER
REfMEERE AR - WEREZAD
FRET

B AR AR A RRTISHRE -
MERABET TEEAISFNE B2A
PR NITE TABEB BRI X &
HFMEE  ZRREEFRERKAR
EZREER(E) (2HME20) &5
BE o

WHERHLEES - HEREER
BIEFHEMSHRRARAEFNE
B ULBEERSELEmE S R
AAAABEABAREREN D AME
AMERFK

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market, other than (a) those that the Group intends to
sell immediately or in the near term, which will be classified
as held for trading; (b) those that the Group, upon initial
recognition, designates at fair value through profit or loss or as
available-for-sale; or (c) those where the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration, which will be classified as available-for-sale.
Loans and receivables mainly comprise loans and advances to
customers, and placements with and advances to banks, central
banks and other financial institutions. Loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)).

Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are non-derivative financial assets that
are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in any
of the other two categories above. They include financial assets
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, but which
may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in the
market environment.

Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value. Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary items such as debt
securities which are recognised in the income statement.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity securities are carried at cost
less impairment losses, if any (see note 2(1)).

When the available-for-sale securities are sold, gains or losses
on disposal include the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying value, and the accumulated fair
value adjustments which are previously recognised in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified from equity to the
income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(e) Financial instruments (cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Categorisation (cont’d)

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets are
priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities are priced at
current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial instruments, or
if the market for it is not active, the fair value of the instrument
is estimated using valuation techniques that provides a reliable
estimate of prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the end of the
reporting period applicable for an instrument with similar terms
and conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are
based on market data at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where
the financial asset together with substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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(vi) Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined)
instrument that includes both the derivative and a host contract
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. The
embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract
and accounted for as a derivative when (a) the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to the host contract; and (b) the hybrid (combined)
instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies of
financial instruments (see note 2(e)(ii)).

(f) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
these securities at a certain later date at a fixed price (repurchase
agreements) are retained in the financial statements and measured in
accordance with their original measurement principles. The proceeds
from the sale are reported as liabilities and are carried at amortised
cost.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase
agreements) are reported not as purchases of the securities, but as
receivables and are carried in the statement of financial position at
amortised cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements are recognised as interest income
or interest expense respectively, over the life of each agreement using
the effective interest rate method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(9) Hedging
Hedge accounting recognises the offsetting effects on profit or

loss of changes in the fair values of the hedging instrument and

the hedged item. The Group assesses and documents whether the

financial instruments that are used in hedging transactions are highly

effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged

items attributable to the hedged risks both at hedge inception and

on an ongoing basis. The Group discontinues prospectively hedge

accounting when (a) the hedging instrument expires or is sold,

terminated or exercised; (b) the hedge no longer meets the criteria for

hedge accounting; or (c) the Group revokes the designation.

(i)

(ii)

Fair value hedge

A fair value hedge seeks to offset risks of changes in the fair value
of recognised asset or liability that will give rise to a gain or loss
being recognised in the income statement.

The hedging instrument is measured at fair value, with fair value
changes recognised in the income statement. The carrying
amount of the hedged item is adjusted by the amount of the
changes in fair value of the hedging instrument attributable
to the risk being hedged. This adjustment is recognised in the
income statement to offset the effect of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised, the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, or the Group revokes designation of the hedge
relationship, any adjustment up to that point, to a hedged item
for which the effective interest rate method is used, is amortised
to the income statement as part of the recalculated effective
interest rate of the item over its remaining life.

Hedge effectiveness testing

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group carries out
prospective effectiveness testing to demonstrate that it expects
the hedge to be highly effective (prospective effectiveness)
at the inception of the hedge and throughout its life. Actual
effectiveness (retrospective effectiveness) also needs to be
demonstrated on an ongoing basis.
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2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
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(ii) Hedge effectiveness testing (cont’d)
The documentation of each hedging relationship sets out how
the effectiveness of the hedge is assessed. The method which
the Group adopts for assessing hedge effectiveness will depend
on its risk management strategy.

For fair value hedge relationships, the Group utilises the
cumulative dollar offset method as effectiveness testing
methodologies.

For prospective effectiveness, the hedging instrument must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes
in fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during
the period for which the hedge is designated. For actual
effectiveness, the changes in fair value or cash flows must offset
each other in the range of 80 per cent to 125 per cent for the
hedge to be deemed effective.

(h) Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
and/or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(j)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land and
buildings held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in the income statement. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 2(c)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if
it were held under a finance lease (see note 2(j)(ii)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments
are accounted for as described in note 2(c)(iii).

—E-TEER
Annual Report 2010

075



076

BT IR M

(i)

TEETEHERE)

HitpMERRE
ELUMBHRRRRBEBETMAGHEM
MABEERE 165 WE - BE LR
] FBBARFIE M BE IR RE - &
VTEEAGEHEHREEE-NLNLAF A
=+ B AT e B 1S ¥Rk M DA E (R B S
REEMMENAAEE -

IR IE/E T ﬁEEMW$M%?%%&
REER (A ) (2RIMEE20)) 5K

— REELTHPEHES BNEFWHIIER
A AT E (2K 6i) 5 &

— HibREHEE -

BEBRMENEGREY KT AEMLSE

mkmA - WEBGTOMEEHREBHA
DFERET o FISMERIT :

— EEM[MBBAEER  RNRERIENS
RRNBBATREGBREEM
FARRNES &

- EER[RBRAESRE  FARERANE
BAABEBAEREREREE SN
BARIHNBEHEIE o

HEILEMELRFBEREMEENER
AL ERMSHRER B MREE RN E
BET  URmEIHEEREKRERA
MR - (RN E L BB HELRFR
BARB G - MIFEHFDBEWERA ©

PERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

U]

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Other property and equipment

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has been taken
of the transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
"Property, plant and equipment”, issued by the HKICPA, with effect that
other premises which are carried at revalued amounts in financial
statements relating to periods ended before 30 September 1995 have
not been revalued to fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The following items of property and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any (see note

2(0):

- buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land
classified as held under operating leases (see note 2(j)(iii)); and

-  otheritems of equipment.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held for own use
are generally dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property revaluation reserve.
The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to the
income statement to the extent that it exceeds the amount held
in the reserve in respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to the
income statement to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in
respect of that same asset had previously been charged to the
income statement.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and
are recognised in the income statement on the date of retirement
or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to the
income statement.
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0]

1)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Other property and equipment (cont’d)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items
of property and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives as
follows:

- freehold land is not depreciated.

- leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

- buildings — over 30 years or the unexpired terms of the land
leases, whichever is shorter.

- furniture, fixtures and equipment — 3 to 10 years.

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Leases and hire purchase contracts

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of the
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of leased assets
Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as operating leases.

(ii)  Finance leases
Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the net investment in the lease is included in
the statement of financial position as loans and advances to
customers. Hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of
finance leases are accounted for in the same manner as finance
leases. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with

the accounting policy as set out in note 2(1).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(j) Leases and hire purchase contracts (cont’d)

(iii) Operating leases

Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases,
the assets are included in the statement of financial position
according to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated
in accordance with the Group'’s depreciation policies, as set out
in note 2(i). Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(l). Revenue arising
from operating leases is recognised in accordance with the
Group's revenue recognition policies, as set out in note 2(c)(iv).

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to income
statement in equal installments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
income statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made.

(k) Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group may take
repossession of assets held as collateral through court proceedings
or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers. Where it is
intended to achieve an orderly realisation of the impaired assets
and the Group is no longer seeking repayment from the borrower,
repossessed assets are reported in “Other assets”.

Repossessed assets are recognised at the lower of the carrying
amount of the related loans and advances and fair value of such
amounts less costs to sell at the date of exchange. They are not
depreciated or amortised.

Impairment losses on initial classification and on subsequent
remeasurement are recognised in the income statement.



BT IR M

U

FTEETEHERE)

BEERE
AEEEBEEERERHNEENERKES
B URERSHRELNRETR - &
MEERENTBIRBREAEELIEE
BRANTEA—RkZREBREHNAH
REUE - WHBEHA SEM AN EERNR
KREREBRETE -

— BTARETA LT EANIMEEE ;

— ERAH WHRRAERAEHK

— BRARAEEBRKESEMUEES
8

— BT - TS - EESCAERE LIRSS
FABKEETENEAZE)

— TREERMENHEmKEERTS
K

— REZTANREBRZIRAKEER
PR

MREBEFEETR - RATHESE
BERERAIIZMRDEETRE S
B o

BEBXSERPIHERNEE - B
AR ET B 10 B KU B UL AR TR E R RO ORL
BERAME - A EERR QAT A - B
PRAIBEMEBERIERSN - EERIFBAT
MEBXSRALEFRRKCE - EXEE
R E B AT BE MR - 1R AT AT I
O ) SRR (R & BT i & R B IR IE
BZERAN/RERHEMEEBRATAE
MERBELSER - HRWEEFTEA
EEENBESEEGRED - EERN
Hfth 8 3 A1 H 1R W B F 51 B 5 0% 35 10 B
RS RAER

Notes to the Financial Statements

U]

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the Group's assets are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events which has an
impact on the future cash flows on the assets that can be estimated
reliably:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the borrower;

- disappearance of an active market for financial assets because of
financial difficulties; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to the
estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the income
statement.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of loans
and receivables, which are measured at amortised cost, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against loans and receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that borrower/
investment are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in the income statement.
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2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

() EEREGE) () Impairment of assets (cont’d)
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Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets). Receivables with
a short duration are not discounted if the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two components:
individual impairment allowances and collective impairment
allowances.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management’s best estimate of the present value of the cash
flows which are expected to be received discounted at the
original effective interest rate. In estimating these cash flows,
management makes judgements about the borrower’s financial
situation and the net realisable value of any underlying collateral
or guarantees in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset is
assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective impairment allowances,
management uses statistical modelling and considers factors
such as credit quality, portfolio size, concentrations, and
economic factors. In order to estimate the required allowance,
the Group makes assumptions both to define the way the Group
models inherent losses and to determine the required input
parameters, based on historical experience and current economic
conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

U]

Impairment of assets (cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Loans and receivables (cont’d)

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group makes
depends on how well the Group can estimate future cash
flows for individually assessed impairment allowances and
the model assumptions and parameters used in determining
collective impairment allowances. While this necessarily involves
judgement, the Group believes that the impairment allowances
on loans and advances to customers are reasonable and
supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates that
can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the write-
down, will result in a change in the impairment allowances on
loans and receivables and be charged or credited to the income
statement. A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
loans and receivables’ carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan and
the related interest receivables are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans that
have been restructured due to deterioration in the borrower’s
financial position and where the Group has made concessions
that it would not otherwise consider. Renegotiated loans and
receivables are subject to ongoing monitoring to determine
whether they remain impaired or past due.

Available-for-sale securities

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
security is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to the income statement.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in the
income statement is the difference between the acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

)

Impairment of assets (cont’d)
(ii) Available-for-sale securities (cont’d)

(iii)

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are carried
at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the equity securities and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Such impairment losses are not reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through the
income statement. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the income statement.

Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property and equipment (other than properties carried at
revalued amounts); and

- investments in subsidiaries and associates.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(I) Impairment of assets (cont’d)
(iii) Other assets (cont’d)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

- Reversal of impairment losses
In respect of assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversal of
impairment losses are credited to the income statement in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment
The Group prepares an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the year (see note 2(1)).

(m) Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents are short-terms, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(n) Employee benefits

(i) Employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(ii) Staff retirement scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund and a
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Contributions are charged
to the income statement as and when the contributions fall due.

(0) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
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(o) Income tax (cont’d)
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Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available. Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(o) Income tax (cont’d)

(p)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the Group or
the Bank has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group or the
Bank intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

-  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transactions
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2

(p)

(a)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Translation of foreign currencies (cont’d)

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are included in gains
less losses from trading securities or financial instruments designated
at fair value through profit or loss. All other exchange differences
relating to monetary items are presented as gains less losses from
dealing in foreign currencies in the income statement. Differences
arising on translation of available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to the income statement when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee to customers, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees received)
is initially recognised as deferred income within other liabilities.
Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to its subsidiaries, the
fair value of the guarantee is estimated and capitalised as the cost
of investment in subsidiaries and deferred income within other
liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (cont’d)

The deferred income is amortised in the income statement over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(q)(ii) if and when (a) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (b) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in other liabilities in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Bank has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(r) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered

to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(r)

(s)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Related parties (cont’d)

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent, or a close family member of such
an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the partyis a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is
an entity under the control, joint control or significant influence
of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group, the Group's parent or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current assets (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if it
is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather that through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above criteria for classification as
held for sale are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement
of the non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with
the accounting policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets
(except for certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far
as the financial statements of the Group and the Bank are concerned
are deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures) and investment properties. These assets, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with the policies
set out elsewhere in note 2.

—E-TEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(s)

(t)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Non-current assets held for sale (cont’d)

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in the
income statement. As long as a non-current assets is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of amendments
to HKFRSs and two new interpretations that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group and the Bank. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

—  HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations

- Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial
statements

- Amendments to HKFRS 5, Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations — plan to sell the controlling interest in a

subsidiary

- Amendment to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement - eligible hedged items
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3 Changesin Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)
HK(IFRIC) 17, Distributions of non-cash assets to owners
HK(Int) 5, Presentation of financial statements — classification

by the borrower of a term loan that contains a repayment on
demand clause

The amendment to HKAS 39 and the issuance of HK(Int) 5 have
had no material impact on the Group's financial statements as the
amendment and the Interpretation’s conclusions were consistent
with policies already adopted by the Group. The other developments
resulted in changes in accounting policy but none of these changes in
policy have a material impact on the current of comparative periods,
for the following reasons:

The impact of the majority of the revisions to HKFRS 3, HKAS
27, HKFRS 5 and HK(IFRIC) 17 have not yet had a material effect
on the Group's financial statements as these changes will first
be effective as and when the Group enters into a relevent
transaction (for example, a business combination, a disposal of a
subsidiary or a non-cash distribution) and there is no requirement
to restate the amounts recorded in respect of previous such
transactions.

The impact of the amendments to HKFRS 3 (in respect of
recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets) and HKAS 27
(in respect of allocation of losses to non-controlling interests
(previously known as minority interests) in excess of their equity
interest) have had no material impact as there is no requirement
to restate amounts recorded in previous periods and no such
deferred tax assets or losses arose in the current period.

The amendment introduced by the Improvements to HKFRSs
(2009) omnibus standard in repsect of HKAS 17, Leases, resulted
in a change of classification of certain of the Group's leasehold
land interests located in the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, but this had no material impact on the amounts
recognised in respect of these leases as the lease premiums in
respect of all such leases are fully paid and are being amortised
over the remaining length of the lease term.

The Group has not applied any new standards or interpretations that
are not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 49).
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(a) FEWBA

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 Interest Income and Interest Expense

(a) Interestincome

—B-BE —TTNF
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHES Listed securities 87,863 204,430
FEEMES Unlisted securities 362,308 416,787
HAh (B 53) Others (Note) 2,380,711 2,342,039
ERARBEMABENESREE Interest income on financial assets that are not
B B WA at fair value through profit or loss 2,830,882 2,963,256
(b) FEXH (b) Interest expense
—E-TF —ZETNF
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
P RIT N HMSREENIER Deposits from customers, banks and other
BT REREM financial institutions, certificates of deposit
issued and others 661,915 796,414
BEBITEKRES Debt securities issued 268 42
BEBITERER Loan capital issued 355,904 229,600
ERARBEFABENESREE Interest expense on financial liabilities
KA B3 that are not at fair value through profit or loss 1,018,087 1,026,056
Hep - Of which:
BEE BT NHMOESREENTER Deposits from customers, banks and other
BETEAEREMNAELAZEE  financial institutions, certificates of deposit
issued and others repayable after 5 years 4,277 -
BRTEEERNNAFUEER Loan capital issued repayable after 5 years 139,980 -

B

R

BE_ZT-ZF+_A=+t—HIFE &
WA BIERE S B EE BN ERAEE

26,598,0007C ( ZZEZT NLAF « B #2,364,0007T)

B RRERERRTRERD N SBMALE

8,817,0007C( ZZEZ L © B 1,874,0007T) °

RERITERERAE
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Note:

<

Included in the above is interest income accrued on impaired financial assets
of HK$26,598,000 (2009: HK$2,364,000), which includes interest income on
= unwinding of discount on loan impairment losses of HK$8,817,000 (2009:
HK$1,874,000) for the year ended 31 December 2010.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FEARBESWA 5 Net Fee and Commission Income
—E-2F —ITTNF
2010 2009
BET T BT TT
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
ERNASWA Fee and commission income:
E3E Y Bills commission 76,117 67,646
(BN RPN Cards related income 21,554 24,020
—MRERTTARTS General banking services 65,480 74,201
Rbg Insurance 136,667 116,391
WEREBEREER Investment and structured investment products 101,176 86,089
BER - -BEXLREER Loans, overdrafts and facilities fees 319,950 515,678
HAth Others 663 828
721,607 884,853
ERNMEEYH Fee and commission expense (30,877) (26,603)
690,730 858,250
Hr Of which:
FERRBAERACTEERETE Net fee and commission income (other than
BERMNENSE) - BRIIE the amounts included in determining
BRAREEF ABRERD the effective interest rate) relating to
TRMEERAE: financial assets and liabilities not at
fair value through profit or loss:
—BRAMASHA ~ Fee and commission income 341,504 539,698
—EBRAMMEEI T - Fee and commission expense (14,286) (12,511)
327,218 527,187
EBRXZUWA 6 Net Trading Income
—E-BF _—TTAF
2010 2009
BT T BT TT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B E NS 2SR E 18 Gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies 280,634 209,751
BERX AR FSNERER Gains less losses from trading securities (25,008) (909)
Hi4h B F)EBW S RE R Gains less losses from other dealing activities 168,338 65,791
RE5ABEEENBIWA Interest income on trading assets
—3ETm - Unlisted 77 12,217
THBENEXHE Interest expense on trading liabilities (2,857) -
421,184 286,850
—z-z55H
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7 BEERBRBSEURRAAEBENS

Notes to the Financial Statements

7 Net Gain/(Loss) from Financial Instruments Designated

T BFa S (E5i8) at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
—EBE-BF —ZTTNF
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS'000
IS (EiE) Net gain/ (loss) 3,898 (19,354)

B WA Interest income
—Em — Listed 4,953 5,749
—3ELET — Unlisted 14,343 12,170
FEXZH Interest expense (42) (3,284)
23,152 (4,719)
8 FEITEE 8 NetHedging Loss

—g-8F -—TThF
2010 2009
BET T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS'000
DR BEESHRFER Net loss on fair value hedge 1,022 3,734

9 HEHHERSFWRE

9 Net Gain on Disposal of Available-for-sale Securities

—E-2F —ITTNF
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
RRABEESERNFEHKE Net revaluation gain transferred from reserves 18,919 59,546
FENEARNFER Net loss arising in current year (2,120) (1,795)
16,799 57,751
FIERITEEERAQ R

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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10 HfEElA

Notes to the Financial Statements

10 Other Operating Income

—g-F _—TTNE

1 &

2010 2009
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
At ERRFESFREWMA Dividend income from available-for-sale
equity securities
— k™M ~ Listed 100 85
—3FEm™ ~ Unlisted 4,560 4,360
KEYHERSWARBEE S L - Rental income from investment properties
B #242,000C( ZEZENF ¢ less direct outgoings of HK$242,000
7 #322,0007T) (2009: HK$322,000) 3,970 4,202
HAh, Others 33,921 53,816
42,551 62,463
gl 11 Operating Expenses
—E-BF CZTTNHF
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
(a) BIRA (a) Staff costs
FEeRHEMETKA Salaries and other staff costs 852,554 721,253
RSB (KEE37) Retirement costs (note 37) 50,368 48,514
902,922 769,767
(b) #TE (b) Depreciation
M KR YT E (MiiE26(@)) Depreciation of property and equipment
(note 26(a))
—BECEHERENEE — Assets held for use under operating leases 9,034 13,054
—HhEE ~ Other assets 65,744 62,374
74,778 75,428
() HibR&E X H (c) Other operating expenses
S EYSE L) Property and equipment expenses
(TBREFE) () (excluding depreciation) (note (ii))
—MERS — Rental of properties 110,119 88,843
—Hfth - Others 90,544 79,462
% EREM B & Auditor's remuneration 5,292 4,924
BEE Advertising 44,780 29,937
BB - BRI R XEA @ Communication, printing and stationery 59,298 61,429
FREMREEXER Legal and professional fees 35,204 31,247
Al (BFE() Others (Note (i) 129,260 453,676
________________________ 474,497 749,518
RELTH4EEE Total operating expenses 1,452,197 1,594,713

—E-BEEH |09
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Notes to

the Financial Statements

11 Operating Expenses (cont’d)

Note:

0]

On 22 July 2009, the Bank entered into an agreement with the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA"), the Securities and Futures
Commission and 15 other distributing banks under which the Bank
would offer to eligible customers to repurchase structured investment
products, known as Lehman Brothers (“LB") Minibonds subscribed or
purchased through the Bank (“the Repurchase Scheme”). The Group has
provided for a total amount of approximately HK$298,000,000 for the
years of 2009 and 2008 regarding LB Minibonds compensations which
were under the Repurchase Scheme together with related expenses
for funding the recovery of the collaterals by the trustee. No additional
provision on LB Minibonds was made by the Group in 2010.

Included in other operating expenses are minimum lease payment
under operating leases of HKS$1,371,000 (2009: HK$3,646,000) for hire of
equipment and HK$104,450,000 (2009: HK$84,157,000) for hire of other
assets (including property rentals).

104,450,0007T ( =TT N F « ##84,157,000
JL) °
12 EEfHE 12 Directors’ Remuneration
BIEEBCATUEN)E 161 183 52 1) &= Sl Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
2T Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
—g-2F —TTANF
2010 2009
BT T BT IT
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
=Rk Directors’ fees 2,395 2,395
4 BB EWHZE(MEEOZEG))  Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind (Note (i) to (iii)) 12,384 14,499
By IETE4L Discretionary bonuses 4,637 6,342
RIRETEI R Retirement scheme contributions 754 490
20,170 23,726

PERITERERAE
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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12 EEME(A)

GRS

0]

(ifi)

RIZTZNFFE  AEERTEEEB
Medium term Equity Linked Performance Bonus
(ImEPBI)ETEI fg’gtiﬂﬂﬁﬁ$
%lﬁﬁ{”ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬂ%%%uiﬁiﬂ
HEW - RBUEE4,501,0007THR U,aﬁ
AL IRIBZATBIER ER - E—TFE XN
,%ﬁ%zoooooom’m (CFTNEF B
#4,501,0007CHIR) e RZTENFR - A H
8B X T MEPB ° E’Xfﬁﬂkz R-ZTENF
A —IERTH B A AR RT 8 (e T
) BRPHEREFEHN - —TTNFR
TE-EERTRATEEFNRSE DR
TR

RZE—FF  —EB-RAEREEBHER
Special Recognition Avvard (SRADEZ=ZZZ N,
FENRBMBET - R -LEEHHER
7 #5208,0007T ©

—BFORHABFHAZ(HEDER
T NFRIE - RIBEEFE - A5
BALTBERT —EHEMIGERE - EERE
M ABURR T E BB FATTEENERR
BEAE REEEBMHT RZT—F
FAEE190000007C(ZETNE « B
4,000,0007T)EFHEEE TAA » WRIERE
BERAIEEE -

Notes to the Financial Statements

12 Directors’ Remuneration (cont’d)

Note:

(i)

(if)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the executive directors of the
Group were granted deferred payment bonuses in form of cash benefits
("the Grant”) amounting to HK$4,501,000 under the Group's Medium-
term Equity Linked Performance Bonus (“MEPB”) scheme based on
their performance in the year of 2007. Under the terms of the scheme,
HK$2,000,000 was paid in 2010 (2009: HK$4,501,000 paid). No MEPB was
granted since 2009. Instead, a new retention incentive (using a deferred
mechanism) named as Medium Term Reward ("MTR") has been launched
in 2009. The bonus granted in 2009 and 2010 would be payable to the
executive directors in 2011 and 2012 respectively.

A one-off retention award, namely Special Recognition Award ("SRA”")
was granted in 2010 based on the performance in the year of 2009. Cash
benefits amounting to HK$208,000 were paid in 2010.

A new long term incentive scheme (“LTI") has been approved in
2009. Under the scheme, eligible persons will be granted a number of
Appreciation Rights. Payment for each Appreciation Right is determined
by the appreciation in the Bank’s book value over the performance
period of 3 years. In 2010, HK$19,000,000 (2009: HK$4,000,000) has been
accrued in the staff costs including the amount payable to the directors
based on management best estimation.

—B-TEEH
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B sR R 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

13 ERRBRRHMREREREE 13 Impairment Losses on Loans and Advances and Other
Accounts
—E-TF —TTNF
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS'000
BEEELERE - Impairment losses charged for
— BER KRB — Loans and advances (200,807) (556,948)
— HMARIE — Other accounts (61,129) (1,947)
(261,936) (558,895)
EREBREEMMERIERESE Impairment losses on loans and advances
(BFEE22(b)) and other accounts (note 22(b))
— & BIFEH — Individual assessment (207,078) (467,485)
— FEFHE — Collective assessment (54,858) (91,410)
(261,936) (558,895)
Heh (fiaE22(b)): of which (note 22(b)):
— FIRE — Additions (307,927) (666,670)
— B — Releases 25,315 21,703
— WEeEE — Recoveries 20,676 86,072
(261,936) (558,895)

098 | RIFIRITEIRBMRAF
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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14 IREWBRIRAER

(a) HFEWEHRTRIFAED

Notes to the Financial Statements

14 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement

(a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement

(b)

—B-BF —TTNF
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
AHHE -BFERBH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
FREE(HE31@Q) Provision for the year (note 31(a)) 88,073 159,660
I8 1 F 2 7 78 E 4 [0 13 Over-provision in respect of prior years (80)
87,993 159,660
REAFE - BN IE Current tax - overseas
FREE Provision for the year 20,658 12,849
BEFEHIEER (D), iz (Over)/ Under-provision in respect of prior years (2,417) 2,812
18,241 15,661
ERERIE Deferred tax
it =2 0] (M FE31(b)) Reversal of temporary differences (note 31(b)) (2,683) (8,699)
103,551 166,622

—E-TFEEFEN

16.5%) 5t &
ERRRBEREE

BiIAX HEREFHRFRE AR R EHRK

SHRBRIBRAFE M
FHERBOG MR E165%( —FF
o INDTT R HTB A B TRIA R
RITHRIERES -

(2009: 1

current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2010 is calculated at 16.5%
6.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
for overseas branches and subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

¥ ERR applicable tax rates
—E-Z2F —IZTTNF
2010 2009
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
5t Bl A Profit before tax 1,160,208 1,119,521
RABBBERERMERERE Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated
ay:Ibeil EOEZE-F5 at the rates applicable to profits in the countries
concerned 197,219 196,838
ARl HIR S KR TE s 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 27,759 22,537
JEFERFI U A BRI s 2 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (115,817) (49,690)
REEFERAERKER Tax effect of previous tax losses utilised
T IE & in current year - (1,071)
BAFEHIEER (D) @ig (Over) / under-provision in prior years (2,497) 2812
HAth Others (3,113) (4,804)
ERHIES H Actual tax expense 103,551 166,622
—E-ZFFR
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15 ARITREREMLEF
RITI R ER AR A8 M B RS 2 ARITE
I E N R S 857,962,000 ( ZEE
N« B#E767,297,0007T) ©

16 Et2mEKE

BREME2EKSESARTINHBELE

Notes to the Financial Statements

15 Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the Bank
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Bank
includes a profit of HK$857,962,000 (2009: HK$767,297,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Bank.

16 Other Comprehensive Income

Tax effects relating to each component of other
comprehensive income

—E-EF —EENE
2010 2009
Big 37K 3 | Bt
BABE (%) ki k) MaTlE (), W Pk
Before tax Tax (expense) Net-of-tax Before tax  Tax (expense) Net-of-tax
amount /benefit amount amount /benefit amount
BT T BT T BT T BT BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFINGE  Exchange differences on
NG OER S translation of financial
WMRMEN,  statements of overseas
Z5 subsidiaries 22,430 - 22,430 (40,863) - (40,863)
i H A ) 2 B 57 Surplus on revaluation of
DHEAEIRE  other premises upon
WMEMER  reclassification to
B (5T) investment properties
(Note) - - - 7,719 - 7,719
HEEHEM Release of deferred tax
MEBEZR)  liabilities upon disposal
BEYEM  ofinvestment properties
ERMWEIL  transferred from other
ﬁlﬁ’éﬁ premises - 3,204 3,204 - - -
At & Available-for-sale securities
- At ESE - Net movementin
HENRBE available-for-sale fair
FEEFEE  valuereserve 46,465 (7,660) 38,805 95,825 (15811) 80,014
HiZ2mUWa  Other comprehensive income 68,895 (4,456) 64,439 62,681 (15811) 46,370
PR Note:

R-ZTNGF  REMHEESHOER/REME
Fﬁ%iﬁ’]éﬁ”ﬁ%’ﬁﬁlﬁgé ERHEREY
ERER N _ZE-TF - HWESHHOER
REMELLENRAFAHE -

100 R{ZRITEIRABRAT
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

In 2009, the tax impact on other properties revaluation surplus upon
reclassification to investment properties was subsequently released upon sale
of the subject property. In 2010, there was no sale of investment property that
has been reclassified from on the properties in the same year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

17 Segment Reporting

Segment information is presented in a consistent way with that
reportable segments are regularly reviewed or evaluated internally by
chief operating decision maker to allocate resources to the segments
and to assess their performance. The Group has identified the
following four main reportable segments.

Wholesale banking business mainly comprises trade financing,
syndicated loans and other corporate lendings.

Retail banking business mainly comprises deposit account services,
residential mortgage, other consumer lendings, credit card services
and finance leases.

Treasury and markets covers provision of foreign exchange services,
money market activities, management of investment securities
and central cash management. In addition, it comprises all fund
investments made by the Bank that are managed by external fund
managers.

Others mainly comprise unallocated revenue and expenses, head
office and corporate expenses.

For the purpose of segment reporting, the allocation of operating
income reflects the benefits of funding resources allocated to
the business segments based on internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism. Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred by
the respective business segments and apportionment of overheads
on a reasonable basis to the business segments. Rental charges at
market rate for usage of bank premises are reflected as inter-segment
income for the “Others” segment and inter-segment expenses for the
respective business segments.

—E-TEER
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17 ZEBER () 17 Segment Reporting (cont’d)
(a) ATE2FHS I (a) Reportable segments
%8
The Group
—E-EF
2010
SRET  SERG  WRRDS
Wholesale Retail Treasury Hith Re
banking banking  and markets Others  Consolidated
BT T BT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ENBWA (ZH) Net interest income/ (expense) 882,040 819,278 (88,564) 200,041 1,812,795
Hig 2 A Other operating income 376,467 409,858 363,928 26,342 1,176,595
PETMEEESFNES  Net gain on disposal of available-for-
sale securities - - 16,799 - 16,799
KEWA Operating income 1,258,507 1,229,136 292,163 226,383 3,006,189
mesi Operating expenses (178,168) (424,564) (41,420) (808,045) (1,452,197)
DEE 2L (), /WA Inter-segment (expenses)/ income (181,866) (236,835) (79,553) 498,254 -
HNRREEER 2 Operating profit/ (loss) before
,‘,@‘%)‘éﬂ/(%ﬂé) impairment 898,473 567,737 171,190 (83,408) 1,553,992
ER LB REMBIERE Impairment losses (charged for)/
518 (4E) /ol written back on loans and
advances and other accounts (264,357) (1,119) - 3,540 (261,936)
A EESHAEREEE Impairment losses written back on
available-for-sale securities - 7 - - 7
HEFREER) R Impairment losses (charged for)
/written back (264,357) (1,112) - 3,540 (261,929)
"R/ (FR) Operating profit/ (loss) 634,116 566,625 171,190 (79,868) 1,292,063
ERZEREMERME  Impairment and write-down on
capital notes investments - - (668,385) - (668,385)
HEMERZEF Net (loss)/ gain on disposal of
(B#B),/ ks property and equipment (3,398) (235) (388) 525,693 521,672
REMEER YR Revaluation gain on investment
properties - - - 14,858 14,858
BAER (BE) Profit/ (loss) before taxation 630,718 566,390 (497,583) 460,683 1,160,208
FTi3H: Income tax - - - (103,551) (103,551)
KEERA/(FE) Profit / (loss) for the year 630,718 566,390 (497,583) 357,132 1,056,657
HitraHER - Other segment items:
nE Depreciation 2,747 9,338 220 62,473 74,778
ITBEE Segment assets 56,094,264 31,841,713 56,515,297 3,757,627 148,208,901
PEEE Segment liabilities 59,455,273 57,108,175 18,700,806 (407,156) 134,857,098
AEEEENELRRX Capital expenditure incurred
during the year 22,269 36,684 11,738 40,332 111,023

102] RERITEBRBRAT
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17 7 EER(E) 17 Segment Reporting (cont’d)

Annual Report 2010

(a) T2HDIP(4E) (a) Reportable segments (cont’d)
AE&E
The Group
“ETNF
2009
TEIRTT TERT HERTSE
Wholesale Retail Treasury Hib R
banking banking and markets Others  Consolidated
BT BETT BB BETT BT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FH A Net interest income 863,578 759,479 159,653 154,490 1,937,200
Hig A Other operating income 554,578 331,844 201,746 110,942 1,199,110
HERHHEEZELZWE  Net gain on disposal of available-for-
sale securities 2,643 - 55,108 - 57,751
KA ON Operating income 1,420,799 1,091,323 416,507 265432 3,194,061
L Operating expenses (163,622) (726,086) (38,375) (666,630) (1,594,713)
AEE2EL(ZH),/ WA  Inter-segment (expenses)/ income (158,740) (233,743) (60,170) 452,653 -
MR EEER Operating profit before impairment
P il 1,098,437 131,494 317,962 51,455 1,599,348
EFRBIREMBRERE Impairment losses (charged for)/
BECER) /o5 written back on loans and
advances and other accounts (502,747) (64,664) - 8516 (558,895)
A HEESRE/BERE Impairment losses written back on
available-for-sale securities - 4 - - 4
BEEE () /B Impairment losses (charged for)/
written back (502,747) (64,660) - 8516 (558,891)
K=yl Operating profit 595,690 66,834 317,962 59,971 1,040,457
HEMERREF Net (l0ss)/ gain on disposal of
(E8)/ s property and equipment (1) (496) 1) 43,446 42948
REMFEM R Revaluation gain on investment
properties - - - 36,116 36,116
BADR R Profit before taxation 595,689 66,338 317,961 139,533 1,119,521
e Income tax - - - (166,622) (166,622)
REERT/(B8) Profit / (loss) for the year 595,689 66,338 317,961 (27,089) 952,899
HttH 38R - Other segment items:
e Depreciation 3,091 11,124 498 60,715 75428
DEBE Segment assets 47,704,404 27,424,420 43,389,211 1,604,750 120,122,785
NEEE Segment liabilities 44158875 52,844,792 13,525,054 (2,636,643) 107,892,078
AEEEEMELRHY Capital expenditure incurred
during the year 3,040 17,128 679 17,544 38,391
—E-TFEER |103
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17 ZEER () 17 Segment Reporting (cont’d)

(b) EIFEF
BEEHERNSOTEREMBARNEEE
B KRB EREEEIBEE
RBEARNAITRESITAE TAREE -

(b) Geographical information
The geographical information analysis is based on the location of the
principal operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank itself,
of the location of the branches responsible for reporting the results or

booking the assets and liabilities.

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

r5E
The Group
—g-%%
2010
REAE
RAEE
BANER EEAE EEaE ZEIWA  Contingent
Profit before Total Total Operating liabilities and
taxation assets liabilities income commitments
BT T BT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 1,054,082 142,400,913 129,529,906 2,744,970 41,535,834
B Mainland China 95,448 9,016,339 7,642,692 201,880 838,691
EE USA (974) 1,558,498 1,452,247 35,120 560,413
Hith Others 6,659 1,077,551 1,054,452 26,665 1,565,567
HEFEIER Inter-segment items 4,993 (5,844,400) (4,822,199) (2,446) -
1,160,208 148,208,901 134,857,098 3,006,189 44,500,505
A&E
The Group
—TENE
2009
FE8E
RogdE
BADEA BESE BEESE mEWA Contingent
Profit before Total Total Operating  liabilities and
taxation assets liabilities income  commitments
BB BB BETT BETT BT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5 Hong Kong 988,178 116548618 104,706,152 2914913 31,166,997
A Mainland China 64,245 7,659,459 6,384,856 168,215 312,906
e USA 6,220 2,280,205 2,236,519 37,391 219,724
Hith Others 19,982 989,333 946,258 32913 1,533,915
AR Inter-segment items 40,896 (7,354,830 (6,381,707) 40,629 -
1,119,521 120,122,785 107,892,078 3,194,061 33,233,542
FRERTERERA A
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19

Notes to the Financial Statements

18 Cash and Balances with Banks, Central Banks and Other

HENER Financial Institutions
KEH T
The Group The Bank
—E-2F —ZTTNF ZZE-ZTF —ZTTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BT T BT BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
He Cash in hand 185,482 159,387 185,150 159,075
TR RIRITHSETF Balances with central banks 906,542 379,370 411,469 48,005
ERITHOETF Balances with banks 9,208,301 2,357,617 9,164,943 1,735,378
EE b Rk Balances with other financial

4517 institutions 10,924,797 4,001,965 10,924,797 4,001,965
21,225,122 6,898,339 20,686,359 5,944,423

EIRT » FRETREMCSREBELN
FRE 2K

19 Placements with and Advances to Banks, Central Banks
and Other Financial Institutions

#EM w17
The Group The Bank

—E-2F —TTNF ZB-ZBF TTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BT T BT TT BET T R TT
HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HKS$'000
ERITHER Placements with banks 8,127,133 8,310,388 4,898,332 7,408,773
HEIRITHER Advances to banks 4,101,993 7,252,121 4,101,993 6,797,823
12,229,126 15,562,509 9,000,325 14,206,596

F8IE - Maturing:
—1M@AR — Within one month 6,879,447 5,597,470 4,988,526 4,627,709
—1EAZE1FR - Between one month and one year 4,019,890 7,118,136 2,835,448 6,731,984
—1FE% - After one year 1,329,789 2,846,903 1,176,351 2,846,903
12,229,126 15,562,509 9,000,325 14,206,596

NZE—TFRZFTAF+HA=+—
A AEEERTEREMSEEENBRK
PR ERR - TERRZSBIREE
BRI (A2 -

There were no impaired advances to banks and other financial

institutions at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, nor were

there any individually assessed impairment allowances made for them

on these two respective dates.
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20 REFAREE

Notes to the Financial Statements

20 Trading Assets

FEE 17
The Group The Bank
—E-2F Z—ZTTNF ZE-TF —IZTThF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
BIFESH Debt securities - 624,148 - 624,148
HERES Equity securities 3,029 2,567 3,029 2,567
KEHES Investment funds 4,162 3,606 4,162 3,606
R BEFEFH Trading securities 7,191 630,321 7,191 630,321
PTHETAENEAREBE Positive fair values of
(BM7E43(b)) derivatives (note 43(b)) 1,626,466 1,153,554 1,613,631 1,151,406
1,633,657 1,783,875 1,620,822 1,781,727
A EIBB BB TN T ¢ Issued by:
IRIT R E A& ghikiE Banks and other financial
institutions - 624,148 - 624,148
2 Corporate entities 7,191 6,173 7,191 6,173
7,191 630,321 7,191 630,321
B ETtE ST Analysed by place of listing:
REBAIMBE Listed outside Hong Kong 3,029 2,567 3,029 2,567
JEET Unlisted 4,162 627,754 4,162 627,754
7,191 630,321 7,191 630,321

21 EERBBREFZURRLABENES

21 Securities Designated at Fair Value Through Profit or

Loss
AEBERAKLT
The Group and the Bank
—E-2F —ZITThF
2010 2009
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BIEES Debt securities 646,508 580,636
A ETEE BV EITHEBNT ¢ Issued by:
TR AT#4E Sovereigns 29,729 34,160
RIT R H M REE Banks and other financial institutions 485,181 415,162
% Corporate entities 131,598 131,314
646,508 580,636
i E oA Analysed by place of listing:
RBEABAIME ETH Listed outside Hong Kong 81,992 84,080
JELET Unlisted 564,516 496,556
646,508 580,636

106 RFRITEBRABRAT
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22 EFERRBRKHAMIRIE 22 Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts
(a) EFERRBRRHEMRERBEER (@) Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less
impairment allowances
REH RIT
The Group The Bank
—E-25 —TTNF ZEBE-Z2F _—ZTTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BET T BT T BET T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
EEERNEANEEE  Gross loans and advances to
customers 88,818,235 73,250,584 79,520,361 65,022,340
B LR (FTEE22())  Impairment allowances (note 22(b))
— (& Rl ZE L ~ Individually assessed (297,634) (311,137) (297,634) (311,137)
—RAFHE - Collectively assessed (359,960) (313,090) (359,901) (312,933)
88,160,641 72,626,357 78,862,826 64,398,270
FEEHFIE R HMBRIE  Accrued interest and other accounts 2,619,750 1,460,975 2,560,553 1,411,048
SEZEE (Mi5E22(b)  Impairment allowances (note 22(b))
— AR FEE - Individually assessed (65,711) (17,363) (60,604) (13,585)
2,554,039 1,443,612 2,499,949 1,397,463
90,714,680 74,069,969 81,362,775 65,795,733
LEERRBIES  Included in loans and advances to
B customers are:
BH5EE Trade bills 1,658,060 1,035,773 1,649,249 1,035,773
ﬁfﬁ‘;&ﬁ( MzE22(b))  Impairment allowances (note 22(b))
— A EHE — Collectively assessed (655) (7,157) (655) (7,157)
1,657,405 1,028,616 1,648,594 1,028,616

HBRBEMEAERD —BE REE R
ESMEREEABE174602000T(ZF
THE B 240,000,0007T) 0 ANEEITE
RERALEL#EZR RZT—FF It
T 25 B R (B B A B 550,984,000 T ( — &
TNFE) HWEEAZEEZMNEEE
EARBERBRLEEXNAE  UWRESEBE -
MN-ZE—FTHE+-_A=+—H#%  K&EHE
BRI —DREEERGZ  MBLE=F
PEEMERELEEERZ  WIEEA
A R ¥ 2750000007 (S EHEE RN B
326,000,0007T) ° WM » B—FHFIEREEE
BEFANE R AE41160007T © W
ERARFEZ WS RPHER -

HK$326,000,000).

Other accounts included an equity interest of HK$174,602,000 (2009:
HK$240,000,000) acquired through recovery of an impaired loan which
the Group has planned to dispose of in the near future. In 2010, an
impairment provision of HK$59,984,000 (2009: Nil) was made for the
equity interest, which was carried at the lower of its carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Subsequent to 31 December 2010,
the Group has entered into a share transfer agreement to sell all of its
equity interest in this held-for-sale asset, to an independent third party
at a consideration of RMB275,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
In addition, another held-for-sale asset has been
disposed of during the year with a gain of HK$4,116,000 recognised in
the income statement.

—E-2EER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22 EFERKRBRREAIRE(E)

(b) EFERRBRRHEMKRBEREERBN

22 Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts
(cont'd)

(b) Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances

=) to customers and other accounts
rEE
The Group
—2-%F “FENF
2010 2009
MR GEFE BRI &AFHE
Individually Collectively #@%  Individually Collectively k]
assessed  assessed Total assessed assessed Total
BETT BETT BE¥Tn A¥Tr AT BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
R ATH At 1 January 328,500 313,090 641,590 263,151 237,748 500,899
EWHRIIZEREEE  Impairment losses charged
(PHzE13) to income statement (note 13) 245,672 62,255 307,927 567,189 99,481 666,670
ERmR B RERE Impairment losses released
(PizE13) to income statement (note 13) (38,594) (7,397)  (45,991)  (99,704) (8071)  (107,775)
TR Amounts written off (176,695) (15,385)  (192,080) (478,263) (24139 (502,402)
WEINEFEEHER Recoveries of loans and advances
B RBR written off in previous years 13,279 7,397 20,676 78,001 8,071 86,072
EFUREBBITRER Unwind of discount on loan
(B3E4) impairment losses (note 4) (8,817) - (8,817) (1,874) - (1,874)
M12A31H At 31 December 363,345 359,960 723,305 328,500 313,090 641,590
Mmer & (ME220)) Deducted from (note 22(a)):
EEEI RSB Loans and advances to customers 297,634 359,305 656,939 311,137 305,933 617,070
HinfRIB Other accounts 65,711 - 65,711 17,363 - 17,363
Z25Z§ Trade bills - 655 655 - 7,157 7,157
363,345 359,960 723,305 328,500 313,090 641,590
FERITEEERAR
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22 EFERKBRKREARE (&)

(b) EFERRBRRHEMKRBEREZERBN

Notes to the Financial Statements

(cont'd)

22 Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts

(b) Movement in impairment allowances on loans and advances

SE(E) to customers and other accounts (cont’d)
AT
The Bank
—2-%F “FENF
2010 2009
BRI  GRedfd ERIEEE AR
Individually Collectively #%  Individually Collectively k]
assessed  assessed Total assessed assessed Total
BETT BETx B¥Tn A%t B%Tn BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R ATH At 1 January 324,722 312,933 637,655 261,552 237,393 498,945
EWHRFIZHFERRE  Impairment losses charged to
income statement 245,496 62,353 307,849 565,009 99,679 664,688
EWERBERFESR Impairment losses released to
income statement (39,171) (6,957) (46,128) (99,189) (7,526) (106,715)
ki Amounts written off (176,695) (15,385)  (192,080) (478,262) (24,139) (502,401)
WRIAEFEE HiER Recoveries of loans and advances
BERNBT written off in previous years 12,703 6,957 19,660 77,486 7,526 85,012
EFUREBBTRED Unwind of discount on loan
impairment losses (8,817) - (8,817) (1,874) - (1,874)
MW12A31H At 31 December 358,238 359,901 718,139 324,722 312,933 637,655
Me B (B5E220)) Deducted from (note 22(a)):
REEZRBR Loans and advances to customers 297,634 359,246 656,880 311,137 305,776 616913
HiiRE Other accounts 60,604 - 60,604 13,585 - 13,585
EEES S Trade bills - 655 655 - 7,157 7,157
358,238 359,901 718,139 324,722 312,933 637,655
—E-TFFR
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22 EFERKRBRKREAIRE (&)

(cont’d)

() BITRSITNEFERRBR

sectors

AT REBETRETONTERESER
FIERAE DB ERFL -

22 Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts

(c) Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry

The following economic sector analysis is based on categories and
definitions used by the HKMA.

AEE
The Group
—E-FF —EENF
2010 2009
EFEX BERFE EFEX BERP
REBERBE EHRRBER LBFEHE EREBX
Gross Impaired Gross Impaired
loans and loans and loans and loans and
advances advances advances advances
to customers to customers o customers  to customers
BET T BET T BT BT IT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
IRt Industrial, commercial and financial
— W EIRE - Property development 313,400 - 303,000 -
—ELE - Property investment 11,585,272 - 9,226,709 49,610
— SR - Financial concerns 4,386,559 - 4,407,441 -
—RELL - Stockbrokers 182,000 - 21,428 -
— BN EEE — Wholesale and retail trade 9,189,862 43,769 3,775,792 90,648
—BLEE - Manufacturing 9,490,999 130,950 5,212,804 67,058
—BRRERRE — Transport and transport
equipment 2,940,451 218 2,878,221 284
— JREEE &) — Recreational activities 261,747 - 190,354 -
— B EHE — Information technology 16,370 - 24,061 -
—HAh - Others 2,692,537 1 2,472,175 14,976
& A Individuals
—BB[EEHAHEE - Loansfor the purchase of
&l TRLA flats under the Home
ERHSLERE Ownership Scheme,
FERIEEE Private Sector Participation
HEE WEF Scheme and Tenants
B Purchase Scheme 25,806 - 28,981 -
—BEBEHMEFEME - Loans for the purchase of other
K E X residential properties 10,912,294 13,793 10,673,018 936
—(ERRBH% — Credit card advances 267,441 1,719 310,487 2,530
—Efth ~ Others 4,430,096 9,269 3,626,044 8,211
EBBFRABNERNE  Gross loans and advances for
AR use in Hong Kong 56,694,834 199,729 43,150,515 234,253
BZ5mE Trade finance 7,360,087 111,142 4,416,212 103,566
EE/BAIMERH Gross loans and advances for
ERRBERR use outside Hong Kong 24,763,314 919,941 25,683,857 966,318
BEERNEINME  Gross loans and advances
to customers 88,818,235 1,230,812 73,250,584 1,304,137

o] RERITEBRBRAT
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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22 EFERKRBRKREAIRE (&)

() BITRSITNEFERRBR(A)

Notes to the Financial Statements

(cont’d)

sectors (cont’d)

22 Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts

(c) Loans and advances to customers analysed by industry

K17
The Bank
—E-FF —EENF
2010 2009
EFEEX BEEREE EFEMR HMEEF
Gross Impaired Gross Impaired
loans and loans and loans and loans and
advances advances advances advances
to customers to customers to customers  to customers
BET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TSR Industrial, commercial and financial
— W EER — Property development 313,400 - 303,000 -
—EKE ~ Property investment 10,418,937 - 8,269,819 49,610
— SR E - Financial concerns 4,386,559 - 4,407 441 -
—RELKL - Stockbrokers 182,000 - 21,428 -
— B RTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 9,189,004 43,769 3,773,248 90,648
— Rl - Manufacturing 9,490,109 130,950 5,211,305 67,058
—E R BRI R - Transport and transport
eqguipment 2,925,856 218 2,835,595 284
— IR G4 TE & — Recreational activities 261,747 - 190,354 -
— &R — Information technology 16,370 - 24,061 -
—HAh - Others 2,690,605 1 2,469,986 14,976
(EPN Individuals
—BE[EEBHE - Loans for the purchase of
& TRLA flats under the Home
ERE2ERE Ownership Scheme,
FERIEEE Private Sector Participation
HEE g F Scheme and Tenants
BExX Purchase Scheme 25,806 - 28,981 -
—BEHEMEEME - Loans for the purchase of other
HE= residential properties 8,140,031 13,793 8,449,743 -
—EARBX — Credit card advances 267,441 1,719 310,487 2,530
—HAh - Others 3,403,451 9,269 2,729,459 8,185
EEBBFEHANERNE  Gross loans and advances for
IR use in Hong Kong 51,711,316 199,729 39,024,907 233,291
EomE Trade finance 7,360,087 111,142 4,416,212 103,566
EBBAIMEBH Gross loans and advances for
B RN BEE use outside Hong Kong 20,448,958 865,015 21,581,221 913,444
EEERNBRLZE  Gross loans and advances
to customers 79,520,361 1,175,886 65,022,340 1,250,301
—E-ZEEFR
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22 EFERKRBRREAIRE(E)

(d) BEFEFERRBER

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts
(cont’d)

(d) Impaired loans and advances to customers

AEE T
The Group The Bank
—%-%F -TIAF —%-BF _TTAF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
BEBFERK Gross impaired loans and advances
e to customers 1,230,812 1,304,137 1,175,886 1,250,301
BB ZERE Impairment allowances
— &R FF 1L - Individually assessed (297,634) (311,137) (297,634) (311,137)
933,178 993,000 878,252 939,164
SHEERRBAEEE  Gross impaired loans and advances
HREPERKER as a % of total loans and
EEEHH o XK advances to customers 1.39% 1.78% 1.48% 1.92%

B B R N B R AR AR (8 B R AR E R
B - AMEERIBERERER o

KERFEOREEEDFEREEMNAR
THELEERRBRAFRF R
WEE - 95578 8282912,0007T & & ¥
228,962,0007L(Z T NF : #%E330,365,000
TL K #276,559,0007T) c ELEEBREE
REENHEDELRBERNEARAEED
METFRAEK -

RERITERERAE
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.

Individually assessed impairment allowances were made after taking
into account the realisable value of collateral in respect of such
loans and advances of HK$282,912,000 and HKS$228,962,000 (2009:
HK$330,365,000 and HK$276,559,000) for the Group and the Bank
respectively. This collateral mainly comprises mortgage interest over
residential or commercial properties and cash with the Group.
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22 EFERKBRKREARE (&)

(e)

MEHER I MARSONREFHE
EFEFFBFEERLBETEERAER
EHERBOY BN RANHEEREPH
MERRENREFE - BLEAHNNRY]
HER-—RAPRE—+4 HEAEE
HEAEBAGLHEEEE NFERR
MEHEM D HNREDNERENRERE
aempkERENT

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts
(cont’d)

(e) Netinvestment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts
Loans and advances to customers include net investment in motor
vehicles and equipment leased to customers under finance leases and
hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases.
These contracts usually run for an initial period of 5 to 20 years, with
an option for acquiring the leased asset at nominal value. The total
minimum lease payments receivable under finance leases and hire
purchase contracts and their present values at the year end are as

follows:
A%
The Group
—E-2F —BENF
2010 2009

REEE RIEEE RIEHEE RIEHEE
NREE TRABE NFRE R AERR

Present Present
value of Total value of Total
the minimum minimum the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
1R Within 1 year 211,737 260,767 267,242 328,128
1FE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 430,016 559,432 440,995 614,120
5% After 5 years 1,517,782 1,781,243 1,647,152 2,003,992
2,159,535 2,601,442 2,355,389 2,946,240
BEZER Impairment allowances:
— BRI 3 — Individually assessed (919) (9,456)
— A — Collectively assessed (91) (335)
MEHRENDHEINF  Netinvestment in finance leases
SHHIRE FEE and hire purchase contracts 2,158,525 2,345,598

—E-mEER |13
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22 EFERKRBRREAIRE(E)

(e) MEHERSHMNARE

HHREFEE)

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts
(cont’d)

(e) Netinvestment in finance leases and hire purchase contracts
(cont’d)
17
The Bank

—E-FF —EENF
2010 2009

RIEEE RIEEE RIEHEE RIEHEE
NRBEE R NRIRE (NESE]

Present Present
value of Total value of Total
the minimum minimum the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BET T BET T BT BT IT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
1R Within 1 year 210,666 259,361 264,360 324,252
19259 After 1 year but within 5 years 426,103 554,405 430,904 600,658
5% After 5 years 1,508,170 1,770,167 1,616,858 1,968,705
2,144,939 2,583,933 2,312,122 2,893,615
TEZER - Impairment allowances:
— B RIFEE — Individually assessed (919) (9,456)
— A - Collectively assessed (91) (334)
BEMHEERSEE  Netinvestment in finance leases
BRI EFEEE and hire purchase contracts 2,143,929 2,302,332
FERITEEERAR

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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23 AHHERS

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Available-for-sale Securities

F&EHE 17
The Group The Bank
—E-E5F —ETNF —E-EF —EENF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
FAENFERE Certificates of deposit held 1,480,621 1,344,057 1,480,621 1,344,057
B8 55 Debt securities 16,727,106 17,741,780 16,668,340 17,741,780
B & 5 (B 3RS E Treasury bills (including
E4ZER) Exchange Fund Bills) 2,610,576 888,313 2,610,576 888,313
R E S Equity securities 39,442 43,244 39,442 43,244
KEES Investment funds - 56,333 - 56,333
20,857,745 20,073,727 20,798,979 20,073,727
LAETEE B BITHIBINT & Issued by:
BT 1 Sovereigns 2,771,218 972,558 2,771,218 972,558
N Public sector entities - 384,285 - 384,285
HRITREHAM Banks and other financial
L R E institutions 14,480,134 14,123,245 14,480,134 14,123,245
S Corporate entities 3,606,393 4,593,639 3,547,627 4,593,639
20,857,745 20,073,727 20,798,979 20,073,727
BT E ST Analysed by place of listing:
REBLM Listed in Hong Kong - 173,397 - 173,397
MNEBLAIMEE ET Listed outside Hong Kong 1,608,651 3,198,066 1,608,651 3,198,066
1,608,651 3,371,463 1,608,651 3,371,463
L™ Unlisted 19,249,094 16,702,264 19,190,328 16,702,264
20,857,745 20,073,727 20,798,979 20,073,727
ER IR ERERE R Fair value of individually
NABE impaired debt securities 124 1,222 124 1,222
ERREREESH Fair value of individually
~AEE impaired investment
funds - 56,333 - 56,333
124 57,555 124 57,555

—E-mEER |15
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23 AL ERES(E)

RZE—ZEFRZEEAFTZHAH=T—
A AXEEFH > AIHEERSFDIEERE
FMSEES WA BERBKEER
RARAER  BRETAERE - ELE
BRREREX ERBEFBERHE2)
TE = R AR ©

RZE—ZFF+_A=+—HA ' A5&E
Fir#% & e Farmington Finance Limited 217 #J
B ARZE ([Farmingtoni® & |) » AR A ATt
HEES  HAABEEREFRE G
BHERAREHEHENARKRERE I E
B TAESEREFEZEEMBEEEDH
FratEmFHE AT —ZTFMAR
ReReRAEREUTEARE : B2
QBEBABEENRETTKENEAE R
FE : Rb)BREFANEANEFTMHERD
RE% - BEUNETFHERRD

FZT—ZT¥F BARFELS|HEEH
([BI13HH ) 8E - BIESZHABEEN
ExENERBHEGNR S RENMZE -
RIFRE KR A S EERE - Farmington
FEMARTERR & REEREL A FIR
ERAT - ARMLEMSIZEEH  FEER
J& R BFarmingtoniZ EW A 7 BEAS A gL =2
TR AEEREREREERMELNBE
481983000 (B EHEAHEER ST ) kg
B E BT T H%186,402,000T E1E
mx o At AEEE_T-TFERK
N B FER B Farmington B & AN 2351 & R (B
Ko (B 1578 % 668,385,0007T ©

FEREMER - AEEE BEFarmington #Y
SARERREE LRI T MM EHELNE
BiE#) - EM{EZEIT456,000,000( HEE K
3,536,100,0007T) * @R Farmington B i A (&
BiREEAEREEHERAENREBEY
REMER  ERECTHETREETE
VEH S B o

R_E-—ZTFER_ZFZENFT_A=+—
H  AEBE B iltFarmingtonfE AEEE
BERBTFREN  WARFHEHMEBK
WELFKE o

RERITERERAE
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

23 Available-for-sale Securities (cont’d)

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, certain of the Group’s and the Bank’s
available-for-sale securities comprising debt securities and investment
funds which were determined to be individually impaired on the
basis of a significant and prolonged decline in the fair value below
cost. Impairment losses on these investments were recognised in the
income statement in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(1).

Prior to 31 December 2010, the Group's capital notes investments
issued by Farmington Finance Limited (“Farmington investments”)
was accounted for as available-for-sale securities and its fair value has
been based on the net present value as determined by discounting
the projected cash flow of the underlying investment portfolio
assuming the investment vehicle would be held until all underlying
assets mature. Starting from April 2010, certain basic assumptions
have been changed in cash flow model, which include (a) actual
defaults at estimated recovery for principal and interest, and (b)
updated market price assumptions for projected defaults resulting in
a reduced weighted average price.

In the second-half of 2010, certain trigger events (“trigger events”)
that take into account of both the credit quality of the underlying
assets and the cash flow of the investment portfolio appeared which
led to the net present value of Farmington investments' discounted
projected cash flow model close to zero value under the fair value
assessment by the Investment Manager. In response to the above
trigger events, the management of the Group considered the fair
value for Farmington investments would likely be zero value and
thus, decided to make full impairment on its carrying value of
approximately HK$481,983,000 (included in the available-for-sale
securities) and transfer the investment revaluation reserve deficit of
HK$186,402,000 to the income statement. Accordingly, the Group
has recognised an impairment and write-down on Farmington capital
notes investments of HK$668,385,000 in the income statement in
2010.

In previous two years, the Group had entered into two credit default
swaps ("CDS") with notional value of US$456,000,000 (equivalent to
HKS 3,536,100,000) with the senior loan provider of Farmington as a
partial credit protection against non-performance of a term loan to
Farmington provided by this senior loan provider. Management has
assessed the probability that the senior loan provider of Farmington
would exercise its right to recover certain amount of loss under
the CDS arrangement from the Group and has made the necessary
provision accordingly.

Other than the above Farmington capital notes for collateralised debt
obligations investments (“CDQO"), the Group has not made nor does it
hold any other CDO investments as at 31 December 2010 and 2009.
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24 BRI BRRRIR

Notes to the Financial Statements

24 Amounts Due from Subsidiaries

&4
The Bank
—E-BF —TThHF
2010 2009
BET T BRI
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEIRIT R E & BB TR Placements with banks and other
financial institutions 7,171,303 5,884,626
WEARNEREBA K EMIRIE Loans and advances to subsidiaries and
other accounts 90,480 716,811
7,261,783 6,601,437
25 B ARKRE 25 Investments in Subsidiaries
RIT
The Bank
—s-%5 _—=TIAf
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
FE LMD R AAER) Unlisted shares, at cost 1,274,990 1,270,250

R-ZE-ZFF+-_A=+—B " TXJIH
HAKENEE  BEXBEREARE
MEBMBRRFE - BRIERBEEH &
AIFTRR A (0 2R 5115 2 B A AR

AT 2R R BM A R R
AR - 3 EAEAR B B S R A AR
AFH -

The following list contains the particulars of principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2010 which materially affect the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise
stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 2(d) and
have been consolidated into the Group's financial statements.

“E-TEER
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25 MBATIRE(E)

Notes to the Financial Statements

25 Investments in Subsidiaries (cont’d)

BEKRSD EBRITR
SR SEBE BA® BRRAK
NGIES Place of incorporation/ %of FEEK Issued and
Name of company operation sharesheld  Principal activities paid up capital
ERERERAA N 100% YXRFEAR BT
Carford International Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$2
PERTER(PE)FRAF R E A 100% k1T AR ¥1,000,000,00070
([ ERTEBR(PE)])* Mainland China Banking RMB1,000,000,000
CITIC Bank International (China) Limited
("CBI (China)")*
hERERE AR A £ 100% REEL 755,000,000
CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited Hong Kong Insurance broker HK$5,000,000
CKWB - SN Limited REHs/ B8 100% BITHEBRENRE ES AW
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong Issue of structured notes USST
and investments
CKWH - UT2 Limited FEHE/ B8 100% EBITRERE 81T
Cayman Islands/Hong Kong Issue of subordinated notes US$1
ERZEAMBARLA & 100% HERRE 75 #200,000,0007T
HKCB Finance Limited Hong Kong Consumer financing HK$200,000,000
REERMBARLA & 100% & ERH 78#32,500,0007T
Ka Wah International Merchant Hong Kong Financial services HK$32,500,000
Finance Limited
REREARAA B 100% IREER F&#5,000,0007T
KWB Investment Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$5,000,000
EREARIT(REAN)BRAF £ 100%  RIBARK 78%5,0007T
The Hongkong Chinese Bank Hong Kong Nominees services HK$5,000
(Nominees) Limited
RERTUEE)BERAT E30 100%  (EFERRTE #3,000,0007T
The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited Hong Kong Trustee services HK$3,000,000
BEEBARLA B0 100% RBHE BT
Viewcon Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Mortgage financing HKS2

REEREARARIN - ALPABAHEBER
RISRATTERRS °

* HNBARFERERIT(FR)ARAFIER
—E-ZF+—A-+_-HBERZAPRER
TR (RE)ARAR - A -T—ZTF+ A
—HRE - PERITBEF(PE)MNGEEED
WABIBKIARE - UL AP ERITEE
(FEMNEBEERBEMBEERERS -
INERARE BB T RIRBE T BURM
2(p) °

PERITERERAE
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

All of the above subsidiaries are held directly by the Bank except for
KWB Investment Limited.

*

The subsidiary was renamed from CITIC Ka Wah Bank (China) Limited
to CITIC Bank International (China) Limited ("CBI (China)") since 22
November 2010. Starting from 1 October 2010, the functional currency
of CBI (China) has changed from Hong Kong Dollars to Renminbi to
align with CBI (China)’s primary economic environment and relevant
underlying transactions. The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(p).
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26 MEREE 26 Property and Equipment
(a) ~&E (@) The Group
& BE
HENRZE
REWHE  HMEYZE  Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and R
properties premises equipment Total

BETT BWTR AB¥Tr AB¥%Tx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BAHEE - Cost or valuation:
20101 A1H At 1 January 2010 183,192 1,011,270 705,317 1,899,779
=Dl Additions - - 111,023 111,023
auk== Disposals (38,800) (369,456) (30,823) (439,079)
BEA% Surplus on revaluation 14,858 - - 14,858
FE i R Exchange adjustments - - (67) (67)
®2010%12831H / At 31 December 2010 159,250 641,814 785,450 1,586,514
Nnk %= §-J: )5 % N3 The analysis of cost or valuation of

HEIHFWT : the above assets is as follows:
AR Cost - 624,217 785,450 1,409,667
EXE] Valuation

— 19854 —-1985 - 17,597 - 17,597

—20104F -2010 159,250 - - 159,250

159,250 641,814 785,450 1,586,514

F20095F1 A 1H At 1 January 2009 148,076 1,021,792 677,585 1,847,453
=yl Additions - - 38,391 38,391
sFHE (FE26(d)) Reclassification (note 26(d)) 10,000 (10,000) - -
HeE Disposals (11,000) (7,677) (10,686) (29,363)
EhAMK Surplus on revaluation 36,116 7,155 - 43,271
bE X A EE Exchange adjustments - - 27 27
25?_2_009@1 2H31H At 31 December 2009 183,192 1,011,270 705,317 1,899,779
Mak %= §-3:0)>%N-14 The analysis of cost or valuation of

HEIFET : the above assets is as follows:
DEN Cost - 993,673 705,317 1,698,990
fh1E Valuation

— 19854 -1985 - 17,597 - 17,597

— 20094 -2009 183,192 - - 183,192

183,192 1,011,270 705317 1,899,779

—E-mEEH |19
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26 MEKREE)

(a) A5ME (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and Equipment (cont’d)

(a) The Group (cont’d)

FRW - BE
HERRE
REWME  Ht¥WE  Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and Pk
properties premises equipment Total
BET T BET T BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZIHE - Accumulated depreciation:
201081 A1H At 1 January 2010 - 301,148 570,292 871,440
REEGHE (KFE11(0) Charge for the year (note 11(b)) - 22,628 52,150 74,778
tH 5 T =] 48 Written back on disposals - (80,286) (20,880)  (101,166)
PE 5 B Exchange adjustments - - (284) (284)
2010128310 At 31 December 2010 - 243,490 601,278 844,768
72009461 A1 H At 1 January 2009 - 283,980 527,609 811,589
AEEFE (WHiE11(b) Charge for the year (note 11(b)) - 22,665 52,763 75,428
B & i (o] 48 Written back on disposals - (4,933) (10,100) (15,033)
EHOEE Reclassification - (564) - (564)
PE 5 FE 2 Exchange adjustments - - 20 20
FA20094F12H31H At 31 December 2009 - 301,148 570,292 871,440
BRMENRE - Net book value:
#20105%F12831H At 31 December 2010 159,250 398,324 184,172 741,746
PA2009F 12 A31H At 31 December 2009 183,192 710,122 135,025 1,028,339

PERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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26 MIERFRME(E) 26 Property and Equipment (cont’d)
(b) &1T (b) The Bank
FRE - BE
HERFE
REME Hib#¥ %  Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and ko]
properties premises equipment Total
BET T BT T BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RS LE : Cost or valuation:
20101 A1H At 1 January 2010 157,800 1,011,270 662,597 1,831,667
A0 Additions - - 103,815 103,815
HeE Disposals (38,800) (369,456) (30,247) (438,503)
EHAR Surplus on revaluation 14,897 - - 14,897
ME 54, S8 B Exchange adjustments - - 29 29
_B_A\_2_010_5_Fj 1 2)_3_?_15 ____________ /-\_ t_?ﬂ December 2010 133,897 641,814 736,194 1,511,905
Nk %= §-:0)>% 8= The analysis of cost or valuation of
EEIFOT : the above assets is as follows:
[DEN Cost - 624,217 736,194 1,360,411
BB Valuation
—1985%F -1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
—2010%F -2010 133,897 - - 133,897
133,897 641,814 736,194 1,511,905
720091 A1 H At 1 January 2009 125,338 1,021,792 641,793 1,788,923
N Additions - - 31,337 31337
B3 o A (Fisk26(d)) Reclassification (note 26(d)) 10,000 (10,000) - -
k= Disposals (11,000) (7,677) (10,544) (29,221)
BhEE Surplus on revaluation 33,462 7,155 - 40,617
RIS Exchange adjustments - - 1 11
_73?_2_009_‘5!5_12)5]_?_1_5 At 31 December 2009 157,800 1,011,270 662,597 1,831,667
Nak %= §-:0)>%: 8- The analysis of cost or valuation of
EEIFWOT : the above assets is as follows:
%N Cost - 993,673 662,597 1,656,270
HE Valuation
—1985%F -1985 - 17,597 - 17,597
— 20094 - 2009 157,800 - - 157,800
157,800 1,011,270 662,597 1,831,667
—E-TEEH
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26 MEKREE)

(b) Z17 (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and Equipment (cont’d)

(b) The Bank (cont’d)

BH - BEE
RERHE
REWHE  HMYWE  Furniture,
Investment Other fixtures and e
properties premises equipment Total
BETT BY¥TxT ABABTr BYTx
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ZIHE - Accumulated depreciation:
7201061 A1H At 1 January 2010 - 301,148 543,445 844,593
REEHE Charge for the year - 22,628 45,308 67,936
S i [ 38 Written back on disposals - (80,286) (20,319)  (100,605)
bE 54, 8 Exchange adjustments - - 22 22
72010%12H831H At 31 December 2010 - 243,490 568,456 811,946
7200991 A1H At 1 January 2009 - 283,981 509,965 793,946
REEHE Charge for the year - 22,664 43,474 66,138
o 5 T = 43 Written back on disposals - (4,933) (10,001) (14,934)
EFORE Reclassification - (564) - (564)
ME 54, 8 B Exchange adjustments - - 7 7
25_/\:_2_009_%_12531 H At 31 December 2009 - 301,148 543,445 844,593
ARIENFHE ¢ Net book value:
720105F12H831H At 31 December 2010 133,897 398,324 167,738 699,959
7A2009F 12 4311 At 31 December 2009 157,800 710,122 119,152 987,074

HERTEBRERAE

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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26 MEKFREE)

(c)

(d)

RZZE-—FTF+A=+—H " BILA=
EMfTRIRIT (BB BRARIRARMSE
BAEE FHAEBERAITHMEERE
ME - BEAREBRAITHEGERSGRD A
#7856 14,858,000 7T 2 7% ¥ 14,897,000 7T ( =
TTNF  AEBRATHEBEGRBHD
Bl 7 36,116,000 70 J 78 ¥ 33,462,000 7T )
DR AREB RAITHR SRS o A
%ﬁ@?ﬂﬁ@“ﬂ%@ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬂ%
MEefXEXes A EREDE
m%&@%m RS -

REMEELANHSWRARBARER

42120000 ( ZZEZE N F + 7B ¥ 4,524,000
JT) °
KEERN HEXREVWENKRZABE

990,0007C( ZEE N : BH£1,881,0007T) ©

N_ZEZAFE+_A=+—HItFE A
BYMERGZNE  —EHEEFEOBE
10,000,000 M ¥ 8 R EWE - Wkt
EAEISMBETEETHERBR
REEBBAYEETIHEERAESEREANA
AEE -#R BRERTYENEREES
HENAREBERE®H 2 EZRHNABE
7,719,0007C  WERMEE(EHFEENER -

R-ZF—FF  WRAREVEEEMY)
E Sk L

Notes to the Financial Statements

26

()

(d)

Property and Equipment (cont’d)

All investment properties of the Group and the Bank were revalued at
31 December 2010 by an independent firm of surveyors, Prudential
Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited, on an open market value basis.
The revaluation surplus of HK$14,858,000 and HK$14,897,000 were
recognised in the Group and the Bank respectively (2009: revaluation
surplus of HK$36,116,000 and HK$33,462,000 were recognised in the
Group and the Bank respectively), which have been credited to the
income statement. Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited has
among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category of property being
valued.

The gross rental income arising from investment properties is
HK$4,212,000 (2009: HK$4,524,000).

During the year, gain on disposal of investment properties amounted
to HK$990,000 (2009: HK$1,881,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2009, a property with a net
book value of approximately HK$10,000,000 was transferred to
investment properties for the purpose of change in use. Accordingly,
an independent professional valuation had been performed by
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited in order to assess the property’s
fair value at the date of transfer. As a result, a revaluation gain
of approximately HK$7,719,000 was recognised in the property
revaluation reserve which represented surplus on revaluation of the
property upon reclassification to investment properties. In 2010, there

was no transfer between investment properties and other premises.

“E-TEER
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26 MEKREE)

(e) WEMENAMMENREFENNNT

Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Property and Equipment (cont’d)

(e) The analysis of net book value of investment properties and other

premises is as follows:

AEE AT
The Group The Bank
—2-2F -—TTNF ZE-BF -TITNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BET T BETT BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
HE Leasehold
BB Held in Hong Kong
—RHHEE - Long-term leases 78,337 82,657 78,337 82,657
—FHEEE - Medium-term leases 451,077 782,765 451,077 782,765
&8 LA R Held outside Hong Kong
—HHHEE - Medium-term leases 28,160 27,892 2,807 2,500
557,574 893,314 532,221 867,922

REBRATHETHMYESRBEIEE
ETEMWN MRELEMERZARAERZR
AHEAR  AKREREATR-_ZE—F
FH+Z A=+ —BMEMYMEREDFE
JE R EHE5373000 (ZEZNF « B

5,466,0007T,) °

PERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Some of the other premises of the Group and the Bank have been

revalued in previous years. The net book value of other premises

of the Group and the Bank at 31 December 2010 would have been
HK$5,373,000 (2009: HKS5,466,000) had they been carried at cost less

accumulated depreciation.
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26 MIERFRME(E) 26 Property and Equipment (cont’d)

() BRAKLEHEHENYWERSE (f) Property and equipment leased out under operating leases
AEERBLCEHEMN T AHELIEEY The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
¥ - HEMENRVEER —RKRAEME= The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with
£ HENBIHTERERNMITEIER an option to renew the leases after that date at which time all terms

are renegotiated.

REBNATIRAABEGRRE R ED The Group's and the Bank’s total future minimum lease payments

HFRKEEHG RN AR FEESLAZE under non-cancellable operating leases for investment and sub-
o letting properties are receivable as follows:

rEH AT
The Group The Bank

—E2-FF —ITTNF ZB-BF —TTNF

2010 2009 2010 2009

BT T BT T BT T BT T

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000

1A Within 1 year 3,019 2,373 1,662 2,007

1FE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 2,776 - 1,134 -

5,795 2,373 2,796 2,007

27 BITRHMERBBNEFRRER 27 Deposits and Balances of Banks and Other Financial

Institutions
AEE AT
The Group The Bank

—E-2F —TTNF ZB-BF TTNF

2010 2009 2010 2009

BET T BT T BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

IRITHTER N AETFE  Deposits and balances from banks 1,850,372 2,794,355 727,892 2,639,253

—E-mEER |125
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28 Deposits from Customers

AEE 17
The Group The Bank
—E-2F —ZTTNF ZZE-BF —TITNAF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BET T BETT BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
SEEHIN A RBEF1E3X Demand deposits and
current deposits 14,818,265 15,328,046 14,574,030 14,807,687
HEFX Savings deposits 24,472,934 25,451,140 24,430,485 25,397,977
EH - BNHEA K %2 HA Time, call and notice deposits
AT 74,174,914 53,461,794 71,597,177 51,841,781
113,466,113 94,240,980 110,601,692 92,047,445
29 REFARAE 29 Trading Liabilities
AEE 17
The Group The Bank
—E-BF —TTNF ZEB-BF —TITNAF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BET T BT BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
PTETEMERR Negative fair value of derivatives
BE(MEE43() (note 43(b)) 1,477,528 1,108,009 1,464,497 1,107,049
30 2EITFEXRE 30 Certificates of Deposit Issued
FEERAKIT
The Group and the Bank
—E-BF _—2TAF
2010 2009
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEARBERUARBAREEB Designated at fair value through profit or loss 775,217 -
FERZRE Non-trading 6,209,837 3,693,598
6,985,054 3,693,598

126| HERTEBERAE
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30 BRITHENE(E)

Notes to the Financial Statements

30 Certificates of Deposit Issued (cont’d)

EERBBIBDGARRAABEND ET

FREARTRERSRENNEHTET
A EMEITETAREERRERS R

B AMERTEDRIALRK -

BTARBEZUARBAABEMND %
TERENREEER_T—ZF+=H
—t+—HRIHBHRENENSES A
2170007 * HA - T EEREBEEFKE

Certificates of deposit issued are designated at fair value through
profit or loss when they contain embedded derivatives that modify
the cash flows that otherwise would be required to be separated.

The carrying amount of certificates of deposit issued designated at
fair value through profit or loss at 31 December 2010 was HK$217,000
higher than the contractual amount at maturity, which was mainly
attributable to changes in benchmark interest rate.

By EAE ©
31 BIARRRAIREOATEH 31 Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position
(a) REMBRRKRFAROABHIES : (a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents:
REH RIT
The Group The Bank
—E-25 —FTTNF ZEBE-ZF _—ZTTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BET T BT T BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
REFBBNER Provision for Hong Kong Profits
A (KFE14()) Tax for the year (note 14(a)) 88,073 159,660 64,628 145,357
AR R 2 /) Tax credit to be claimed
IEHE R - (5,567) - (5,567)
B EHNEH Provisional Profits Tax paid (136,551) (5,856) (122,248) -
(48,478) 148,237 (57,620) 139,790
BEAFFEERBH Balance of Profits Tax provision
TS EE L relating to prior years - (163,773) - (163,774)
(48,478) (15,536) (57,620) (23,984)
N TESEE Provision for overseas taxation 7,706 3,064 3,117 3,052
(40,772) (12,472) (54,503) (20,932)
Hr - Of which:
BN 4EE e Tax recoverable (59,744) (24,036) (57,771) (23,984)
N HAFE 18 Current taxation 18,972 11,564 3,268 3,052
(40,772) (12,472) (54,503) (20,932)
S
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31 MBMRRRTRAAEHR ()

(b) ERANWELEREEERES

ERFEAEMBRRRERCRIERE(E

E)/ BENEEREAFERANEHNT

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position (cont’d)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

by, |
The Group
TEEHE ItHERS
BREEIE HIRBR B
Depreciation  JR{EERE % Revaluation
allowances Impairment  Ef53E adjustments
inexcess allowances Revaluation for available-
of related forloansand adjustments forsale  BIEFE Hith ok
depreciation ~ advances forproperties  securities  Tax losses Others Total
BETr A%Tn B¥Tx  B%Trn  E¥Tn  BMTr  B%Tn
ELHBERE Deferred tax arising from: HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2010%1A1H At 1 January 2010 8,679 (52,038) 14,163 (53,514) (1,414) (15,513) (99,637)
RAWERAME  Charged/ (credited) to
([E#) consolidated income statement 4,663 (6,308) 2,19 - 1,029 (4,261) (2,683)
ER(RE) /M3 (Credited)/ charged to reserves - - (3,204) 7,660 - - 4,456
PN R AR Exchange and other adjustments 5 (118) - - - (399) (512)
120106128318 At 31 December 2010 13,347 (58,464) 13,153 (45,854) (385)  (20,173)  (98,376)
1R2009F1 A1H At 1 January 2009 8,632 (37,770) 8,406 (69,325) (16,688) - (106,745)
SAUGERAME,  Charged / (credited) to
(E#) consolidated income statement 47 (14,268) 5757 - 15,274 (15,509) (8699)
Ty Charged to reserves - - - 15811 - - 15811
B 5 R E A R Exchange and other adjustments - - - - - (4) (4)
FA2009F12A318 At 31 December 2009 8,679 (52,038) 14,163 (53,514) (1414) (15,513) (99,637)

HERTEBRERAE

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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31 BRI ROAES (&)

(b) ERANEEHREEREE(H)

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position (cont’d)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (cont’d)

T
The Bank
FERHE AfEERS
BEREHITE EIAREX B
Depreciation  JH{E%EME % Revaluation
allowances Impairment  Ef5FE adjustments
inexcess allowances Revaluation foravailable-
of related forloansand adjustments forsale  BIEEE Hity “ax
depreciation  advances forproperties  securities  Taxlosses Others Total
BE®TT B%Tr E¥Tr BT BMTr  B%Tr  B%Trn
EEHERS Deferred tax arising from: HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2010F1A1H At 1 January 2010 14,028 (52,018) 12,464 (53,514) (1,414) (13,105) (93,559)
RAWERAME,  Charged/ (credited) to
(E1%) income statement 3,930 (6,308) 2,194 - 1,029 (286) 559
FER(RE) /M3 (Credited)/ charged to reserves - - (3,204) 7,660 - - 4,456
[ R H AR Exchange and other adjustments (1) (119) - - - (18) (138)
2010128318 At 31 December 2010 17,957 (58,445) 11,454 (45,854) (385) (13,409) (88,682)
2009F1 A1H At 1 January 2009 14,100 (37,745) 7,108 (69,325) (16,688) - (102,550)
ZAkERA(EH),/  (Credited)/ charged to
fifi s income statement (72) (14273) 53% - 15274 (13,104) (6:819)
FERME Charged to reserves - - - 15811 - - 15811
5 R A R Exchange and other adjustments - - - - - D) M
H2009%12A31H At 31 December 2009 14,028 (52018) 12,464 (53,514) (1414) (13,105) (93,559)

—E-TEER
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31

A FIR R R R P S B (4])

(b) ERANELEHEEEREE(H)

()

32

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position (cont’d)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (cont’d)

AEE AT
The Group The Bank
—E-2F —ZETNF ZZE-ZF —ZTNHF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BET T BRI BET T BT IT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
EEBAR N RIERA  Net deferred tax assets
FIELERIEEE recognised on the statement
of financial position (100,573) (101,355) (89,169) (93,567)
TR N RIERAR  Net deferred tax liabilities
FIRLETRIEEE recognised on the statement
of financial position 2,197 1,718 487 8
(98,376) (99,637) (88,682) (93,559)

REANELEBREE

MR ARRA LR BEERARE BT EHER
JERM A AR BRERE - AEBEIWR
BREAHEBENELEHIBEERBE
53000007C ( ZFEZF N F « ¥ 2,974,000
7T) o BBREFHIBIRY - BSLRIBEERL
BEIEA -

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$5,300,000 (2009: HK$2,974,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

ERTEEES 32 Debt Securities Issued
rEE
The Group
—E-Z2F —ZTTNF
2010 2009
BT T BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
RSB EITEBE S Non-trading debt securities issued 231,900 71,800

B2 ZFER_FTETNF+ A
=+t—H FIBEXFUEBTEBRES
HEAT BB A REET -

PERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the amounts represented non-
trading debt securities issued by a subsidiary of the Bank.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

33 HiaE 33 Other Liabilities
KEME 1T
The Group The Bank
—E-Z2F —ZTTNF ZZE-ZTF —ZTTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BET T BT BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BHMSRMELEE  Items in the course of transmission
EANRERE] to other financial institutions 725 16,377 725 16,377
FEEt N E M ERERIE  Accruals and other payables 3,060,508 2,037,660 2,706,783 1,736,003
3,061,233 2,054,037 2,707,508 1,752,380
34 FEHIE A BRIE 34 Amounts Due to Subsidiaries
RIT
The Bank

—E2-2F —"ZTTNF
2010 2009
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
HiwaE Other liabilities 369,574 208,383

RITRHMES R  Deposits and balances from banks and
WIF R R AETF other financial institutions 107,784 144,194
LY SER N Deposits from customers 2,033,774 2,018,956
2,511,132 2,371,533
—z_mEER
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35 ERER 35 Loan Capital
AEE T
The Group The Bank
—2-2F —TTNF ZEB-BF —TTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BET T BT T BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEE9.125% Subordinated notes with US$250
HEEZXTT million 9.125%*
250,000,00049
BRERE 1,972,153 1,977,356 - -
FRERAMIERTT Subordinated notes with US$250
CEZISE million 1.75%-+LIBOR rate**
1.75% * E{EZETT
250,000,000H9
BERE 1,943,529 1,938,661 1,943,529 1,938,661
FEEE6875% Subordinated notes with US$500
HEZET million 6.875%%***
500,000,000A9
1BIER T 3,848,047 - 3,848,047 -
7,763,729 3,916,017 5,791,576 1,938,661
* FBEEF9125% - M {E 3 JT250,000,000 (F *  Subordinated notes with a coupon of 9.125% per annum and with face

@%%mMmmwwwm&ﬁmf%#—"
TFRAZT=HHREATHZEWNBA

CKWH - UT2 Limited 217 » 74 ﬁﬂﬂﬁ%
ZRER o AITEAGH R R E L
SEHBENSRBIEDELR o CKWH - UT2
Limited ] R =T — —FIRRIERIFE XA

9.125% KK A B BRE -
w —EDHEA+ T F4+—H > KTREET e

2,000,000,00089 R BRZ= 51+ 2] ([ R B & AT
2l BUFEERAE-EAZSHEIER
REBERITRERBEEM.75% - FEZET
250,000,000( (BB %51,949,500,0007T ) K F &
FIRBEZE - ELEZRETNERSHHE
RAREM R _ZT—+tF+=-A+=
AEE -

H*—?*?Eﬁﬂ—+ma AATIRAE LA _ERY ek
PHZERAESIRR T —TFNAEHD
BEBN ?éf?f?,m3§2%6875%)~ﬁﬁﬂ§%€iﬁ
500,000,000 ( Z5{E 7 #3,888,900,0007T ) HY TE &
BERE - EEZBREMINERSMERA
BlEm . WER_E-_ZEFA-+IUET
Hy o

PERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

value of US$250 million (equivalent to HK$1,944.1 million) were issued
on 23 May 2002 by CKWH-UT2 Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Bank and has been qualified as tier 2 capital. The Bank unconditionally
and irrevocably guarantees all amounts payable under the notes. The
9.125% per annum perpetual subordinated notes will be callable by
CKWH-UT2 Limited in 2012.

On 11 December 2007, the Bank, under a US$2 billion Medium Term
Note Programme (“the Programme”), issued subordinated float rate
notes with a coupon of 1.75% per annum above the LIBOR for three-
month US dollar deposits with face value of US$250 million (equivalent
to HK$1,949.5 million). The notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited and will be matured on 12 December 2017.

Under the Programme, and the new Offering Circular which issued in
June 2010, the Bank issued subordinated fixed rate notes on 24 June
2010 at 6.875% per annum and with a face value of US$500 million
(equivalent to HK$3,888.9 million). The notes are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited and will be matured on 24 June
2020.
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36 EXRK#E 36 Capital and Reserves
(@) BAE (@) Share capital
() ZEEREZRITRA (i) Authorised and issued share capital
—E-2F —ZTTAF
2010 2009
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
EERA Authorised:
EREEEE I T ERR 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
8,000,000,0008% HK$1 each 8,000,000 8,000,000
CETRAZRAE Issued and fully paid:
®1A18 : 1 January:
EREESE 1T ERR 7,283,341,176 (2009: 5,583,341,176)
7,283,341,176lR(ZEFNF : ordinary shares of HK$1 each
5,583,341,1768%) 7,283,341 5,583,341
BT REERGD Issuance and allotment of shares
FRAESE T ER Nil (2009: 1,700,000,000) ordinary shares of
(__EEEEijE 1,700,000,0000% ) HK$1 each (note 36(a)(ii))
(Bﬁ #E36(a)( - 1,700,000
M12H8318 At 31 December:
BREESE I T RR 7,283,341,176 (2009: 7,283,341,176) ordinary
7,283,341,176l(ZEZT NF ¢ shares of HKS1 each
7,283,341,1765%) 7,283,341 7,283,341

(ii)

TEREAE AR BRI REIRAR
2 ﬁﬁﬁﬁxﬁmami¢§%—%
WA RIEE - FTEEBERHEEREA
%ﬁ%$ﬁ%ﬂ%§§°

BRITR AR
RIZEBEZENFERNA=FH  KTUAEE
17 M B2 #£1,700,000,000 f% E B A% T &
ERARIREEEeRZERER AR
RITRZE—TFIWR BT RALER

,f/'\ °

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Bank's residual assets.

(i) Issuance and allotment of shares
On 30 June 2009, the Bank issued and allotted 1,700,000,000
ordinary shares at par to its immediate parent company, CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited. No shares were issued
and allotted by the Bankin 2010.

—E-TEER
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36 B ffE ()

(b) M EERHBH B
AEBGAER SRR BARENESF
BENEREBHEE 2N G AR HE
B o AFT 0 R R AR H 15 3 )
REKEHEBRFIIMT ;

Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Capital and Reserves (cont’d)

(b) Movement in components of equity of the Bank
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group'’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Bank’s individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

T
The Bank
ng e fReag
Eftfie  EfiRE (Hi3E361c))
R ROBE E5RE  -RBE  Poperty Investment  REEA Total  BRAHE
Share Share Capital General revaluation revaluation  Retained reserves Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  (note 36(c)) equity
BTn  BMTn  E¥Tn  BMTr  BMTn  BMTn  BETR BMTn BMTR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R010E1A1H At1 January 2010 7,283,341 282,930 2,903 100,000 20,932 (270,815) 4,386,884 4,522,834 11,806,175
BZ010EHWERES :  Changesinequity for 2010:
TEERF Profitfor the year - - - - - - 85792 857962 857962
REEEMRENAEE  Othercomprehensive income
for the year - - - - 3,04 38,993 - 42,197 4,197
IEE2ANGET Total comprehensive income forthe year - - - - 3204 38993 857962 900,159 900,159
REEMEMBRNGERE  Release of reserve upon disposal
of property - - - - (19,418) - 19418 - -
20105128318 At 31 December 2010 7,283,341 282,930 2,903 100,000 4718 (231,822) 5264264 5422993 12,706,334
R0EIA1E A1 January 2009 5583341 282930 2903 100,000 20932 (350829 3611868 3667804 9251145
HEN00EMERES :  Changesin equity for 2009
TEERRR Profitfor the year - - - - - - 097 6197 761007
REERMAENAEE  Other comprehensive income
forthe year - - - - 7719 80014 - 87733 81733
TEEREMGLE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 7719 80014 767,97 855,030 855,030
BRI EHR Issuance and allotment of shares 1,700,000 - - - - - - - 1700000
RAENEMERLGESE  Release of reserve upon disposal
of property - - - - (7719 - 7719 - -
R009E12A31H At 31 December 2009 7083341 282930 2903 100,000 20932 (270815) 4386884 4520834 11806175
FIERTEIRERAR

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



B TSR M

36

()
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REEERE®

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

R R B RRA B A BB alEBI)E
ABBIKFTE 8 o

B l#E
BARRBEI A DR TR -

— R 1A
— MR R RIERE & N — B8P RER
3 WHAIDIRTACR

& 5 E5RlA

[ ERREREMERRERINER
MR MAELRE L Z5E - WRE
B RE2(0) FTE O B R T R BRI

YWEREAE
MEBHRFEISRENE20MMENS
SRR - WHEARAI SR TR -
RIRBEEBCR BRG] FH79BQ IRETE
& GLREETBREERZA -

REE T 1#H
REBHEREERGEERFANAIH
HEBHFNRFAAEEES  IE
REBHT 2 PAE M SRR EIE o

(vii) JEERERNFE

RIFEFBEAHRBEDIRE - PERTT
R(PEDFBZUEESFOTIREH T
BB D TERTRED K TRIRHDE
ERBAE  BERATEBABESX

ERAR 2 B Z BTHIKF -

Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Capital and Reserves (cont’d)

(c) Nature and purpose of components of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is governed by
section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve
The capital reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.

General reserve
General reserve was set up from the transfer of retained earnings,
and it is available for distribution to shareholders.

Exchange differences reserve

The exchange differences reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statement
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in notes 2(p).

Property revaluation reserve
The property revaluation reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting polices set in note 2(i) and is not available
for distribution to shareholders because it does not constitute
realised profits within the meaning of section 79B(2) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of available-for-sale securities held at the
end of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies in note 2(e)(ii).

(vii) Statutory reserve

Under the relevant legislation of Mainland China, CBI (China)
is required to transfer 10% of its profit after taxation to a non-
distributable statutory reserve until such reserve has reached 50%
of its registered share capital.

—B-TEEH
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36 B ffE ()

(o) REMERBN(E)

(viii) ;£ E — MR 1 1

RBEPEAMRITER - PERITEER
(FE)FBHRILEE —REFEE - BRAKE
FEMMESE  EEERRER—RE
HARR AR BB ELEL - 2R
%)ﬁxzﬁéﬁﬂ éFE,D#EW@ﬁEE
EMBED 258 AT —REFBER
EEERAEREH

(ix) 1REE & F
REEEB(RITERINDEBEEREE
E’J%ﬁm ' $ﬁaﬂ£ﬁa1€%ﬁ¢%&hh

Z«%EWWE%E%MH AJREEAE
E’JE/T/\ E’JWET@?&:E%E o IEFhh
%E.)%Té 1.:%1%#) ------- CB D HEERE R
FMREE  R_T—ZTF+_A=1+—
B - RE &P E 5 Lt A BA I 8 ATk
BT RITIRER A S 88 A8 732,504,000
TL(ZETNF: #¥587,892,0007T) °
BARTRIREREZASER °

(d) REEHA 2R

RZZE—ZTF+ZA=+—80 " RBE
%Ei%s<<“ﬁﬂ%fﬁu>>%79s1w7%ﬁ’]%ﬁi1’ﬁ7%§+

AR TARITRENREERER
,% B 4548248000 L (ZEZENGF | B
3,830,377,0007T ) © R ¥ BT 53 36(b) AT R 5 #Y
Tﬁi“ﬁm%ﬁ/%%mg2480007t( o
NEF %3830377ooom§5321&m%aa/m
) 7 & 5,264,264,000 TL(ZEENF - B
4,386,884,0007T) 2 HIH) ZFEE BRI BIER
EREMRENREDER LAIRITE
EfERE -

PERITERERAE
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Capital and Reserves (cont’d)

(c) Nature and purpose of components of reserves (cont’d)
(viii) Regulatory general reserve

(ix)

Pursuant to the banking regulations of Mainland China, CBI
(China) is required to set up a regulatory general reserve, through
a transfer directly from the current year's profit appropriation,
as determined based on the 1% of the total risk assets at the
end of the reporting period to cover its unidentified potential
loss exposures. The regulatory general reserve forms part of the
equity of the Group.

Retained profits

A regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of
the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purposes by earmarking amounts in respect of impairment
losses recognised which the Bank will or may incur on loans and
advances. Movements in the reserve are earmarked directly
through retained profits and in consultation with the HKMA. At
31 December 2010, HK$732,504,000 (2009: HK$587,892,000)
was included in the retained profits in this respect which was
distributable to equity holders of the Bank subject to consultation
with the HKMA.

(d) Distributability of reserve

At 31 December 2010, the aggregate amount of reserves available for

distribution to equity shareholders of the Bank, as calculated under

the provision of section 798 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
was HKS4,548,248,000 (2009: HKS$3,830,377,000). The difference
between the aggregate distributable reserves of HK$4,548,248,000
(2009: HK$3,830,377,000) and the Bank's retained profits of
HK$5,264,264,000 (2009: HK$4,386,884,000) as reported in note 36(b)
mainly represents the inclusion of general reserve and the exclusion

of unrealised revaluation gain on investment properties and the

above regulatory reserve of the Bank.
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AEBEBRE -BARERRBERFE(TZ
BAEE]) Bt AEBAELREER
REEAXRFEAD Z THHK o ZENET
FR—ERELHRAE  REREEK
AEBNMELRBES - BEHAFLE
R - MR B HE S 2 B A B
B ARBENSKREBPMENERAE
B BR B ) SRR - T AR S A BRI
—EBINENES  ERZBRIREEIKX
M@

BT RRIRETEION  AREBA —TETHF
T-A—HE h2E AR BRED
g ARANMENEBIRMHEIEE -
AEBERIFRIE S 5 IR L F R 58 5 &6
D HYRER o

KEFNRN  KEBEELEEHAOER
#) BB 50368000 L ( BT N F : B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Staff Retirement Scheme

The Group has a defined contribution provident fund scheme
(“the Retirement Scheme”) under which it contributes 10% of the
employees’ basic salaries. The Retirement Scheme is a Mandatory
Provident Fund (“"MPF") exempted scheme and covers all permanent
full-time employees of the Group. No employee contributions are
required. Contributions forfeited by leavers prior to vesting fully may
not be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution
but are transferred to a separate welfare fund which shall be applied
for the welfare of the Retirement Scheme’s members.

Besides the Retirement Scheme, the Group also participated in an
approved MPF scheme effective on 1 December 2000 to provide
scheme choice to both existing and new employees. Mandatory
benefits are being provided under the MPF Scheme.

During the year, the Group contributed approximately HK$50,368,000
(2009: HK$48,514,000) (note 11(a)) to these schemes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 Cash and Cash Equivalents

AEHE
The Group
—E-2F —ZTTNF
2010 2009
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
(i) MEREREXRANRER () Components of cash and cash equivalents
HEZEIER in the consolidated cash flow statement
e MERTT » FRIFITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks
Hih o B masTs and other financial institutions 21,225,122 6,898,339
ERIT » PRIFITR Placements with and advances to banks,
Hih e BT M8 R central banks and other financial institutions
(JRR31E A R B HR) with original maturity within three months 7,659,298 4,222,088
Bl & %5 R R A B FRE Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held
(RRA3ME A W | HH) with original maturity within three months:
— Al EFE - Available-for-sale securities 2,019,112 867,929
30,903,532 11,988,356
(i) EAESHBRRRNYER (ii) Reconciliation with the consolidated
statement of financial position
e MERTT » FRFITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks
Hih & mgmnar and other financial institutions 21,225,122 6,898,339
ERIT » PRIRITR Placements with and advances to banks,
HSREENTER RN central banks and other financial institutions 12,229,126 15,562,509
Hﬁ%’&?—%ﬁmrﬁﬁf : Treasury bills and certificates of deposit held:
— A EEE - Available-for-sale securities 4,091,197 2,232,370
e SRR R B Amounts shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position 37,545,445 24,693,218
B REHARRRIE3E A M EEE Less : Amounts with an original maturity
of over three months (6,641,913) (12,704,862)
ReEmErANRE K& Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
iﬁﬁﬁfﬁlﬁ H cash flow statement 30,903,532 11,988,356
BREEZE—ZEF+A=T—HZE® The balances of cash and cash equivalents included cash balances
&iﬁ/\wfﬁlﬁ BERNEBEIINEEE RE with central banks and other financial institutions that are subject
FERGIH R RBITREMS r‘aﬂﬁl%%ﬁ’]fﬁ/i\ to exchange control and regulatory restrictions, amounting to
W TF R B 857,355,000 L ( ZEZNEF - HK$857,355,000 at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$307,197,000).

#307,197,0007T) ©

138] RERITEBRBRAT
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

AERRNEE 39 Assets Pledged as Security
AEBRARLT
The Group and the Bank
—E-ZEF —ZTTNF
2010 2009
BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HKS'000
RE MIERTT - PRIBITR Cash and balances with banks, central banks
HEfb & i Em&F and other financial institutions 1,012 395
EH HEFH Available-for-sale securities 86,176 62,010
BN TTE IR E & (FI5E0) Assets pledged for overseas branches (Note (i) 87,188 62,405
BEREYNBBREYIERRNEE Assets pledged for credit default swap
CEEEAD)) (Note (ii)) 2,168,957 2,339,954
2,256,145 2,402,359
MI5E - Note:
() FREERNEERENEERERTERE ()  The assets pledged represented statutory deposits pledged by the
MBS AETET N © overseas branches of the Bank to the Office of the Comptroller of

iy EBEFEN  AEEDHESHRESRES
RN ERENESREY BB RERS
REEFTRERZ RN HEREL IG5
= ERH 1;%1&(7,%%1,381,312,00075(:::::
FLEE - HE51.215,737,0007T ) K A 4 H & 2B
N —IE3EIT101,316000( — T NE : E£T
144,974,000) EE B ¥ 787,645000 0 ( ZEE
N - B51,124,217,00070) (IR B 2 FERE
R EREFREEAMEAEERE -

EXBABLXRS

&%Ezﬁﬁﬂ‘%i&% {’@ﬁﬁfﬁ?&ﬁéﬁﬁﬁé%&%
CREBEETTUTEREHAIRZS -

HEBRANXS
AEER  AEBEEBFERITERBE
RHEEBOETTZERS  HFREE

FEE  BEXRTFHREEFER  2HRE
B FRIBTRGMINER 5 o 5L
SRMAHNTFTERKERBRENETR ZRFMIE

BHISHRMmE  WEBHEARNEEHM
RGFREFHIEHRER - EEERE
BTSRRI B EEGIET -

Currency in the USA at the end of the reporting period.

(i) The Bank had entered into two credit default swaps with a senior loan
provider in the previous years as a partial credit protection against
the non-performance of a term loan provided by the senior loan
provider, both available-for-sale securities amounting to approximately
HK$1,381,312,000 (2009: HK$1,215,737,000) and a margin deposit of
US$101,316,000 (2009: US$144,974,000) equivalent to HK$787,645,000
(2009: HK$1,124,217,000) have been placed with the senior loan provider
for such credit protection.

40 Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with group companies
During the year, the Group entered into a number of transactions
with related parties, in the normal course of its banking business
including, inter alia, lending, the acceptance and placement of
inter-bank deposits, participation in loan syndicates, correspondent
The
transactions were priced based on relevant market rates at the time of

banking transactions and foreign exchange transactions.

each transaction, and were under the same terms as those available
to other counterparties and customers of the Group. In the opinion
of the directors, these transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms.
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40 EXBEH AR Z (&) 40 Material Related Party Transactions (cont’d)
(a) EREARNRS (&) (a) Transactions with group companies (cont’d)
REERN  BEBARZNBERNEER The amount of related party transactions during the year and
AR outstanding balances at the end of the year are set out below:
ERER
BALER B (K i) B DA (W)
KEBRAS Ultimate Immediate parent EEGE A-INGIGRIT) Related companies
The Group and the Bank controlling party (note (iil) Fellow subsidiaries Associates (note (i)) (note (ii)

“R-%F CTIAF CR-%F CTINF CR-RF CTINF CR-%F CEIAF CR-%F CTINR
000 009 2000 2009 2010 2009 20100 2009 2000 209
BRTR A%TL RWTR RNt ARTn ARTI BB A% T EETR AETR
HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS'000  HKSOD  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS'000  HKSO0D

FBIMA Interest income - 19 - - BM 290 2,085 1085 48068 25676
flaxi Interest expense (32541) (64950  (2838)  (B369) (56313 (60250  (10807) (10307  (93111) (3323
HhgBIA Other operating income - - 394 394 - -39 W60 6,004 -
mETih Operating expenses - - (5083 (10465 (4606 (4523 (974) (557) @ 2%
TEERIERS Trading gain/oss) on

W/ (BB deraties (107 - - - T - : [ _osw
BE Assets

M ERS Available-for-sale securities - - - - 316667 305508 - - 1,007,819 1,165,097
LRI A Derivative financial instruments 30 4650 - - 7,708 8 - - 37678 21,866
HihEUEER Other receivables - - 253436 - 403 3 1453 - 8046 20517
g Liabilities

FESRIA Derivative financial instruments 1,050 19427 - - B 786 - - 1351% 2049
Hth MR Other payables 10 984 29 00 43760 18081 2232 w0 BB 15901
EBER Loan capital - - - - 800734 79728 - - 2,934,659 1008104
EXED Lending activities

128318 At31 December - - - - 367365 581155 321,150 S TI0230 458845
FEETER Average for the year - - - - 508704 733566 189,689 142500 1457530 363887
BRE: Acceptance of deposits

128318 At31 December 601915 5154298 429995 427321 10,650,779 3301728 3215155 2035971 303968 75502
AFET5E Average for the year 2981786 6991621 430798 440627 10067516 3513868 3100452 2875098 171827 90254

BIHRRARMEE Off-statement of financial

position items

RHER &R Acceptances, quarantees and

RiERE letter of crecit

-ahe% - contract amounts

[/ (FEft) in receivable/(payable) - - 889,359 - (161) - (30000 (3000 - (624)

fTEeRIE Derivative financial instruments

-2%58 - notional amounts 1904823 2299517 - - 446,707 92133 - - 20,909,228 10526421
I fE L bl B 5 B R IF e R (B No impairment allowances were made in respect of the above loans
1o to and placements with related parties.
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(a) EEEBARMNRS ()
s -

(b)

0]

(i)

(iii)

$’§I)§Z$ THEE D R BAEB N A
NE R EEERERRINBE AT

KR
Bl AR REHERIERS AR BEEETE
B — L BB R RIMARER o

AR E2BIRINMNERRMIERAL
AEECHEFANEEERERERAABE

Bl eBERARAR(HERS]) &3
— B BEERGHE(HE) - BEPEESE

AEBEFFTMED B Farmingtoni®% & M
H P EREEREBURSEBNE AR
AEBRAEZRENBHANELENTREBE
BA&EmEZETEBIREEIT147,000000(%F
{B751#51,142,800,0007T ) ©

Notes to

the Financial Statements

40 Material Related Party Transactions (cont’d)

(@) Transactions with group companies (cont’d)
Note:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

Associates of the Group and the Bank included the associates of the
ultimate controlling party and immediate parent respectively.

Related companies referred to shareholders of the immediate parent,
which exercise significant influence on the immediate parent.

Regarding the two CDS as disclosed in note 23 to the financial
statements, the Group has entered into a sub-underwriting agreement
("the Agreement”) with its immediate parent, CITIC International Financial
Holdings Limited ("CIFH"), during the year. According to the Agreement
signed between the Group and CIFH relating to the Group's investment
in Farmington, CIFH agreed to undertake any potential CDS loss to be
borne by the Group under the CDS arrangement to the senior loan
provider, in form of a reimbursement to the Group, up to an amount not
to exceed US$147 million (equivalent to HKS$1,142.8 million).

1T M A F
The Bank Subsidiaries
—E-2F —ETNF
2010 2009
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
F B Interest income 50,460 88,425
FESZ Interest expense (177,537) (177,008)
Hpga(8k), WA Other operating (loss)/income (1,674) 2,280
LETH Operating expenses (47) (45)
HIEEBAENTS (b) Transactions with key management personnel
Z’X%.&$TT£K%—(‘E$}\E\@M$ EMTE Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group and the
NHAEEE N TARITESHNEIE - S50 Bank, including amounts paid to the Bank’s directors as disclosed in

T note 12, is as follows:
AEBRARLT
The Group and the Bank
—E-EF —TTNF
2010 2009
BT T BT IT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
MHEERET Short-term employee benefits 61,246 68,002
BEB 2R A Post-employment benefits 2,407 2,208
63,653 70,210
e sazaR st Al B TR (MiFE11@)) ° Total remuneration is included in "staff costs” (note 11(a)).
—T-TEEH
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(b) HEEEEAENRS (&)
ARERR » RITAAITRE R EZERA A
HE R EIE A B AN IR0 RR Ko e P2
HlZMMEAZENARREEER
B FEMERTERBRBBEPIREH
IE@E{T\*EM/\:t&‘(ZZDLﬁH)Eﬁ%ﬁfM 8
HEITAI LB BRI ZAER

Notes to the Financial Statements

40 Material Related Party Transactions (cont’d)

(b) Transactions with key management personnel (cont’d)

During the year, the Bank provided credit facilities to key management
personnel of the Bank and its holding companies and their close
family members and companies controlled or significantly influenced
by them. The credit facilities were provided in the ordinary course
of business and on substantially the same terms as for comparable
transactions with persons of a similar standing or, where applicable,
with other employees.

AEERAKIT

The Group and the Bank

—E-2F —TTNF
2010 2009
BT T BETT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
1A B eV RR At 1 January 14,655 8,739
R12A31BE4E At 31 December 9,416 14,655
FRNHEEAEKREEE Maximum amount during the year 18,167 17,050
REELSEREZBTEABRFAMNE No impairment losses have been recorded against balances
HHERTMRERSE EEREIETE outstanding during the year with key management personnel, and

A B Mt 1P B0 ST R I 4R R B 45 R RR IR B3 ME
BIFHARRELE

() THRABER
AITREEB(A 7]
BABWERWT :

UGG E161BIEIRFETT

no individually assessed impairment allowance has been made on
balances with key management personnel and their immediate
relatives at the year end.

(c) Loans to officers

Loans to officers of the Bank disclosed pursuant to section 161B of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

—B-F _—TTNE

2010 2009
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
R12A31BARTRENBEEER Aggregate amount of relevant loans made
4R 4B EE by the Bank outstanding at 31 December 32,369 30,498
KEERNRTRENEBER Maximum aggregate amount of relevant loans
RmiE R B made by the Bank outstanding during the year 34,146 32,450

i

E-ZER_ETAFT_A=1+—
B AEERER/ELERN

KRB

RERITERERAE
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There were no impairment allowances made against these loans at 31
December 2010 and 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management

This section presents information about the Group's exposure to, and
its management and control of risks, in particular the primary risks
associated with its use of financial instruments as follows:

- Credit risk: the risk of financial loss due to failure of a customer or
counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations.

- Market risk: the risk that movements in market risk factors,
including foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, interest
rates, credit spreads and equity prices, will reduce the Group’s
income, the value of its portfolios and its reserve value.

- Liquidity risk: the risk of inability to meet financial obligations as
they fall due. This may be caused by a funding liquidity problem
such as the inability to liquidate assets or obtain funding to meet
obligations or may be attributable to a market liquidity problem
resulting in market disruptions, thus hindering the Group's ability
to unwind or offset specific exposures without lowering market
prices significantly.

- Operational risk: the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.

The Group has established policies and procedures to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor these risks and limits continually by means of reliable
and up-to-date management and information systems. The Group
continually modifies and enhances its risk management frameworks
and infrastructure in keeping with the market, product offering and
international best practice. The Group's internal auditor also performs
regular independent audits to ensure due compliance with internal
policies and regulatory requirements.

In addition to the Group's exposure to and management of the
aforesaid risks, this note also includes information about the Group's
capital management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(a) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to failure of a customer or
counterparty to fulfill its contractual obligations. Credit exposures
arise principally in loans and advances, debt securities, treasury bills,
trading derivatives as well as credit risk of financial arrangements in
off-statement of financial position such as loan commitments. The
Group has developed standards, policies and procedures to measure,
monitor and mitigate the risk of its lending business. The policies
and procedures are reviewed as required to respond quickly to the
changing market environment to better reflect the risk factors for our
credit considerations.

Credit risk management and control is centralised in the Risk
Management Group (‘RMG") under the oversight of Credit Committee
and reported to the Credit & Risk Management Committee ("CRMC")
at the board level on a quarterly basis. These committees provide
appropriate oversight on the Group's risk management practices by
defining the Group's policies and risk appetite and providing RMG
with the means to implement measures to mitigate credit risks arising
from the Group's adopted strategy.

Credit risk imbedded in products is identified and measured in
product programmes. Credit risk pertaining to individual customers is
identified and measured by credit officers utilising internal risk rating
models. Credit applications are approved by credit officers under
delegated authorities or by Credit Committee, as the case may be.

The Group mitigates credit risk by means of taking collateral and
entering into offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers
and counterparties, as the case may be, should such clauses and
agreements be legally established and enforceable.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in geographic,
economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is material in relation to the Group’s
total exposures. The Group's portfolio of financial instruments is
diversified along geographic, industry and product sectors. Credit risk
concentration of the Group's respective financial assets is disclosed in
notes 20 to 23.
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41 cREMEE(E)

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(a) FEREBEE(H)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)

MERZFEERBHEEAFR - BAKH
ERMCEEERRO AR - WRES
BEH T ANRRTR - &€ @R E 58
B - AEBMEERRETRENTRE
R Baa3) Ik _E B E S

HREERRZHFRKEREBOHER KM
TEHETE 2 AR 15 74N & [E 1Y B 5% [, e A B 745 1
TR R AR AT I BB BT o SRR

NERHENRRA-—BEXEREBEEREE T

B % B AR B B S MR B VR B U AT
THEEREE AR o

AEBEE A RERBEF BN ETRA
MR TARRNEERR  REE
RELRFF - ERREARERR M E
R EERRIVEBRERARE =ZFN
SO E B A A B B R IR o

ERARE BRI ENHIESR %#ﬁﬁm—ﬁ
7 BEEAETHEANBEEER=ZZE
hﬁ%%o%ﬁam_ggﬂﬁi_g
—— M E3MERRE R BRELNR
ZEENF  ARAERERENRRAZRE
— R RII B AR AMSI E RN
HNAB 33000000 B HEFE - QR ZE
—ZF WA TEABIERNITEEX
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Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same way as
the Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk grading is applied
to the debt issuers with individual credit limits set. It is the Group’s
credit policy not to invest in unlisted debt securities that are below
the rating of Baa3, based on our Bond Portfolio Investment Strategy
Guideline.

Credit and counterparty risks related to countries and financial
institutions are assessed and monitoried regularly according to our
Country Risks and Financial Institution Risks policies. The policies are
implemented together to effectively assess and control credit limits
and tenors made available to the respective financial institutions
under an umbrella country risk limit for each country.

The Group applies the same credit policy in respect of contingent
liabilities as in respect of financial instruments recorded on the
statement of financial position, based on loan approval procedures,
use of limits to reduce risk and monitoring. Credit risk is also mitigated
by obtaining collateral in the form of pledged assets and guarantees
from borrowers and third parties.

As part of the ongoing development of the Group’s impairment
assessment framework, the Collective Assessment model
Enhancement Project was kick-started in 2009. This project comprise
3 key stages of implementation during 2009-2011 whereby (1) In
2009, more stringent Decay Factors were adopted assigning greater
emphasis to losses incurred in more recent periods resulting in a
negative impact of an additional HK$33.0 million, (2) In 2010, more
granular and accurate industry loss ratios were adopted with a
positive impact of HK$118.0 million and finally (3) In 2011, the Group
plans to implement the Macroeconomic Factor model whereby the
impact will depend on the macroeconomic conditions at that time.

The key driver behind this project is to ensure that the Group has a
more robust approach in establishing an adequate provisioning level
commensurate with its strategy and loan portfolio as well as to be
fully align with market practices.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)

(i) Credit quality

The Group has a 14-grade internal risk rating system (Grade
1-11 for performing loans and Grade 12-14 for non-performing
loans) that maps to external agencies Master Scales, providing
calibrated internal ratings. The integration of this framework into
the Group's reporting structure has enabled a more accurate
risk reporting, thus enhancing the internal management. The
risk rating tools are calibrated according to differing customer
segment (manufacturing, trading, property development/
investment, and etc.) which enables the ranking of the credit
quality of each customer and govern the credit exposure to
individual customer or counterparty.

Risk ratings of customers are reviewed regularly and amendments,
where necessary, are implemented promptly, particularly in times
of fluctuating market conditions such as the financial tsunami in
2008. The Group also maintains a committee to oversee weaker
credits (which are of lower risk rating of 8-10) on regular basis to
preserve our quality portfolio. The table below outlines our rating
scale benchmarking to external credit agencies:

AR R A

Rating Principles

1 AA-/Aa3/AA-S LA

AA-/Aa3/AA- or above

fERA T

fEtRsR H0 e 1 DA R AR E T -

Borrowers are almost risk free.

Extremely strong ability to meet financial obligations.

2 A-/A3/A-ZA+/AT/A+

A-/A3/A-to A+/AT/A+

fERAB BN E/ MEER -
EIEERAIEE S AR R T ET

Borrowers with minimal risk of default.

Very strong ability to meet financial obligations.

3 BBB/Baa2/BBBZEBBB+/Baal/BBB+ -

BBB/Baa2/BBB to BBB+/Baal/BBB+ -

ERAREZONRERE -

s Re 1 oAm B BT E T -

Borrowers with very low risk of default.
Strong ability to meet financial obligations.

4 BBB-/Baa3/BBB-

BBB-/Baa3/BBB-

ERABELNERR -
MBI MR R ER

Borrowers with low risk of default.

Satisfactory ability to meet financial obligations.

PERITERERA S
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(a) FERBRERE(HE)
() EEZE ()

AEBETAREE R
(14-851)

Internal Rating
System (14-grade)

ECAIFEAR (RIEE(i))

(BE BE/ 28
ECAI Rating (note(i))
(S&P/Moody’ s/Fitch)

Notes to the Financial Statements

41

(a)

Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

Credit risk management (cont’d)
(i)  Credit quality (cont’d)

AP R A
Rating Principles

5 BB+/Bal/BB+ - BERABRFHHER -
- WARPERFIMEAR —ENREEMN -
BB+/Ba1/BB+ - Borrowers with below average risk.
- Thisis a medium-grade and it possesses certain speculative characteristics.
6 BB/Ba2/BB - BRARFENER -
- EREMREN R ERE
BB/Ba2/BB - Borrowers with average risk.
- Satisfactory ability to meet financial obligations.
7 BB-/Ba3/BB- - BRARMER - B0 TEKTERERR o
BB-/Ba3/BB- - Borrowers with acceptable but above average risk.
8 B+/B1/B+ - BERAPERBEL -
B+/B1/B+ - Borrowers with moderate risk of default.
9 B/B2/B - BRABRKERELD -
B/B2/B - Borrowers with substantial risk of default.
10 B-/B3/B- - BRARERED -
B-/B3/B- - Borrowers with high risk of default.

11 BN
Special Mention

C/C/CECCC+/Caal/CCCH
C/C/Cto CCC+/Caal/CCCH

ERAF RO NE R M BES -

Borrowers with clear difficulties meeting financial obligations.

12 FERE D/-/D - EREFRDEBRROTEBERHEE)

Substandard D/-/D - Identical with Substandard of Loan Classification Policy (note (ii)).
13 Al &E - - ZRERDEBRNAREN

Doubtful - - Identical with Doubtful of Loan Classification Policy.
14 B8 - - ZRERDEBRNEBREEN -

Loss - - Identical with Loss of Loan Classification Policy.
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(a) FERBREE(HE)
() =EZE ()

Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)
(i)  Credit quality (cont’d)

MI3E - Note:

() ECALBHNEBE AT it - (i)  ECAI stands for External Credit Assessment Institution.

(il BEFRDEHENBERETE T HEEEE (i) Loan Classification Policy sets out a system for classifying relevant
I9%E RRBHEERELNERY assets in accordance with the Loan Classification Guideline issued

MRSl BIMAEEE

EMEFRETOR

(i) 1EERBEIE

BB —RIZ by the HKMA such that consistent criteria and timing for grading of

relevant assets shall be put into effect.

(i) Exposure of credit risk

REERASHEERR LR - Kt & The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
FRFENERMIEMERER - B period without taking into consideration of any collateral held
FEARRA R TIRE R E ER IR ER or other credit enhancements is represented by the carrying

HEEFHRARE S o

BN R

=ERE M R amount of each financial assets in the statement of financial

position after deducting any impairment allowance. A summary
of the maximum exposure is as follows:

rEE 1T
The Group The Bank
—B-2F _—TTNF ZB-FBF _TTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BETT BT BETT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

R RARIT » PRFITR
HiedmgBgnes

HIRIT - PRI|ITREME
BEENTRSLBR

EERBBEBRANRBROA
BENE
BEFERRBH N EAMREA

BRI

VBEREREMEEERH
HE B &

EREREREMEEERH
B

Cash and balances with banks, central

banks and other financial institutions 21,225,122 6,898,339 20,686,359 5,944,423
Placements with and advances to

banks, central banks and other

financial institutions 12,229,126 15,562,509 9,000,325 14,206,596
Trading assets 1,626,466 1,777,702 1,613,631 1,775,554
Securities designated at fair value

through profit or loss 646,508 580,636 646,508 580,636
Loans and advances to customers and

other accounts 90,261,402 73,964,501 80,914,843 65,693,260
Available-for-sale securities 20,818,303 19,974,150 20,759,537 19,974,150
Financial guarantees and other credit

related contingent liabilities 7,749,397 6,494,973 7,454,178 6,354,315
Loans commitments and other credit

related commitments 36,751,108 26,738,569 36,325,448 26,651,467

191,307,432 151,991,379 177,400,829 141,180,401

148| RERITEBRBRAT
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41 cREMEE(E)

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(a) EERMERE(E)
(iii) 15 B J8 iz B9 i 4%

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)
(iii) Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit

—BHmRAMEA
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REBBAEHERATRE S RERE
fﬂ B o —MRiME @ AEBERG R
CEARAURESEEERONR
% o NEBBEZRAREEERRS
KE, HRIE_ZSZNFEREEF
REBDAKDRFBEERE -

AEERIEER R B MEFE HE M
TEBERE ReER REBREE
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o HE—EBERT  ARBERFER
MR M B EREEERER - #ixh
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AEEE —EFERER AT TR
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enhancements

The Group places great effort and resources to mitigate credit
risk and this takes many forms. In general, risk on the Group'’s
ultimate credit exposure is mitigated by recognised collateral
and credit risk enhancement. The Group continuously seeks to
enhance its level of credit risk mitigation, and particularly during
the financial tsunami in 2008, the Group was successful in this
aspect to safeguard its credit quality.

The principal collateral received to secure loans and advances
include mortgages, cash collaterals, equities listed on a main
index/recognised exchanges, account receivables (“AR")
assignment, standby letter of credits and listed debt securities
acceptable to the Group. In some cases, depending on the
customer’s position and the types of credit products, loans may
be granted on a clean basis backed by corporate or personal
guarantees.

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral or credit risk enhancements accompanied with
determination of valuation parameters. Such parameters are
expected to be conservative and reviewed regularly. Security
structures and covenants (financial and non-financial) are subject
to regular review to ensure they are complied with the stipulated
conditions. The collateral is important to mitigate credit risk,
but it is the Group's policy to assess the repayment ability of
individual customer or counterparty rather than just to rely solely
on security.

—E-TEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)

(iii) Mitigation of credit risk — Collateral and other credit

enhancements (cont’d)

The Group's collateralised credit risk at 31 December 2010 and

2009, excluding impaired exposures, is broken down as follows:

xEE
The Group The Bank
—¥-%§ -—ITNG —®-BF —ITTAE
2010 2009 2010 2009
BETT BT T BETT BETIT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
EnkagemkEaAER  Lower of gross loans and advances
HemgE BARRE and fair value of collateral and
MEBIEARAAEMBM  other credit enhancements held
EIREER: against financial assets that are:
—RBBEYRE -~ neither past due nor impaired 49,397,094 41461401 41,792,051 34,125,230
—BHEZERE - past due but not impaired 394,960 587,900 262,196 433,519
49,792,054 42,049,301 42,054,247 34,558,749

(iv) BEHSEERERESE
B EE-URBRALTKNEEHE
pi=Eid]
REBR-ZZ—ZFR_ZTTNFHK
AR AREEEHEEIIEAER
HEEEMEDR—HERE AEEFE
FRFEAEEEDR  EZERRITHE
EXHARETCKAMBERNE 1
FR SRS ARKKEBERR - BK
MERITHEELIR(BIEEE) - &
TEEHINTRAER  EmkXS LR
BERMATEZINRR EREFE - =2
HHERBR M ERTABEOMERLE
HiBkE - REBEEITWSEFEAN
- IRIE AR R B TR A b S LR AR R B
i o

PERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(iv) Portfolio management and risk concentration

Portfolio management — Risk Based Pricing Model

As part of the Group's portfolio management practices, the Group
adopted the Risk Based Pricing Model in 2010 and 2009 with the
aim of introducing a minimum pricing threshold on different

types of transactions in order to improve the overall return for

the Group (value creation), after taking into account the risks,
and thus capital required to support the loan exposure and other
costs. This tool strikes a balance between price and accepted
risks taking into consideration, the differing customer, product
and transaction. The key components required to estimate the
risks, and thus pricing are Probability of Default and Loss Given
Default. Both measures of risk take into account the mitigation
techniques put in place in the Group in order to encourage its use.
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41 cREMEE(E) 41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
(@) FERRE IE(,. ) (a) Credit risk management (cont’d)
(iv) BHASEEREGERE (&) (iv) Portfolio management and risk concentration (cont’d)
£ \,TKZH/\ SIE-LARES AR EBHIE Portfolio management — Risk Based Pricing Model (cont'd)
BB (58)
E Definitions:
— BABERREFP—TFTRBEELIN ~  Probability of Default (‘PD") is the likelihood, expressed as a
AR - IADLLER © percentage, of a default event in a one-year time horizon, for

that customer.

— BHBELARREERPENRAEH - Loss Given Default ("LGD") is an estimate of the severity of
B A REESE B A BRE (AT - the loss that the Group is likely to incur in the event that the

customer defaults.

— BEAMORXIUHFEELNENE - Exposure at Default ("EAD") is the exposure to the
kA o counterparty in the event that the default occurs.
FEkErE Risk concentration
REBCHTRREREEBBERILL A Risk Concentration Policy is in place and the Group frequently
BRAEFMAUERERSE « BXK - reviews its loan exposure to monitor the concentration risk by
54D MEmR EHER - @eE RS customer, country, market segment and products.
B o

—z-mEEH |15
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)

(v) Credit quality of loans and advances

The Group uses every means to manage and monitor its risks

and has prudent Loan Classification Policy and Impairment

Assessment Policy in place to govern this aspect.

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, all loans and advances to Banks
are not impaired. The credit quality of loans and advances to

customers is analysed as follows:

AEE 1T
The Group The Bank
—E-ZF —IZTTHNEF CZE-BF —ITTHF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BT BT BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEERN A EER Gross loans and advances to
customers
— R BBHATRE — neither past due nor impaired 86,895,502 70,979,886 77,858,777 62,960,913
—BEHER A RE — past due but not impaired 691,921 966,561 485,698 811,126
—ERE — impaired 1,230,812 1,304,137 1,175,886 1,250,301
88,818,235 73,250,584 79,520,361 65,022,340
Hep: Of which
rEH 1T
The Group The Bank
225 —TTNF ZEB-BE —ITThF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BETT BT BT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BHBESHFENEZFSE Gross loans and advances to
P& customers that are neither past
due nor impaired
—ERREFTTFIE0 — Pass included Grades 1 to 10 85,592,366 70,426,850 76,557,524 62,409,779
— BB IEA N — Special mention included
Grade 11 1,303,136 553,036 1,301,253 551,134
86,895,502 70,979,886 77,858,777 62,960,913

PERITERERA S
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(@) FERRE EE(.. ) (a) Credit risk management (cont’d)
v) BERRBHWEEEZEES (&) (v) Credit quality of loans and advances (cont'd)
ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ ENEEFERRRATH The ageing analysis of loans and advances to customers that are
BREC DT - past due but not impaired is as follows:
KEE 1T
The Group The Bank
—E-BF —TTHF ZEB-BE —TTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BETT BT T BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
E%ﬁﬁﬁﬁm SBEREF  Gross loans and advances to
BB GREEE customers that are past due but
not impaired
— B E3E A SIAT ~ Overdue 3 months or less 647,041 753,309 485,698 597,874
—3Z61dH — 6 months or less but over 3 months 44,880 - - -
—6E A& 14 — 1 year or less but over 6 months - 77,546 - 77,546
—1FNUE - Over 1 year - 135,706 - 135,706
691,921 966,561 485,698 811,126

RZZE—ZLF+A=+—8 " 1xRH
REFERER - SBHsRENER
N BAERGHE BB #5194 270,000TC(ZEE N,
& ¢ B¥62,252,0007T) ©

RITR R ERE S ONTREE R F
MBI D BIZ 5P EE22(0) RS Bz
IR ERHIEE®B)

Loans and advances that would be past due or impaired had the
terms not been rescheduled amounted to HK$194,270,000 at 31
December 2010 (2009: HKS$2,252,000).

Further detail analysis on the impaired loan by industry sectors or
by geographical locations are provided in note 22 (c) and note (B)
of the unaudited supplementary information respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(a) Credit risk management (cont’d)
(v) Credit quality of loans and advances (cont'd)

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances
Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the same way
as the Group manages its corporate lending risk. Risk grading is
applied to the debt issuers with individual credit limits set. It is
the Group's credit policy not to invest in unlisted debt securities
that are below the rating of Baa3, in case it happens, the
impairment assessment will be performed by Risk Management
Group in order to properly reflect their fair value as at the end
of the reporting period. In response to recent debt crisis in
European countries, the Group has performed credit and market
risk assessment at 31 December 2010 for certain European debt
securities and concluded there were no objective evidence that
should call for impairment assessment on these debt securities.
In addition, there were no objective evidence that should call for
impairment assessment on individual, listed debt securities at 31
December 2010 and 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)

Credit quality of loans and advances (cont'd)

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

(cont'd)

The following table presents the credit quality of investments

in debt securities analysed by the designated external credit

assessment agency, Moody's Investors Service ratings (or their

equivalent) at the end of the reporting period. Credit ratings for

those debt securities are represented by either the issue or the

issuer ratings, ratings designated for the issuers are reported in

case there are no issue ratings.

rEE
The Group
—g-%%
2010

B R

DREENES

Securities

designated A HEEH
at fair value Available-

RXBHABEE through profit for-sale ko]
Trading assets or loss securities Total
B¥TT BT T B¥TT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Aaa Aaa - - 488,130 488,130
Aa3EAal Aa3 to Aal - - 8,146,764 8,146,764
A3EAT A3 to Al - 596,902 7,017,307 7,614,209
ERA3 Lower than A3 - - 2,203,040 2,203,040
- 596,902 17,855,241 18,452,143
AL Unrated - 49,606 2,963,062 3,012,668
ks Total - 646,508 20,818,303 21,464,811
—E-ZHEFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(a) Credit risk management (cont’d)

(v) Credit quality of loans and advances (cont'd)

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

(&) (cont'd)
47
The Bank
—z-25
2010
EEABBR
B U R
DNABENES
Securities
designated Tt HEEH
at fair value Available-
R HAEEE through profit for-sale Pkl
Trading assets or loss securities Total
BET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Aaa Aaa - - 488,130 488,130
Aa3ZE Aal Aa3 to Aal - - 8,146,764 8,146,764
I EYN A3 to Al - 596,902 6,958,541 7,555,443
A3 Lower than A3 - - 2,203,040 2,203,040
- 596,902 17,796,475 18,393,377
REFAR Unrated - 49,606 2,963,062 3,012,668
1B=g Total - 646,508 20,759,537 21,406,045
FIERITEEERAQA

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(@) Credit risk management (cont’d)

(v) Credit quality of loans and advances (cont'd)

Credit quality of financial assets other than loans and advances

(&) (cont'd)
REEMATT
The Group and the Bank
—ETRF
2009
B ABA
B2 A S B
NHEERES
Securities
designated AJfit HEEH
at fair value Available-
RHHAHREE  through profit for-sale pak )
Trading assets or loss securities Total
BT T BT T BT ok i
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Aaa Aaa - - 657,554 657,554
Aa3EAa] Aa3 to Aal 624,148 - 11,520,492 12,144,640
A3IEAI A3 to Al - 368,594 3,812,915 4,181,509
{ERAA3 Lower than A3 - 69 2,986,014 2,986,083
624,148 368,663 18,976,975 19,969,786
RELR Unrated - 211,973 997,175 1,209,148
k) Total 624,148 580,636 19,974,150 21,178,934
—B-BEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management

Market risk arises from all market risk sensitive financial instruments,
including securities, foreign exchange contracts, equity and derivative
instruments, as well as from available-for-sale securities or structural
positions. The Group separates exposures to market risk mainly into
trading and available-for-sale ("AFS”) portfolios. Trading portfolios
include positions arising from proprietary position-taking and other
marked-to-market positions designated to the trading book. AFS
portfolios include positions that primarily arise from the Group's
investments in securities, which neither are intended to be held
to maturity nor purchased with trading purposes. The change in
valuation for the trading portfolios from market risks affects the
income statement while that for the AFS portfolios from market risks
affects the investment revaluation reserve. The Group is necessary to
ensure impacts on both the income statement and the reserves from
market risks are under proper and prudent controls. The objectives of
market risk management are to:

- identify, monitor and control market risk exposures through the
measurement of the risks; the establishment of position limits,
sensitivities limits and value at risk ("“VaR”) limits based on the
Group's Tier 1 capital base; and communication of risks to senior
management;

- support business growth with reference to a risk controlled
framework; and

— ensure a proper balance between risk and return.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

RZARER
Trading Portfolios

Market risk framework

The Group has a clear market risk appetite through the establishment
of a limit structure, early warnings alerts and policies for the trading
and AFS portfolios. Limits are categorised into the hierarchy of policy
limits, business limits, and transaction limits. This market risk appetite
has been approved by the Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO")
and endorsed by the Board through the CRMC. The hierarchy of the
limit structure is set up to control on position size, profit and loss
and sensitivities from the portfolio level to individual trader level. All
business units with market risks are required to be in strict compliance
with the policies and the limits. Treasury is the primary business
unit that involves in market risk exposures. Market Risk Department
is an independent risk measurement and control unit, which is
overseen by the Head of Market Risk who reports to the Director of
Risks. Market risk department uses a set of quantitative techniques to
identify, measure, and control the market risks, which are reported to
ALCO and to the Board through the CRMC on a regular basis. These
techniques include sensitivity analysis, VaR and stress tests, which are
measured relative to the Group's capital base.

The following table provides an overview of quantitative measures in
various market risk reports:

AHEERFES
AFS Portfolios

FBRER  Risk type B R
SNGE Foreign exchange A&
) & Interest rate [\ (8
L Commodity BB 1E
A% 2 Equity Rk E
ZEBZE  Credit spread T
HAEEH  Portfolio type [EB21E -

BURRE

BURE

BRI

Risk measures [ B SR & Risk measures
VaR N3 A Not applicable
VaR and sensitivity  [EfRENRBRE  VaRand sensitivity
VaR E A Not applicable
VaR BRRE Sensitivity

Not applicable [R\f (B & U E VaR and sensitivity

AR E - BB R
B

VaR, sensitivity and VaR, sensitivity and

stress test stress test

—B-TEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

Market risk framework (cont’d)

The Group's approval process for new products is controlled by the
“New Product Evaluation and Approval Policy” approved by CRMC.
According to the Policy, new products are subject to risk clearances
by various functional units, including Financial Management,
Operations & Technology Management, Risk Management Group,
Legal Department and Compliance Department. After obtaining the
functional clearances, the sponsoring Business Head shall submit the
Product Evaluation Proposal for the joint approval of Director of Risks
and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO")/Alternate Chief Executive Officer
("ACEQ").

Methodology and characteristics of market risk model
The following explain the types of quantitative risk measures the
Group adopts.

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity measures are used to monitor the market risk positions
for each type of risk exposures. For example, present value of a
basis point movement in interest rates and present value of a basis
point movement in credit spreads for credit spread risk are used for
monitoring purposes.

Value at risk

VaR is a technique that estimates the potential losses that could occur
on risk positions as a result of movements in market rates and prices
over a specified time horizon and to a given level of confidence.
The model is designed to capture the different risk types including
interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, credit spread risk, equity risk,
commaodity risk and volatility risk.

The VaR models used by the Group are based predominantly on
historical simulation and Monte Carlo simulation is also used as a
reference. These models derive plausible future scenarios from
historical market rates and prices, taking into account correlation
amongst different markets and rates such as interest rates and foreign
exchange rates. The models also incorporate the effect of embedded
options of the underlying exposures.
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41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)
Value at risk (cont'd)
The historical simulation model used by the Group include the

following elements:

potential market movements are calculated with reference to
data from the prior year for the trading portfolios and from the
last two years for the AFS portfolios, including historical market
rates, prices and the associated volatilities;

for the trading portfolio, VaR is calculated with a 99 per cent
confidence level and for a 1-day holding period;

THEREYE - —2-BEXFARESAKE THRARESE - —BTAFRSAREEAKRE
Trend in Market Risk — Trading Portfolio VaR in 2010 Trend in Market Risk — Trading Portfolio VaR in 2009
12 12
) A'n ) 5 9 ‘ A |~ﬂ.
2 M
T va" A ' | TN | | AT I
IR R
5 v 5 M 1
& &
W 3 l“\/\uu W 3 WV‘ o
0 T T T 0 T
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 12 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 n 12
A3 Month A Month
AL, = I L 4L VAN 2o ~ . . .
— HAHBEERFREMES  BERENLS —  for the AFS portfolio, VaR is calculated with a 99 per cent
AN = N X N — . . .
DZNTIEELKERAZBRTXR confidence level and for a 250-day holding period; and
+ e I A A
MR AR ERE &
THEREYE - —2-RETHHERSAEN50RARE TERAREY - —FFAFTHHERSESN250RAME
Trend in Market Risk — AFS Portfolio 250 Days VaR in 2010 Trend in Market Risk — AFS Portfolio 250 Days VaR in 2009
1,400 1,400
: m /-\"‘/ Y V\N\“ s W
w o
X £
T T
12 1,000 o 1 1,000
b b
Ju o
i \ ¥
® 00 Lo L“Y R 500
600 T T T 600 T T T
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)
Value at risk (cont’d)

back testing, started in year 2009, the Group routinely validates
the accuracy of its VaR model for its trading portfolios by
comparing the actual and hypothetical daily profit and loss
results, adjusted for items including fees and commissions,
against the corresponding VaR numbers. Statistically, the Group
would expect to see losses in excess of VaR only one per cent of
the time over a one-year period. The actual number of excesses
over this period can therefore be used to gauge how well the
model is performing. In year 2010, there is no exception (2009:
one exception) occurred under back-testing, which corresponded
to the green zone as specified by the HKMA and the international
Basel principles.

CE-EFEASENEARERNERKERER
The Group's Actual Profit and Loss Backtesting Model in 2010
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41 cREMEE(E)

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) MERBEE(E) (b) Market risk management (cont’d)

B pelE (&)

#HAERTDENEREE EIEFHH
BIRET - AIAMER—EREFO T SRR
g BEHBEEBRRIME - flm - MAESL
BEES—EREAEEBERENEA
ENBESFEHNREEZEBL TEDZ
NTARNECERBNES - BTHEERE
Rl mERARBEEEERAEEER
EeNENARGERRRTRSAEES
MAlftH EEFAG N RRBER A LR
H B ERIREM -

HE-_Z-ZFE+_-_A=+—HIHW*F
B AIEERSBRESKRE (MK ERE
MERETR) 2B HFHUEEE 6000
TL(ZETNF « B¥s40007T) + BEHFY
W AGZ AR 2= B A 1,046,000t (Z 2T 1,
F A% 1241000T) c TEBERBEZT
—ZFERZTEFENFT_A=FT—BHIEF
EAREBEMENERAZEBDHE -

Value at risk (cont’d)

While VaR calculated under these approaches can serve as a good
guide for market risk under normal market conditions, it has its
limitations. For example, the use of historical data as a proxy may
not encompass all possible potential events and the events beyond
the 99 per cent confidence interval are not considered. In order to
mitigate such limitation, Market Risk Department provides ALCO
with the stress test results reflecting potential extreme events on the
market risk exposures for the trading and AFS portfolios.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the average daily mark-
to-market revenue from the Bank’s trading portfolio and fund
investments (excluding structured investment vehicles) was a gain
of HKS$6,000 (2009: HK$84,000). The standard deviation of the daily
revenue was HKS$1,046,000 (2009: HK$1,241,000). The graphs below
show the histograms of the Group’s daily mark-to-market revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 respectively.

Ro-B-BEETEIHEKANEASHE

Histogram of daily mark-to-market revenue in 2010
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Histogram of daily mark-to-market revenue in 2009
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)
Value at risk (cont'd)
The tables below show the VaR statistics for the trading book.

BERSENTHER - —XERE9%

Market Risk for the Trading Portfolio - One day VaR 99%

—E-%% “ERNE
2010 2009

Rt+=A ®’+=A

-5 B ¥y =t-8 55 3y T =f—H

At 31 At31

Maximum  Minimum Mean  December Maximum Minimum Mean  December

BETr B%Tr BT B%Tr AT BETr BT BETx

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

INEE LR Foreign exchange risk 3,577 263 1,417 1,321 5384 229 1,141 344

FIEER Interest rate risk 10,712 1,777 5,304 2,450 14,028 2,369 5,667 4,224

ERELE Total VaR 9,368 2,791 5,697 3,776 9,978 2,199 5772 4176

THEERFEENTZRAR-AZT=A EHEEFASHTERBNAZTZA
Market Risk for the AFS Portfolio January - December  Market Risk for the AFS Portfolio September - December
—g-%F =
2010 2009

R=A R=A

-] &1 ¥ =1-H 1] 53N g =Z+—H

At 31 At 31

Maximum  Minimum Mean December  Maximum Minimum Mean  December

BETT B%Tx E%Tn  BMTx A%t BT A%Tr  E¥Tx

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FIEER Interest rate risk 704,930 394,240 549,534 204,944 821,000 617,000 710,000 624,000

EEHZRR Credit spread risk 1,290,596 881,034 1,086,969 674,746 1,019,000 941,000 972,000 974,000
ZRATK Total 250-day VaR

R E 8z 1,381,291 956,317 1,167,476 770,382 1,205,000 1,070,000 1,135,000 1,137,000

GREIE Ll

ERFAETHERARK_FTTN

FNARE -
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September 2009.

Note: Calculation of market risk VaR for the AFS portfolio started from
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41 cREMEE(E)

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) MERBEE(E) (b) Market risk management (cont’d)

B 77 R &t
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FEREME

BTIRSTTHEEEGNERERZ - ™
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BAEBMEYRERR - BEBOKREEN
ENEBRS  BNEREZHAKESE
FREGENEETE

Stress testing

Stress testing is implemented to mitigate the weaknesses in the
VaR model in order to capture the remote but plausible events. The
Group uses the following scenarios for market risk stress testing:

- sensitivity scenarios, which consider the impact of any single risk
factor or a set of factors that are unlikely to be captured by the
VaR model, such as the break of HK dollar and US dollar currency
peg; and

- historical scenarios, which incorporate historical observation of
market moves during previous stress periods which would not
be captured by the VaR model such as the impact on valuation
under the recent credit crisis scenario.

Stress testing results provide ALCO with an assessment of the financial
impact from such events that would have on the Group's income
statement and reserve. The daily losses for the trading portfolio and
the yearly negative reserve impact for the AFS portfolios experienced
in 2010 were within the stress loss scenarios reported to ALCO.

Credit spread risk

During the financial crisis started in the middle of year 2007, in
addition to interest rate risk and extreme market volatilities, the crisis
was also characterised by significant widening in credit spreads,
which had heavily affected the valuation for the AFS portfolios. In
addition, the extreme market conditions have made the availability
of market prices for some of the securities infrequent and, to a certain
extent, less reliable, which had further increased the challenge and
complexity for the portfolio valuation for some of the securities in the
AFS portfolio.

In order to strengthen the risk control for the AFS portfolios, Market
Risk Department has established in September 2009 and has
developed a framework that enables the estimation for the fair
values of option adjusted spreads in order to calculate the fair values
for illiquid securities, as well as the calculation of a 250-day credit
spread VaR, credit spread sensitivity risk statistics, stress testing and
the establishment for a limit structure and early alert indicators. The
objective for the choice of the 250-day credit spread VaR statistics is
to measure the potential adverse impact on the Group's reserve on an
annual basis.

—B-TEEH
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41 TRIEBREE (E)

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) MiEZEEE (&) (b) Market risk management (cont’d)

SMNE [ 2 Currency risk
AEERIMNERREBERINEESTR - ¥ The Group's foreign exchange risk stems from taking foreign
RG INEFHKRE  NEEKEINDTT exchange positions from commercial dealings, investments in foreign

MBRARIMEE - AEBERNINEEER
REHYAELHEERBBEZESZE - B
LA 2 SME BB K 512 B 15 @ B & fn &
BE 152 & 58 A R BURK E 1A Greeks (38 FB R A1
[EHE) HE_ZT—ZTF+=-_A=+—H
HFE AEEINEBEERMNFHEAR
S BEFEEE115000T( T NE ¢
i A1) 78 85 105,0007T ) R HIZER Z BB
571,0007C( ZZ T NAF : #B#242,0007T) °

REZERNERINERBRIT

i

currency securities and operations of the Group and its overseas
branches and subsidiaries. Foreign exchange positions of the Group
are subject to exposure limits approved by ALCO. Methods adopted
to measure foreign currency risk exposure against corresponding
limits include individual currency positions, overall foreign exchange
positions and sensitivities such as Greeks (for foreign exchange
options). For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group's average
daily trading profit and loss from foreign exchange positions was a
profit of HK$115,000 (2009: a profit of HK$105,000 ) with a standard
deviation of HK$571,000 (2009: HK$242,000).

Significant foreign currency exposures at the end of the reporting
period were as follows:

K&EE
The Group
ZE-Ef “EENE
2010 2009
ESH ARE  HitE% By ey ARE  Hig® ek
BERB¥TT  Equivalentin HK$'000 usb RMB Others Total Usb RMB Others Total
BEEE Spot assets 52,053,543 13545912 3,866,923 69,466,378 45028620 4005549 5021632 54055801
HEAR Spot liabilities (35,441,270)  (9,597,738) (10,928,279) (55,967,287)  (30,864229) (3005965  (8,275088)  (42,145282)
RHEA Forward purchases 68,147,181 42,123,945 13,801,988 124,073,114 45809607 23535611 10403994 79749212
ENEH Forward sales (84,304,550) (45,427,531)  (6,753,175) (136,485,256)  (59,942753)  (23487,681)  (7,159,542)  (90,589,976)
HERIE Net options position - - - - i } _ .
&/(2)&FE  Netlong/(short) position 454,904 644,588 (12,543) 1,086,949 31,45 1047514 (9004) 1,069,755
T Net structural position - 236,058 48,489 284,547 - 27211 48,54 275,753
FRISIRITEIREIRA A

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) MIZEMREE (&) (b) Market risk management (cont’d)
SPE R i (4 Currency risk (cont'd)
K
The Bank
—%-%F e
2010 2009

ES ARE  HftE® g e ARE  HE® ek
HBERBETT  Equivalentin HK$'000 usb RMB Others Total Uso RMB Others Total
BEEE Spot assets 51,039,705 9,863,569 3,865,508 64,768,782 44426348 1843260 4967580 51,237,190
REEE Spot liabilities (33,987,950)  (6,578,585) (10,928,035) (51,494,570)  (30,326912) (795782)  (8,222244)  (39,344,938)
EHEA Forward purchases 67,019,514 41,496,095 13,801,988 122,317,507 45615730 23305095 10403994 79324819
EHEH Forward sales (83,645,885) (44,292,640)  (6,753,175) (134,691,700  (59,679080)  (23,296402)  (7,159,542)  (90,135,024)
MRS Net options position - - - - i } _ )
®/(B)BFE  Netlong/(short) position 425,384 488,439 (13,714) 900,109 36,086 1,056,173 (10212) 1,082,047
T Net structural position - - 48,489 48,489 - - 48,54 48,54

HERFRSRReERMEENEAE
REETE

SMNE B R BB E AT

0]

RZZE—ZTF+-_A=+—8 0%
%E%ﬁ%ﬁ\\ﬁﬁfﬁ\m“ﬁ%ﬂi@O%QETEE

BRABEEMBE TS AFEAREE
R RAT Z BR B A A S 9 BIAE A0
63,200,000 7T X 7 ¥ 47,400,000 7T ( = &
TNF  AEERAKRITH RGN
103,900,0007T 52,4 #104,600,0007T) * *
EHNIEBBTECCREECERLY
mEHIEB KA eRAB B ERES
1BATER

MR - B H T AIN E A B
FHE10%I REEFTEEMBETE -
FRAKERARIT BB G 5
B 7 63,200,000 7T K2 7 # 47,400,000
TL(ZETNF  AEERARTH AR
1> 7 #103,900,000 7T K 7% # 104,600,000
TT) e

The net options position is calculated using Model User Approach
which has been approved by the HKMA.

Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange exposures
0, if HKD had weakened by 10% against

(i) At 31 December 201

other currencies (other than USD currency) with all other variables
held constant, the profit before tax for the year of the Group
and the Bank would have been higher by HK$63,200,000 and
HK$47,400,000 respectively (2009: higher by HK$103,900,000 and
HK$104,600,000 respectively for the Group and the Bank), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gains on translation of non-HKD
denominated financial assets compensated by foreign exchange
losses on translation of non-HKD denominated financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HKD had strengthened by 10% against other
currencies (other than USD currency) with all other variables
held constant, the profit before tax for the year of the Group
and the Bank would have been lower by HK$63,200,000 and
HK$47,400,000 respectively (2009: lower by HK$103,900,000 and
HK$ 104,600,000 respectively for the Group and the Bank).

“E-TEER
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41 cHEMEE(E)

(b) TSR EE(HE)

SN [ R SRR 5 4T (4E)
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& 200,000,0007T K2 S8 P9 % 50,000,000 7T #Y
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8 - AEB RAITRABFETE B EER
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T E iz
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R ERNEEEEE BREAHER
Yoah R pn R &8 - EaT,D\$ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁDW§,ﬁﬁ
R (A MELR - REEHIRITH
2 ) o o B 2 B2 R AR R R 2K L i TR IR
R-RITEMIBER 0463 - BERTS
ERARIR L BCR SR E B R 1T RR AT 2 M) R B

ABEMERR > NEEFERTMEITE
TAR(EZRMEEH) G A 1 EE S5
PR ZABaEFEERBEETSH
Moo ANERBEIRERA T SR EETRA - AE
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AEEHAZEERM o AXARERL
BEIFIREREERR -B2EE KM
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis on foreign exchange exposures (cont'd)

(i) The Group or the Bank is exposed to currency risks primarily
arising from financial instruments that are denominated in
USD, excluding structural foreign exchange positions of RMB
200,000,000 and MOP 50,000,000. As the USD is pegged to the
HKD, the Group or the Bank considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to be insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group's ALCO oversees all interest rate risks arising from the
interest rate profile of the Group's assets and liabilities. The Group
has interest rate risk exposures from both of its banking and trading
books. The interest rate risk in the banking book is caused by maturity
gaps, basis risks among different interest rate benchmarks, yield curve
movements, interest rate re-pricing risks and risks from embedded
options, if any. The Group’s management of the interest rate risk in
the banking book is governed by the Interest Rate Risk Management
Policy (“the Policy”) for banking book. Moreover, Treasury and Markets
Department manages the interest rate risk in the banking book
according to the Policy.

To mitigate interest rate risk, the Group has used interest rate
derivatives, mainly interest rate swaps, to hedge both assets and
liabilities such as AFS and non-trading liabilities (“NTL"). The Group
has also adopted hedge accounting principles, under which the
fair value changes of the AFS/NTL and the corresponding fair value
changes of the hedging derivative instruments offset with each other.

The Group's management of the interest rate risk in the trading book is
guided by the Interest Rate Risk Management Policy for Trading Book.
The Group mainly uses present value of a basis point movement to
measure its interest rate risk exposure in the trading book. For the
year ended 31 December 2010, the Group's average daily trading
profit and loss from interest rate positions was a gain of HK$64,000
(2009: a gain of HK$78,000) with a standard deviation of HK$623,000
(2009: HKS$1,190,000).
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(b) TiEEKREE(E)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures

The Group measures the interest rate risk of the banking book by
conducting sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposure on a quarterly
basis. In the sensitivity analysis, the potential impacts of movements
in interest rates on the Group’s earning are assessed assuming that the
interest rates of two major currencies (HKD and USD) will rise by 200
basis points in the repricing dates (mid-point of the corresponding
time bands) of each assets and liabilities. Nevertheless, the Group
does not expect the interest rates of these two major currencies will
decrease by 200 basis points in the repricing dates because of the
current low level of interest rates. The impacts on both on— and off-
statement of financial position items are included in the assessment.

KEE
The Group
—E-BF “TThF
2010 2009

B Ex et T

HERBE®TT Equivalent in HK$'000 HKD usD HKD usb
F= FF2001EE 2% Impact on earnings over the next 12
RAR12ME AR BFFE months if interest rates rise by 200

basis points 66,751 (218,541) 71,498 (136,189)
A= FF200fAESZEE  Impact on economic value if interest

KBEEENTE rates rise by 200 basis points 56,280 103,070 46,123 35,762

1T
The Bank
—E-BF —TThEF
2010 2009

ol EYH B e

BERBETT Equivalent in HK$'000 HKD usb HKD usb
1ﬁ%|J%J:§JﬂZOO1Iﬁ£¥T Impact on earnings over the next 12
RIR12ME A8y B A28 months if interest rates rise by 200

basis points 12,185 (214,471) 123,448 (137,114)
A= _EF200AE %S Impact on economic value if interest

EEEEN T E rates rise by 200 basis points 80,507 109,146 68,242 71,617
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(b) TSR EE (&)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures (cont'd)

This sensitivity analysis, which is based on an interest rate risk profile
of assets and liabilities, is used for risk management purposes only.
The analysis is based on the following assumptions:

(i) thereis a parallel shift in the yield curve and in interest rates;

(i) there are no other changes to the portfolio;

(i) no loan prepayment is assumed as the majority of loans is on
floating rate base; and

(iv) deposits without fixed maturity dates are assumed to be repriced
on the next day.

Actual changes in the Group's net interest income and the economic
value resulting from the increase in interest rates may differ from the
results of this sensitivity analysis.
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41 cRIEBREE(E) 41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
(b) MiZEEE(E) (b) Market risk management (cont’d)
FI =R B B R B 7 T (48 ) Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures (cont'd)
THRABERNGEEARNSEEERAGBH T The following tables indicate the mismatches of the expected next
BTEETEXRAH(HEEAE  UBREE repricing dates (or maturity dates whichever are earlier) for the interest
FHUE) Z FEEC © bearing assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period.
r5H
The Group
—B-BF
2010
3fEAR
(BfEaH) 3@ERNL k: 38
3 months BE B5E FEE
or less Over Over SELE Non-
#%  (including 3 months 1year to Over interest
Total overdue)  to1year 5 years 5 years bearing

BRTR BETR  RBRTR BRI BMTR  B¥Tn
HK'000  HK'000  HK'000  HK'000  HK'000  HK'000

BE Assets
Re RFERT - pRIEFT Cash and balances with banks, central

NEMEREENER banks and other financial institutions 21,225,122 21,039,640 - - - 185,482
T hRBTREMEE  Placements with and advances to banks,

KENGZRBR central banks and other financial

institutions 12,229,126 11,274,071 955,055 - - -

RHAREE Trading assets 1,633,657 - - - - 1,633,657
?bﬁ%%;iﬂ%é\_'%}iﬂ% Securities designated at fair value

RAEE E@ through profit or loss 646,508 226,296 276,766 99,816 - 43,630
REEDRBTREMEEE  Loans and advances to customers and

other accounts 90,714,680 79,622,454 7,543,675 197,244 3,740 3,347,567

AEHEES Available-for-sale securities 20,857,745 12,911,421  5018,125 2,878,538 - 49,661
FEEE Non-interest bearing assets 902,063 - - - - 902,063
BEELE Total assets 148,208,901 125,073,882 13,793,621 3,175,598 3,740 6,162,060
af Liabilities
BARAMEREBNES  Deposits and balances of banks and

RERE other financial institutions 1,850,372 1,011,880 469,003 - - 369,489
RPREH Deposits from customers 113,466,113 100,940,217 6,919,346 1,876,249 - 3,730,301
RIBEAE Trading liabilities 1,477,528 - - - - 1,477,528
E%éﬁﬁ%ﬁ% Certificates of deposit issued 6,985,054 2,950,715 2,057,104 1,796,949 180,286 -
BE{IERES Debt securities issued 231,900 15000 216,900 - - -
EBER Loan capital 7,763,729 1,943,529 - 5,820,200 - -
FirEEE Non-interest bearing liabilities 3,082,402 - - - - 3,082,402
BELE Total liabilities 134,857,098 106,861,341 9,662,353 9,493,398 180,286 8,659,720
FEHREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 18,212,541 4,131,268  (6,317,800)  (176,546)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures (cont'd)

-
The Group
—TTNE
2009
3MEAM
(BE8H) 3EANE  1EME
3 months 3k B FER
or less Over 3 Over SEBLE Non-
B%  (including months 1year to Over interest
Total overdue) to 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing
BETT  A%Tr A%t A%Tr A%t BT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BeRERT PRI Cash and balances with banks, central
REM S RBENET banks and other financial institutions ~ 6,898339 6,738,952 - - - 159,387
ERIT PRBTREMER  Placements with and advances to banks,
BENFRRZT central banks and other financial
institutions 15,562,509 12,503,746 3,058,763 - - -
RHRGEE Trading assets 1783875 - - - - 1783875
BEABRBEENRY Securities designated at fair value
AREENES through profit or loss 580,636 147,658 63711 316,319 11,387 41561
REEDRGEREMEEE  Loansand advances to customers and
other accounts 74,069,969 69,386,683 2,821,889 244410 7,840 1,609,147
AL EES Available-for-sale securities 2073727 7771320 5510147 6,078,272 - 713,988
I BEE Non-interest bearing assets 1,153,730 - - - - 1,153,730
BEAH Total assets 120,122,785 96,548,359 11,454,510 6,639,001 19,227 5461688
8% Liabilities
FIREMESREENTR  Deposits and balances of banks and
KT other financial institutions 2,794,355 2,453,705 177,358 - - 163,292
BFEH Deposits from customers 94240980 82540590  8591,042 35,645 - 3073503
RIRRAE Trading liabilities 1,108,009 - - - - 1,108,009
BETERE Certificates of deposit issued 3693598 3,122,175 249,931 32149 - -
BRTEBES Debt securities issued 71,800 - 71,800 - - -
BHRER Loan capital 3,916,017 1,938,661 - 1,977,356 - -
FtEBRE Non-interest bearing liabilities 2,067,319 - - - - 2067319
afEaE Total liabilities 107,892,078 90,055,131 9,090,331 2,334,493 - 6,412,123
FZPREEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 6493228 2364179 4304508 19207
FIERTEIRERAR

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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41 cREMEE(E) 41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
(b) MiZEEE(E) (b) Market risk management (cont’d)
FIRE R B E 7 H (48 ) Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures (cont'd)
&1
The Bank
—B-ZF
2010
3fEAMA
(BfEag) 3MEANLE  1ENLE
3 months 2E B5E Fit e
or less Over Over SELE Non-
#%  (including  3months  1Tyearto Over interest
Total overdue)  to1year 5 years 5 years bearing

BRI BETR  BETR BRI B¥TR  B¥Tn
HK'000  HK'000  HK'000  HK'000  HK'000  HK'000

B Assets
BEeRERT  PRET Cash and balances with banks, central

REMSREENLET banks and other financial institutions 20,686,359 20,501,209 - - - 185,150
TRT RBITREMSER  Placements with and advances to banks,

WENFRRBT central banks and other financial

institutions 9,000,325 8,198,708 801,617 - - -

RGRBEE Trading assets 1,620,822 - - - - 1,620,822
BEABBERENRY Securities designated at fair value

AR EENES through profit or loss 646,508 226,296 276,766 99,816 - 43,630
REETRATREMIEE  Loans and advances to customers and

other accounts 81,362,775 70,840,759 7,082,423 197,244 3,740 3,238,609

AHHEES Available-for-sale securities 20,798,979 12,911,421 4,959,359 2,878,538 - 49,661
=N Amount due from subsidiaries 7,261,783 4,201,449 2,642,160 - - 418,174
FIREE Non-interest bearing assets 2,121,889 - - - - 2,121,889
EEAHE Total assets 143,499,440 116,879,842 15,762,325 3,175,598 3,740 7,677,935
&8 Liabilities
BIRAMEREBNES  Deposits and balances of banks and

N&TE other financial institutions 727,892 358,403 - - - 369,489
EEER Deposits from customers 110,601,692 98,992,717 6,081,270 1,797,404 - 3,730,301
ReMBEE Trading liabilities 1,464,497 - - - - 1,464,497
BETERE Certificates of deposit issued 6,985,054 2,950,716 2,057,104 1,796,949 180,285 -
EBER Loan capital 5,791,576 1,943,529 - 3,848,047 - -
B ARNE Amount due to subsidiaries 2,511,132 2,615 1,666 2,047,474 - 459377
EHEEE Non-interest bearing liabilities 2,711,263 - - - - 2,711,263
BfE8E Total liabilities 130,793,106 104,247,980 8,140,040 9,489,874 180,285 8,734,927
FRGREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 12,631,862 7,622,285 (6,314,276)  (176,545)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(b) Market risk management (cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis on interest rate exposures (cont'd)

7
The Bank
“ETNE
2009
3MEAM
(RfE@E) 3MEANLE  1EME
3 months EE:d B L0\
or less Over 3 Over SEBLE Non-
B%  (including months 1year to Over interest
Total overdue) to 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing
B%Tr A%Tr A%t EETR BT ABTx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BE Assets
BeRERT  PRIBT Cash and balances with banks, central
REMSRBENET banks and other financial institutions 5944423 5,785,347 - - - 159,076
ERIT PRETREMER  Placements with and advances to banks,
BENTFRRBT central banks and other financial
institutions 1420659 11,323,873 2,882,723 - - -
RHRGEE Trading assets 1781727 - - - - 1,781,727
EEARBERIARM Securities designated at fair value
AREENES through profit or loss 580,636 147,658 63711 316,319 11,387 41561
REEDRSTREMEEE  Loansand advances to customers and
other accounts 65,795,733 61,283,810 2,750,350 244410 7,840 1,509,323
AL EES Available-for-sale securities 2073727 7771320 5510147 6,078,272 - 713,988
e B A RIFE Amount due from subsidiaries 6601437 3114183 2541822 - - 945,432
FIEEE Non-interest bearing assets 2374875 - - - - 2374875
BEARHE Total assets 117,359,154 89426191 13748753 6,639,001 19207 7525982
g% Liabilities
RIOREMLRILENTR  Deposits and balances of banks and
e other financial institutions 2639253 2453705 22,256 - - 163,292
EEER Deposits from customers 92,047,445 80,732,899 8,240,304 739 - 3,073,503
RFPBREE Trading liabilities 1,107,049 - - - - 1,107,049
BETRRE Certificates of deposit issued 3693598 3,122,175 249,931 321492 - -
BIEN Loan capital 1,938,661 1,938,661 - - - -
ENHBRRIFE Amount due to subsidiaries 2371,533 123,653 1665 1938661 - 307,554
EtEEE Non-interest bearing liabilities 1,755,440 - - - - 1,755,440
BELE Total liabilities 105552979 88,371,093 8,514,156 2,260,892 - 6,406,838
ARGREZE Interest rate sensitivity gap 1055098 5234597 4378109 19,227
HRERITEIRARA A

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to fund
an increase in assets or meet obligations as they fall due without
incurring unacceptable losses.

The liquidity risk management framework comprises the followings:

- The management of the Group’s liquidity risk is governed by
the Liquidity Management Policy, endorsed by the Financial
Management Division and approved by the CRMC.

- The CRMC is delegated by the Board of Directors to oversee the
Group's liquidity risk management. Its main responsibilities are
to review and approve policies, set strategies, and define risk
appetite and tolerance limits.

- The ALCO, delegated by the CRMC, is the governing body
responsible for formulating and implementing policies, strategies,
guidelines and limit structure. It also identifies, measures and
monitors liquidity profile to ensure current and future funding
requirements are met. Scenario analysis and stress testing will
be worked out by Financial Management Division and reviewed
by ALCO on regular basis. A Contingency Funding Plan, which is
also developed by Central Treasury, is reviewed and approved by
ALCO on regular basis.

- Daily liquidity management is managed by Central Treasury,
within the limit approved, to monitor funding requirement.
Internal Audit Department performs periodic reviews to ensure
liquidity risk management functions are carried out effectively.

—B-TEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)

Liquidity management is conducted on Group level, bank level,
individual overseas branches and subsidiaries. Financial subsidiaries
and overseas branches are responsible for implementing their own
liquidity management policies under the framework established by
ALCO and local regulatory requirements. Their liquidity situation
would also be monitored as a whole by the ALCO. Counterparty
limits are set for overseas branches and subsidiaries in respect of the
funding support extended to them. The Group expects all business
units to contribute to the success of managing liquidity under normal
and contingency situations by maintaining a rapport with depositors,
customers, interbank counterparties, related companies and the
HKMA.

The objective of liquidity management is to meet obligations payable
under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset growth
and to comply with statutory liquidity ratio. To achieve this, the
following liquidity management processes are in place:

- Projecting cash flows under normal and various stress scenarios,
using the net mismatch gap between assets and liabilities to
estimate the prospective net funding requirement;

- Monitoring statement of financial position liquidity and advances
to deposit ratios against internal and regulatory requirements;

- Ensuring sound and diversified range of funding sources, through
monitoring the structure, the stability and the core level of the
deposit portfolio;

- Projecting liquidity ratio for short to medium term to permit
early detection of liquidity issues and ensure the ratio is within
statutory requirement and internal trigger;

- Projecting high level funding requirement and funding structure
during annual budget process to ensure sufficient funding and
appropriate funding mix;

- Conducting risk assessment which includes liquidity risk before
launching new business initiatives;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 cREMEE(E)

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(0 RBESREMEE(E)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
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- Maintaining high quality liquid assets comprising cash and
investment grade securities, as cushion against unexpected
funding needs. Standby facilities are also arranged to provide
unexpected and material outflows;

- Maintaining access to interbank money market to activate
facilities;

- Maintaining debt financing plan; and

- Maintaining proper contingency plan, which includes setting
early warning signals (including internal and market indicators)
and describe actions to be taken in the event of stress crisis, so as
to minimise adverse long-term implications for business.

The Group funds its operations through a diversified funding source
primarily from our core retail and corporate customer deposits. At
the same time, it also participates in wholesale funding through
the issuances of HKD and USD certificates of deposit ("CDs") so as
to secure a stable source of term funding. At 31 December 2010, a
total of HKS 6.56 billion equivalent (2009: HKS$3.38 billion) was raised
through several successful CD issuances. Deposit tenor mix and debt
maturities are regularly monitored to ensure an appropriate funding
maturity mix.

An appropriate level of liquidity ratio was always maintained to ensure
that the Group could handle sudden drains in market liquidity due
to adverse or unexpected economic events. In 2010, the Group's
average liquidity ratio was 44.7% (2009: 48.8%). The Group holds
a portfolio of high-grade securities with short maturities which
can generate liquidity if necessary either through the re-purchase
arrangements or out-right selling in the secondary market.

The Group has always maintained sufficient cash and liquid position
as well as a pool of high quality assets as liquidity cushion that can be
liquidated in the event of emergency.

—E-TEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

LRERREE(E) 41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

REBESEREE(E) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)

() RIZEFTEEIEHIEER BEDH (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity
LUTEHBEAS T ENEEBEA LRI The following maturity profile is based on the remaining period at the
HEER T ERfE AZE o end of the reporting period date to the contractual maturity date.
HRR 5 AR EEMRS P seE R HiATH As the trading portfolios may be sold before maturity or deposits
& mMEEFEE Elj“j ETE)R BIRENAYIE from customers may mature without being withdrawn, the
SUTEIE - Bt - S8R TRE contractual maturity dates do not represent expected dates of
TEET TS ﬂixfﬁi\/ﬁéﬂ’] HER o future cash flows.

*58
The Group
—2-%%
2010
WEANRL 3EANLE  1FHE
23f8A E3k:3 B5E
3 months 1year 5 years
AEEE  1fHAR  orlessbut or less orless  SENLE
%  Repayable Within over  butover  butover Over EFHAH
Total ondemand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1year S5years  Undated
BETT B¥Tn  EMTr  EMTr  B%Tn %t BBTrn  B%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
43 Assets
& RIERT FR Cash and balances with
ROREMARE  banks, central banks
BNER and other financial
institutions 21,225,122 21,225,122 - - - - - -
TER1T  PRER1TR Placements with and
HibSBEENTE  advances to banks,
FOEE central banks and other
financial institutions 12,229,126 - 6879447 1,891,304 2,128,586 542,144 787,645 -
RHAGEE Trading assets 1,633,657 1,626,466 - - - - - 7,191
HEEBBBBRIAR Securities designated at fair
WAL BENES  value through profit or
loss 646,508 - - - 503,062 100,015 - 43,431
REEFRBIRE Loans and advances to
fth 818 customers and other
\ accounts 90,714,680 1,744,503  3,723930 9,863,830 20,473,993 31,099,247 20,828,444 2,980,733
At EEA Available-for-sale securities 20,857,745 - 1035522 6,152,194 5,957,813 6,162,270 1,510,379 39,567
BIER Tax recoverable 59,744 - - - 59,744 - i .
BHFASHEE  Undated assets 842,319 - - - - - - 842319
BELE Total assets 148,208,901 24,596,091 11,638,899 17,907,328 29,123,198 37,903,676 23,126,468 3,913,241
8% Liabilities
ROIREMERERE Deposits and balances
NEZRER of banks and other
financial institutions 1,850,372 369,489 438,061 272,094 301,725 469,003 - -
LSy Deposits from customers 113,466,113 39,291,199 44,577,905 19,039,528 7,031,421 3,526,060 - -
RHRBEE Trading liabilities 1,477,528 1,477,528 - - - - - i,
BETERE Certificates of deposit
issued 6,985,054 - - 227,550 3,766,852 2,808,437 182,215 -
BRETERES Debt securities issued 231,900 - - 12,500 219,400 - - -
BRER Loan capital 7,763,729 - - - - 3915682 3,848,047 -
REFIE Current taxation 18,972 - - - 18,972 - - -
Athaf Other liabilities 3,061,233 253,436 725 - - - - 2,807,072
BARAMAR  Undated liabilities 2,197 - - - - - - 2,197
BELE Total liabilities 134,857,098 41,391,652 45,016,691 19,551,672 11,338,370 10,719,182 4,030,262 2,809,269
EE-BfEZE  Asset-liability gap (16,795,561) (33,377,792) (1,644,344) 17,784,828 27,184,494 19,096,206

RERITERERAE
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



B TSR M

41

()

SRR EE ()

RBESEREE(H)
(i) 1RIBE THIRIFHAEZER BEDH ()

Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i)  Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont'd)

iy
The Group

-g-%5
2010

MEAMLE 3EAMLE  1EHE
23R 2 58

3 months 1year 5years
HMEEE  EAR  orlesshut or less orless  SELE
#%  Repayable Within over  butover  butover Over EIHAH
Total ondemand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1year Syears  Undated
BETT A¥Tn A¥Tr  EMTn BT B%TRn  B%Tn  B¥Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Of which:
BENERE Certificates of deposit held
—BEFATH# - included in available-for-
HEHS sale securities 1,480,621 - 149,972 434,740 436,090 459,819 - -
EHES Debt securities
—BHAETEABE - included in securities
BRMRMAR  designated at fair value
EENES through profitorloss 646,508 - - - 503,062 100,015 - 43,431
—~BRPATH - included in available-for-
HEES sale securities 16,727,106 - 822,531 3,211,617 5480004 5702451 1,510,379 124
17,373,614 - 822,531 3,211,617 5983066 5802466 1,510,379 43,555
BROERE Certificates of deposit issued

-2 AT ABA - incduded in designated
BEARBAR  atfairvalue through
BENSETE  profitorloss debt
BEE securities issued 775,217

-Bi AR BEE - included in non-trading
BBETERES  debtsecuritiesissued 6,209,837

- 775,217 - - -

227,550 2,991,635 2,808,437 182,215 -

6,985,054

227,550 3,766,852 2,808,437 182,215 -

—E-mEER |179
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41 cHEMEE(E) 41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
() REBEELERBREE(E) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i) WHRIZEFTHIRIEHBEER BEST () (i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont’d)
A5E
The Group
“ZTNE
2009
WEARE 3EAME 1ENRE
23R kS 55
3 months 1 year 5years
HEER MEAR  orlessbut o less orless  SEFMAE
% Repayable Within over but over but over Over EFHAH
Total ~ ondemand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1year 5 years Undated

AETL BT BT AETn A%t BT AETn %R
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS00D  HKS'000

BE Assets
BEREHT RR& Cashand balances with
BAREMSEE  banks, central banks
BNER and other financial
institutions 6898339 6,898,339 - - - - - _
BT hRiRITR Placements with and
HMSmEHENT  advances to banks,

TRER central banks and other
financial institutions 15,562,509 - 5,597,470 2493722 4624414 1,722,686 1124217 -
RHMBEE Trading assets 1783875 1,193,554 - - - 624,148 - 6,173
EEBBBERIR Securities designated at
BALEENES  fairvalue through
profit or loss 580,636 - - - 63,711 475,562 - 41363
ZEETRETR  Loansand advances to
HEE customers and other
accounts 74,069,969 1,319,957 2,226,003 6,002,769 11414903 32234900 19,203,257 1,668,180
it EEA Available-for-sale securities 20,073,727 - 1071505 4225478 5707930  7,278883 1,689,139 100,792
e Y iEE Tax recoverable 24,036 - - - 24036 - - -
BHRBHEE  Undated assets 1,129,694 - - - - - - 1129694
BEAH Total assets 120,122,785 9,371,850 8894978 12721969 21834994 42336179 22,016,613 2,946,202
g Liabilities

FAREMSREE Deposits and balances
NERRER of banks and other

financial institutions 2,794,355 163,292 2,453,705 - 177,358 - - -
REER Deposits from customers 94,240,980 40779186 25785630 16188570 10421771 1,065823 - -
RHFREE Trading liabilities 1,108,009 1,108,009 - - - - - -
BETENE Certificates of deposit

issued 3,693,508 - - 914981 2179676 508,941 - -
BETEBES  Debtsecurities issued 71,800 - - 71,800 _ _ } )
BRER Loan capital 3,916,017 - - - - 3916017 - -
RERTETE Current taxation 11,564 - - - 11,564 - - -
ek Other liabilities 2,054,037 - 16377 - - - - 2037660
EXAAMARE  Undated liabilities 1718 - - - - . . 1718
BEAH Total liabilities 107,892,078 42050487 28255712 17,175351 12790369 5,580,781 - 2039378
BE-BFEEE Asset - liability gap (32678637) (19360734)  (4453382) 9044625 36755398 22,016,613

180 RSRITEIBRABRAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)

(i)  Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont'd)

A5E
The Group
ZEENE
2009
WAL 3EAME  1ENE
EX] ) EIF i
3 months 1 year 5 years
HIEER MEAA  orless but o less o less SEL E
% Repayable Within over but over but over Over EFHAH
Total ~ on demand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1 year 5 years Undated
AETT  A%Tr  A%Tr  A%Tn AT BT AT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
He: Of which:
BENERE Certificates of deposit held
—BE AT - Included in available-for-
HEES sale securities 1,344,057 - - 893310 450,747 - - -
EHES Debt securities
-BitARS - Included in trading assets
RigEE 624,148 - - - - 624,48 - i}
—DE AETABA - Induded in securities
BRURMAL  designated at fair value
BENES through profit or loss 580,636 - - - 63711 475,562 _ 41363
—BEtAT - Included in available-for-
HEES sale securities 17,741,780 - 263,759 3,251,601 5257183 7,278,883 1,689,139 1215
18,946,564 - 263,759 3,251,601 5,320,894 8,378,593 1,689,139 42578
BROERE Certificates of deposit issued
—Bi AR BAE - Included in non-trading
BRTERES debt securities issued 3,693,598 - - 914,981 2,179,676 598941 - -

—E-mEEH |18
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont'd)

K1
The Bank
ZE-%%
2010
MEANLE  3ERLL 1EN)E
2385 2E B5E
3 months 1year 5years
AEEE 1M8AR  orlessbut or less orless  5ELE
%  Repayable Within over  butover  butover Over EIHAH
Total ondemand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1year S5years  Undated
BETT B¥TT B¥Trn  B¥Tn BT B¥Tn BT B%Trn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BERESRIT - BR Cashand balances with
RITRAMSEE  banks, central banks
BNER and other financial
institutions 20,686,359 20,686,359 - - - - - -
TERIT PRETR Placements with and
HiSREENTE  advances to banks,
RREZ central banks and other
financial institutions 9,000,325 - 4988526  1,145860 1,689,588 388,706 787,645 -
REHMBEE Trading assets 1,620,822 1,613,631 - - - - - 7,191
T BBBBHRIR Securities designated at
BAKBENES  fairvalue thiough
profit or loss 646,508 - - - 503,062 100,015 - 43,431
EEEHRBTRE Loans and advances to
ERE customers and
other accounts 81,362,775 1,744,026 3,653,952 9,469,330 18,837,285 28,451,129 16,381,990 2,825,063
ot &S Available-for-sale securities 20,798,979 - 1035522 6,152,194 5957,813 6,103,504 1,510,379 39,567
JEUIBATIZIE  Amounts due from
subsidiaries 7,261,783 - 584,577 2,136,957 3,341,958 1,107,811 - 90,480
AEKHE Tax recoverable 57,771 - - - 57,771 - - -
BHRAMEE  Undated assets 2,064,118 - - - - - - 2,064,118
BEAH Total assets 143,499,440 24,044,016 10,262,577 18,904,341 30,387,477 36,151,165 18,680,014 5,069,850
g Liabilities
RAREMEREE Deposits and balances
HEZRER of banks and other
financial institutions 727,892 369,489 86,309 272,094 - - - -
RPEH Deposits from customers 110,601,692 39,004,516 43,355,801 18,743,827 6,050,332 3,447,216 - -
REFREE Trading liabilities 1,464,497 1,464,497 - - - - - -
BEIERE Certificates of deposit
issued 6,985,054 - - 227,550 3,766,852 2,808,437 182,215 -
BHEXR Loan capital 5,791,576 - - - - 1,943,529 3,848,047 -
JERNMBARIZIE  Amounts due to subsidiaries 2,511,132 119,748 101,215 207,300 1,667 1,943,529 - 137,673
RERTEIE Current taxation 3,268 - - - 3,268 - - -
EtBE Other liabilities 2,707,508 253,436 725 - - - - 2453347
EIAAMEE  Undated liabilities 487 - - - - - - 487
BELE Total liabilities 130,793,106 41,211,686 43,544,050 19,450,771 9,822,119 10,142,711 4,030,262 2,591,507
BE-BEEE Asset - liability gap (17,167,670) (33,281,473) (546,430) 20,565,358 26,008,454 14,649,752
FERITEEERAR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i)  Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont’d)

KT
The Bank

“2-%%
2010

MEARE 3EANE  1ENE
238 A 2E B5E

3 months 1year 5years
BEEE  EAR  orlessbut or less orless  SELLE
%  Repayable Within over  butover  butover Over EFHARH
Total ondemand 1 month Tmonth 3 months 1year Syears  Undated
BETT B¥Tr AEMTr  B%Tr BT B%Trn  B%Tn  B%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hep: Of which:
BERTEHEE  Certificates of deposit held
—BE AT - Included in available-for-
HERH sale securities 1,480,621 - 149,972 434,740 436,090 459,819 - -
EHES Debt securities
—~BE AEEARB - Included in securities
BRURMAR  designated at fair value
EENES through profitorloss 646,508 - - - 503062 100,015 - 43,431
—BE AT - Included in available-for-
HEEH sale securities 16,668,340 - 822,531 3,211,617 5,480,004 5,643,685 1,510,379 124
17,314,848 - 822,531 3,211,617 5,983,066 5,743,700 1,510,379 43,555
BRTESH Certificates of deposit issued
—BitAEEARB - Induded in designated
BREURBAL  atfairvalue through
BENEBES  profitorloss debt
securities issued 775217 - - - 775,217 - - -
—BitAFERBEE -Incuded in non-trading
BETEKESR  debtsecuritiesissued 6,209,837 - - 227550 2,991,635 2,808,437 182,215 -

6,985,054

- - 227,550 3,766,852 2,808,437 182,215 -

—z-mEER 183
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(i) RIFEFTHIEELBIEER BEDH (&)

41 41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont'd)

x5
The Bank
“EENE
2009
MHAME  3EAME S
38R RIE BF
3months 1 year 5years
=2y MEAA  orless but o less o less SELE
8% Repayable Within over but over but over Over EFHAE
Total  ondemand 1 month Imonth 3 months 1year 5years Undated
AETT  A%Tr  A%Tr BT BETR BBt BBt A%Tx
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BE Assets
BERESRIT - BR Cashand balances with
RITRAMSEE  banks, central banks
BNER and other financial
institutions 5944423 5944423 - - - - - -
TER1T PRETR Placements with and
HSREENTE  advances to banks,
RREZ central banks and other
financial institutions 14,206,596 - 4627709 2,436,935 4,295,049 1,722,686 1124217 -
RHBBEE Trading assets 1781727 1,151,406 - - - 624,148 - 6,173
T BBBBHIAR Securities designated at
BALBENES  fairvalue though
profit or loss 580,636 - - - 63,711 475,562 - 41,363
ZEERREBZR  Loansand advances to
Ei8E customers and
other accounts 65,795,733 1319423 2,061,836 5782323 10351258 29524885 15215313 1,540,695
HLERS Available-for-sale securities 20,073,727 - 1,071,505 4225478 5,707,930 7,278,883 1,689,139 100,792
JEUIBATIZIE  Amounts due from
subsidiaries 6,601,437 - 296,117 1510379 3,475,096 603,033 - 716,812
A EEE Tax recoverable 23,984 - - - 23,984 - - -
EFPBHEE  Undated assets 2,350,891 - - - - - - 2350891
BEAH Total assets 117,359,154 8415,252 8,057,167 13955115 23917028 40,229,197 18,028,669 4,756,726
af& Liabilities
RAREMEREE Deposits and balances
HEZRER of banks and other
financial institutions 2,639,253 163,292 2,453,705 - 22,256 - - -
XEER Deposits from customers — 92,047445 40,205,664 24,757,618 15982413 10,070,833 1,030,917 - -
REFREE Trading liabilities 1,107,049 1,107,049 - - - - - -
BETENE Certificates of deposit
issued 3,693,598 - - 014,981 2,179,676 598,941 - -
BHEXR Loan capital 1938,661 - - - - 1,938661 - -
FEHBATIFIE  Amounts dueto subsidiaries 2,371,533 131,041 126499 37,083 1665 1938660 - 136,585
KEFE Current taxation 3,052 - - - 3,052 - - -
AthafR Other liabilities 1,752,380 - 16377 - - - - 1736003
BEAAMBE  Undated liabilities 8 - - - i - i} 8
BEAH Total liabilities 105552979 41607046 27354199 16934477 12277482 5,507,179 - 1,872,5%
EE-BfEEE Asset - liability gap (33,191,794 (19297,032) (2979362 (11639,546) 34722018 18,028,669
184 FFRTEBERAAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i)  Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity (cont’d)

7
The Bank
“ETNE
2009
EAME  3EAME  1EME
23fA Bk E5%
3months 1 year 5years
HEEE EAA orlesshut or less orless  SEME
@5 Repayable Within over but over but over Over EZTRHE
Total  on demand 1 month Imonth 3 months 1year 5years Undated
BETT  A%Tr  A%Tr  B%Trn AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
e Of which:
BERTEHEE  Certificates of deposit held
—BE AT - Included in available-for-
HEES sale securities 1,344,057 - - 893310 450,747 - - -
EHES Debt securities
-BFARS - Included in trading assets
RBEE 624,148 - - - - 624148 - -
—BH AETEABE - Included in securities
BRMRMAR  designated at fair value
BEMNES through profitorloss 580,636 - - - 63711 475,562 - 41363
—~BEFATH - Included in available-for-
HEEA sale securities 17,741,780 - 263,759 3,251,601 5257183 7,278,883 1,689,139 1215
18,946,564 - 263,759 3,251,601 5,320,894 8,378,593 1,689,139 42578
BROERE Certificates of deposit issued
~BEHAERHAE - Incuded in non-trading
BBEKESR  debtsecuritiesissued 3693598 - - 914981 2179676 598941 - -
—m_mray
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(i) EEEEFRIGHRD A

LA BRI ERERR 0 4 BUR AN SR (B e AR 7T
MERBENRFAENSOZAZ
#HTNHRRSENRITRASRE -

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)

(i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial

liabilities

The following maturity profile shows the undiscounted cash

flows on the Group’s or the Bank’s financial liabilities on the basis

of their earliest possible contractual maturity.

r5E
The Group
-g-2F
2010

AL 1EHRE

MERNE E1f B5F

23(8A 1year 5years
BEeREAE  NNEE MEAR  3months or less or less SERE
Gross  Repayable Within ~ or less but but over but over Over
cashflows  on demand 1month over 1 month 3 months 1year 5years
BT  AMTr BBt BE¥Tn  E%Tn  B%Tn  EETrx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AN EL ks Deposits and balances of
BENER banks and other financial
kiR institutions 1,851,878 369,489 438,860 272,698 301,814 469,017 -
EFREX Deposits from customers 113813017 39,291,199 44,618,224 19,074,587 7229418 3,599,589 -
BETHNE Certificates of deposit issued 7,229,627 - 69,939 195335 3,832,198 2,940,768 191,387
BETEHES Debt securities issued 232,169 - a1 12,592 219,536 - -
BRER Loan capital 10,747,313 - - 9,971 474,496 5,173,230 5,089,616
TELRIA Derivative financial instruments 966,801 - 40,893 69,677 428,855 427376 -
134,840,805 39,660,688 45,167,957 19,634,860 12,486,317 12,609,980 5,281,003
HRERITEIRERA A

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED



B TSR M

41

()

SRR EE ()

RBESRREE(H)

Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(i) TR EFEFRIR T (&

(c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial

liabilities (cont'd)
A5E
The Group
ZE2ENE
2009
3EANKE 1E M
WHAMNE FIF F5F
F3fEA 1 year 5 years
Benenes DRESR WEAR  3months or less orless SERE
Gross Repayable Within -~ orless but but over but over Over
cashflows  on demand Tmonth  over 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years
AETT A%t BT B%Tn  A%Tr AT AT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BORAMEH Deposits and balances of
HENTER banks and other financial
R institutions 2,794,898 185,548 2431652 - 177,698 - -
REER Deposits from customers 94,381,815 40,779,186 25,200,602 14,275,286 13,060,762 1,005,979 -
BRAERE Certificates of deposit issued 3,763,026 - 1483 925,038 2,197,459 639,046 -
BETEBES Debt securities issued 71828 - 4 8 71816 - -
BREK Loan capital 4524597 - - 9,714 206,045 4,308,338 -
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 1,571,345 - 42,987 75383 587,935 865,040 -
107,107,509 40,964,734 27,676,728 15,285,429 16,301,715 6,878,903 -
T
The Bank
~8-2f
2010
EAML £
MERNE E1f B5%
Z38A 1year 5 years
HeREdE  HBEE 1MEAR 3 months or less or less SELL
Gross  Repayable Within ~ orless but but over but over Over
cashflows  on demand 1month over1month 3 months 1year 5 years
BETr EMTn BBt ERTR  B%Tr  BETr  EMTn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BTREMER Deposits and balances of
KENER banks and other financial
R institutions 728,520 369,489 86,333 272,698 - - -
XEEH Deposits from customers 110,932,744 39,004,515 43,392,054 18775434 6,240,816 3,519,925 -
BEAERE Certificates of deposit issued 7,229,627 - 69,939 195335 3,832,198 2,940,768 191,387
BREK Loan capital 8,449,091 - - 9,971 297,149 3,052,355 5,089,616
TEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 966,801 - 40,893 69,677 428,855 427,376 -
ERMBARZE  Amount due to subsidiaries 2,624,976 119,748 101,235 207,344 179226 2,017,423 -
130,931,759 39,493,752 43,690,454 19,530,459 10,978,244 11,957,847 5,281,003
“E-ZFFR
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41 cHEMEE(E) 41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)
(c) REBESRMERE (&) (c) Liquidity risk management (cont’d)
(i) 2FE EFEFEIRD W (&) (i) Analysis of the residual contractual maturities of financial
liabilities (cont’d)
A7
The Bank
“EENE
2009

3EALE 1ML
1MEAME Z1F Z5F

EXI ) 1 year 5 years
ReMEBE  MHER AR 3months or less or less SERE
Gross  Repayable Within~ orless but but over but over Over
cashflows  on demand I'month over T month 3months 1 year 5 years

ARTT  ARTT  AETT ARTn ARt BRI E%TR
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000

ROkAEH Deposits and balances of
EEOER banks and other financial
LER institutions 2,639,781 185,548 2,431,652 - 22,581 - -
REER Deposits from customers 92,179,150 40,205,064 24,169,273 14,065,889 12,707,406 1,030918 -
BRAETE Certificates of deposit issued 3,763,026 - 1483 925,038 2,197,459 639,046 -
EHER Loan capital 2,055,228 - - 9714 29142 2016372 -
fTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 1,571,345 - 42,987 75,383 587,935 865,040 -
FEFMBARZE  Amount due to subsidiaries 2,765,698 131,041 126,514 37,086 178591 2292466 -
104,974,228 40,522,253 26,771,909 15,113,110 15723114 6,843,842 -
(d) EBRERBEE (d) Operational risk management
EHRERREERNIIER - ABKRRS Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
MRS EELR sSKEMINEIEXEEE internal processes, people and systems or from external events. It
4 - FTiER B R B R R o 1M iE LR b Al i is present in virtually all the Group's transactions and activities. The
BEAEBEMAMESNES R 52 objective of operational risk management is to ensure that operational
ERBREREMN B NERRASBENEBHZE risk arising therefrom is consistently and comprehensively identified,
TERBRAES —BUMIEFE ~ FFMh - 34 - B assessed, mitigated/controlled, monitored and reported.

RFMETR ©

MNAEE > EKRIERMBAEESRET At the Group, the authority for operational risk oversight is delegated
FEEARREEZEEBEESE - A5E by the Board of Directors to the CRMC. The Group's operational risk
MEFRERREREBCEZELIET management framework is approved and reviewed periodically and
Higs  MASBENSRERENEERHR the Group's senior management is responsible for implementing the
TTREIR o framework.

188] RFRITEIBRBRAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41

(d)

Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

Operational risk management (cont’d)
The primary responsibility for the day-to-day management of current,

new and emerging operational risks lies with the line management

of the functional units where the risk arises. This is supported by

the independent Operational Risk Unit within the Risk Management

Group, which designs and implements the operational risk

management methodology tools.

The Group currently manages its operational risks through a number

of ways:

The Group Operational Risk Management Policy, which includes
the operational risk management framework.

Various operational risk tools, such as self-assessment exercises,
key risk indicators and incident reporting, for assisting the
functional units in identifying, assessing and reporting operational
risks, have been developed and are being continuously rolled
out.

Material operational risk exposures are managed through a
framework of policies, procedures, and processes.

Human resources policies and practices have been established to
define and encourage proper staff behavior, and to ensure that
staff are qualified and trained for their jobs.

New products and services are evaluated by various functional
units before they are approved by the Group's senior
management to ensure that they are adequately supported by
staff, processes, and technology.

Disaster recovery and business continuity plans have been
established and are tested annually under major events scenarios
such as loss of operating site and major failure of data centre
caused by fire or other events.

A Bank Run Drill for responding to sudden and massive customer
withdrawals due to market rumours or other reasons is held
biennially.

—B-TEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(d) Operational risk management (cont’d)

(e)

- The examination and evaluation of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system are
independently conducted by the Audit Department on an on-
going basis. The audits cover all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls as well as risk
management functions.

The Group continuously fine-tunes and enhances its operational
risk management framework in line with industry developments
andin this regard may work closely with its strategic shareholder
and partner. In the past year, the Group focused on (a) enhancing
its loss data collection mechanism by developing a new policy on
reporting incidents and loss, (b) revamping the existing IT system to
facilitate the reporting of incidents and loss in compliance with BASEL
recommendations, and (b) improving the self-assessment process.

The Group's long-term goal is to migrate, on a progressive basis, from
the current Basic Indicator Approach to the Standardised Approach
and eventually to the Advanced Measurement Approach and thereby
benefit from a reduction in regulatory capital in the future.

Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are as follows:

- To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

- To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business; and

- To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as an going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders.

The HKMA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Group
as a whole. An individual banking subsidiary is directly regulated
by its local banking supervisor. In implementing current capital
requirements, the HKMA requires the Group to maintain a prescribed
ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets. The Group adopts
the standardised approach to calculate market risk in its trading
portfolios, risk weightings for credit risk and basic indicator approach
for operational risk. Banking operations are categorised as either
trading or banking book, and risk-weighted assets are determined
according to specified requirements that seek to reflect the varying
levels of risk attached to assets and off-statement of financial position
exposures.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

(e) Capital management (cont’d)

(f)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of the capital adequacy ratio and there have
been no material changes in the Group's policy on the management
of capital during the year.

The capital adequacy ratios at 31 December 2010 are computed
on the consolidated basis of the Group and certain subsidiaries
as specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and are in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the year
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 and is well above the minimum
required ratio set by the HKMA.

Legal risk management

The Group remains abreast of all legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to its governance and operations, and continuously
seeks to develop its people, to enhance its systems and processes
to create awareness and to implement necessary change. Policies
and procedures, incorporated with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements, are set and regularly reviewed. These policies and
procedures are promulgated through internal communications
and training. There is a strong process in place to ensure legal and
regulatory risk is under control. Any significant failings are reported by
the compliance function to the Group’s Audit Committee and senior
management.

—E-TEER
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41

(f)

(9)

Financial Risk Management (cont’d)

Legal risk management (cont’d)

The Legal Department ("LD") and Compliance Department (“CD") have
been key partners in the business, providing legal and compliance
advice and support to all parts of the Group. In 2010, LD and CD
were actively involved in launching new products and new business,
strategically important transactions and commercial agreements,
outsourcing arrangement as well as day-to-day matters arising from
the business that is diverse both geographically and in scope. In the
midst of this activity, CD has also been heavily involved in monitoring
and ensuring compliance with fast changing regulatory requirements
in the area of investor protection. LD and CD in 2011 will continue to
provide the advice and support that the Group will require as it strives
to meet the challenges these changes will present.

Strategic and reputational risks management

Strategic risk management refers to the Group's efforts to develop,
uphold and implement strategic decisions related to its long-term
growth and development. Reputational risk management refers to
the Group's efforts to protect its brand name and business franchise
from any potential damages arising from negative publicity about its
business practices, conduct or financial condition.

The CRMC of the Group meets regularly to monitor and oversee
the Group's strategic and reputational risks. High priority is placed
by senior management to ensure that the Group's business and
operational strategies are appropriately defined and executed in a
professional and time-relevant manner. Such strategies are reviewed
on a regular basis to enable the Group to make timely responses
to changes in its operating and regulatory environment. Business
priorities are set on a bank-wide basis as well as for individual business
and functional units which are clearly aligned to support the Group's
strategies, and measurable targets are assigned to ensure executional
excellence. Great care is also taken to protect the Group's reputation
and to maximise its brand equity. This involves on-going efforts
to monitor and ensure high standards in customer satisfaction,
operational efficiencies, legal and regulatory compliance, public
communications and issues management, etc.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Fair Value Information

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are made as
of a specific point in time based on the characteristics of the financial
instruments and relevant market information. The Group measures
fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for
identical instruments.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either
directly or indirectly where all significant inputs are observable from
market data. This category includes financial instruments with quoted
prices in active markets for similar instruments; or quoted prices in
markets that are considered less than active for identical or similar
instruments.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs
where the valuation techniques include one or more significant
inputs are unobservable. This category includes financial instruments
that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to
reflect differences between the instruments.

—E-TEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments
recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value treatment is categorised:

ZE5-%%
2010
by 1] N
The Group The Bank
A EpE #38 an EAFE EE B3| ek
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BETr BETr B%Tn  B%Tn BETT BETr  BETn  BETrn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
ReBBEE Trading assets
-BRES - Equity securities 3,029 - - 3,029 3,029 - - 3,029
-REES - Investment funds - - 4,162 4,162 - - 4,162 4,162
—fTETAME - Positive fair values of
ArEE derlvatives 30,994 1,595,472 - 1,626,466 30,994 1,582,637 - 1,613,631
34,023 1,595,472 4,162 1,633,657 34,023 1,582,637 4,162 1,620,822
EEBBBESR  Securties designated at fair
ARBAR value through profit or
EEMNES loss
~EBER - Debt securities 602,878 - 43,630 646,508 602,878 - 43,630 646,508
L ERS Available-for-sale securities
~AEMGEZE - Cerficates of deposit held 33,320 1,447,292 - 1,480,621 33329 1,447,292 - 1,480,621
-BEA(BHE - Treasury bills (including
NEELEZR) Exchange Fund Bills) 2,610,576 - - 2610576 2,610,576 - - 2610576
—ERES - Debt securities 6,030,868 10,686,019 10,219 16,727,106 5972,101 10,686,019 10,219 16,668,339
—BRER - Equity securities 16,258 - 23,184 39,442 16,258 - 23,184 39,442
8,691,031 12,133,311 33,403 20,857,745 8,632,264 12,133,311 33,403 20,798,978
9,327,932 13,728,783 81,195 23,137,910 9,269,165 13,715,948 81,195 23,066,308
=4 Liabilities
RHRREE Trading liabilities
—fTETER - Negative fair value of
AARER derivatives 719 1,476,809 - 1477528 719 1,463,778 - 1,464,497
BETESE Certificates of deposit issued
—EEBEBIEE - Designated at fair value
URBAREE  through profit or loss - 775,217 - 775217 - 775.217 - 775,217
719 2,252,026 - 2,252,745 719 2,238,995 - 2,239,714

194| HERTEBRERAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)

“EETNF
2009
pie3c] 17
The Group The Bank
F14 EYL F35 ek F14 EYE F35 k]
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
BETr  BETr  EETR AT BETr BT EETR AT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BE Assets
RHBEEE Trading assets
~ERER - Debt securities - 624,148 - 624,148 - 624,148 - 624,148
-BaEsH - Equity securities 2567 - - 2567 2567 - - 2567
-hELEe - Investment funds - - 3606 3606 - - 3,606 3,606
—THET AR — Positive fair values of
AR EE derivatives 39104 1114112 338 1,153554 39104 1,111,964 338 1,151,406
41671 1,738,260 3944 1,783875 4671 1,736,112 3944 1781727
EEBBBIEE  Securities designated at fair
AREAR value through
EENES profit or loss
- EBES - Debt securities 530,074 - 41,562 580,636 539,074 - 41,562 580,636
ot EES Available-for-sale securities
~BENERE - Centificates of deposit held - 1344057 - 1344057 - 1344057 - 1344057
—EEH(BE - Treasury bills (including
SHNEZSEHE)  Exchange Fund Bills) 888313 - - 888,313 888313 - - 888313
~ RS - Debt securities 3855426 13271936 614418 17,741,780 3855426 13271936 614418 17,741,780
—ERES - Equity securities 20047 - 23197 4344 20,047 - 23197 4344
-hEESE - Investment funds - - 56,333 56,333 - - 56,333 56,333
476378 14615993 693048 20073727 476378 14615993 693948 20073727
5344531 16354253 739454 22438238 5344531 16,352,105 739454 22436090
g8 Liabilities
R5BERaE Trading liabilities
—fTETAN - Negative fair value of
EUNRELE derivatives 1,700 1,105,971 338 1,108,009 1,700 1,105,011 338 1,107,049
RZZE-—ZFFR_ZTTNFA 2nEE In 2010 and 2009, there were no significant transfers of financial

BRBIVRME2RZEARBERN TR

instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)

Determination of fair value

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded
in active markets are based on quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations. For all other financial instruments, the Group determines
fair values using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
include net present value and discounted cash flow models and
other valuation models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation
techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit
spreads and other parameters used in estimating discount rates, bond
price and foreign currency exchange rates.

The most common valuation techniques applied by the Group
to determine fair value of financial instruments are from interest
rates and currency swaps, which are observable market data with
high reliability and do not require a significant involvement of
management judgement and estimation required. Observable prices
and model inputs are usually available in the market for listed debt
and equity securities, exchange traded derivatives and simple over-
the-counter (“OTC") derivatives like interest rate swaps. However, the
availability of observable market prices and inputs varies depending
on the products and markets and is prone to changes based on
specific events and general conditions in the financial markets.

Certain financial instruments need to be employed with valuation
techniques where one or more significant market inputs involved
are not observable and example of these financial instruments
include structured investments such as Farmington investments,
OTC structured derivatives and certain securities for which there is
no active market. For valuation models involved with significant
unobservable inputs, a high degree of management judgement
or estimation is required for selection of the appropriate valuation
model, determination of expected future cash flows on the
financial instruments being valued, determination of probability of
counterparty default and prepayments and selection of appropriate
discount rates.
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42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) UAABEIIRNEHMTA(E)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)

Farmingtonf8 B 2 L EEEE
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Determination of fair value in Farmington investment

The valuation of Farmington capital notes is based on its discounted
net present value of its projected cashflows in respect of the Bank’s
remaining unamortised principal balance.

The cashflow estimate is based on the cumulative undiscounted
cashflows accrued to the Bank as a capital noteholder, discounted
based on the 200-day moving average ten-year USD swap rate. Key
assumptions on cashflow include:

- the level of projected future collaterals defaults, based upon
a line-by-line review undertaken by the Investment Manager,
updated on a monthly basis;

- the rate of collateral prepayments, which is based on recently
observed averages by broad collateral type; and

- the level of future interest rates, which has an impact (broadly
offsetting) on the rate of interest accruing on collateral assets,
and the interest rate on Farmington’s Senior Debt liabilities.

As a consequence of the fact that a number of the above represent
unobservable inputs (i.e. they are assumptions or subjective
inputs), for purpose of valuation the capital notes are classified as
Level 3 category in 2010 and 2009. As mentioned in note 23 to the
financial statements, the carrying value of Farmington capital notes
investments has been fully impaired and written-down as at 31
December 2010.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)

(i) Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable

inputs

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening to

the closing balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the

fair value hierarchy:

“E-%%
2010
ARERAST
The Group and the Bank
EEARE
BRURMS
MEENES
Securities designated
atfair value
RERREE through ThyEms i
Trading assets profit or loss Available-for-sale securities Total
frETAM
EAAEE
REES rpositvefar  EHEE  BERE  BERF  REES
Investment value of Debt Debt Equity  Investment
funds  derivatives  securities  securities  securities funds
BeTn  BMTn  AMTn  B¥TRn BETn BETn B¥Tn
g& Assets HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
#0101 718 At 1 January 2010 3,606 338 41,562 614,418 23,197 56,333 739,454
A Purchases 209 - - - - - 209
Elh Sales (940) - - (2,438) - - (3378)
7 Settlements - - - (2313) - - (2313)
REERBANDL Changes in fair value recognised in
EEEY income statement
-BEWERER - Gains less losses dealing in foreign currencies - - - 1,729 (13) W3 1,959
-BERGREES - Gains less losses from trading securities
KRR 1,287 - - - - - 1,287
-EHEEEBNERER - Gainslesslosses from other dealing activities - (338) - - - - (338)
- R ABRERARY - Net gain from financial instruments
AEEZERIA designated at fair value through
Fha profit orloss - - 2,068 - - - 2,068
-ENNBAMEYNE Reclassification to other account receivable as
RiELEEE an held-for-sale asset - - - - - (56576)  (56576)
-BARBRERGBRYE Impairment and write-cown on capital notes
(HfzE23) investments (note 23) - - (481983) - - (481983)
REMER 2 ERERN Changes in fair value recognised in other
BANDABEE comprehensive income - - - (119,194) - - (119,194)
#2010%128318 At 31 December 2010 4,162 - 43,630 10,219 23,184 - 81,195
FIERTEIRERAR

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) UAAARBEIIKNEHMTAE(E)
(i) EHEZMIHTERLHASHI L

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)
(i) Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable

T AE(E) inputs (cont'd)
B8
2010
ARBRAMT
The Group and the Bank
KEARA
BRARY
MEENES
Securities designated
at fair value
RAREEE through Thpens i
Trading assets profit or loss Available-for-sale securities Total
fHETEN
ERAEE
REEE Posivefar  BHEEZ  EHEF  BERSF  REES
Investment value of Debt Debt Equity  Investment
funds  derivatives  securities  securities  securities funds
B¥Tn  AMTn  B¥TR AMTn  BMTR E¥Tn BMTx
&E Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REZRHAEFE Total gains or losses for the year included in
PEhERAHLE avallable-for-sale fair value reserve of other
N BEREAY comprehensive income at the end of the
el reporting period - - - - - - _
RESBTRENEE Total gains or losses for the year included in
RERRBEERA income statement for assets held at the end
BANERLE of the reporting period recorded in:
-BENMEYERER - Gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies - - - 52 (13) - 39
-BECHREEAUEHBE - Gains lesslosses from trading securities 1,28 - - - - - 1228
-HAHEETHMEHEE - Gains less losses from other dealing activities - - - - - - _
-ETARBERARMAL - Netgain from financialinstruments
BEzeBIARS designated at fair value thiough profitor loss - - 2,068 - - - 2,068

—E-BEER |19
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(a) UAAARBEIIKNEHMTAE(E)
(i) EHEZMIHTERLHASHIEH

Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)
(i) Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

T AE () inputs (cont'd)
rEBERAEIT
The Group and the Bank
XZAREE
Trading liabilities
FTET AN
EAREE
Negative fair
value of derivatives
BT T
=8 Liabilities HK$’000
7201051 A1 H At 1 January 2010 338
REZXRERH AN EEESD Changes in fair value recognised in income statement
—HEEE G FE — Net gain from other dealing activities (338)
R20105F12A31H At 31 December 2010 -
REZEBINEAENEENRERNR  Total gains or losses for the year included in the income
BarNERNIERERR statement for liabilities held at the end of the reporting
period record in :
—HaEEEEF U — Net gain from other dealing activities -
FIERTEIRERAR
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42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) UAAEEIRNEMT AE)
(i) EHEZMHTERHASHIEH

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)
(i) Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable

TEAGE(E) inputs (cont’d)
“ERNF
2009
AEBRAS
The Group and the Bank
EERRE
ERNRE
MEENES
Securities designated
atfairvalue
REREEE towh ThtEES a8
Trading assets profit orloss Available-for-sale securities Total
fTETEN
ERfifEE
REET  rosivefar  BEER  BBES  BREF  REED
Investment value of Debt Debt Equity  Investment
funds ~ derivatives securities securities  securities funds
AETr BT A%Tn  AMfr A%t BEfn BETn
BE Assets HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
#0091 A1A At 1 January 2009 5534 - 6,820 639,992 23192 56,271 731,809
EA Purchases - - 40695 - - - 40695
g Sales (30) - - - - - (30)
1 Settlements - - (6,102) (14537) - - (20639)
RERRER Changes in fair value recognised in
MEER income statement
-BEEUERER - Gains less losses dealing in foreign currencies - - - 140 5 62 207
-BERGRRES - Gains less losses from trading securities
bR 089 - - : i o
-EHEERIURRER - Gains less losses from other dealing activities - 338 - - - - 338
- EEARBER RS - Net gain from financial instruments
MrEEz2BIA designated at fair value through
Fha profit or loss - - 149 - - - 149
REMGE2ERERR Changes in fair value recognised in other
ot N L) comprehensive income - - - m7m - - m7m
#2009E 124318 At 31 December 2009 3606 338 41562 614418 23197 56,333 739,454
—E-ZFFR
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(a) UAAARBEIKNEHMTA(E)
(i) EHEZMHTERNHASHIEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont'd)
(i) Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable

TEAGE(E) inputs (cont'd)
ZITNF
2009
AERRAT
The Group and the Bank
KERER
ERlRE
MEENES
Securities designated
atfair value
REREEE through A HEES g
Trading assets profit or loss Available-for-sale securities Total
fETEM
ERrBE
REEE postvefar  BRER  ERER  EREs  REER
Investrent value of Debt Debt Fquity  Investment
funds  derivatives securities securities  securities funds
A%tn  AEfr  EETn A%Tn BETR EBTn BETx
BE Assets HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
REERF NGRS Total gains or losses for the year included in
FEGETTHNLE avalable-for-sale fair value resenve of other
MEBREND comprehensive income at the end of the
Brpa reporting period - - - (11177) - - (11177)
REZRMRENEE Total gains or losses for the year included in
RERNBEERR income statement for assets held at the end
BRNERLE of the reporting period recorded in:
-BEMERER - Gains less losses from dealing in foreign currencies - - - 140 5 62 207
-BERSABEFNEHEE - Gains less osses from trading securities (1.899) - - - - - (1.899)
~EWEEEHRERER - Gainslesslosses from other dealing activites - 338 - - - - 38
-EEABBRERARBAL - Netgan from financialinstruments
EEzEBIA TR designated at airvalue through profit orloss - - 149 - - . 149
HRERITEIRARA A

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont'd)
(i) Valuation of financial instruments with significant unobservable

T AE(E) inputs (cont’d)
RNEE KARTT
The Group and the Bank
RHRABAaE
Trading liabilities
PTET AR
BRAREE
Negative fair
value of derivatives
BT
afE Liabilities HK$'000
720091 H1H At 1 January 2009 -
REBRERERN AR EEEE Changes in fair value recognised in income statement
—HiBEBEEEFEE — Net loss from other dealing activities 338
72009512 H31H At 31 December 2009 338
REEBNHENERERFEA Total gains or losses for the year included in the income
RERKRAERNERER statement for liabilities held at the end of the reporting
period record in :
—HihEEEEFEE — Net loss from other dealing activities 338
—z-z5EH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont'd)
(i) Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to
reasonable possible alternative assumptions

Fair values for Level 3 financial instruments are measured
using valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are
not based on observable market data. The following table
shows the sensitivity of Level 3 fair value measurements due
to parallel movement of plus or minus 10% of change in fair
value to reasonably possible alternative assumptions. In 2009,
the other underlying assumptions of Farmington investments
had been inputted into its valuation model in order to test its
sensitivity. The Farmington investments have been fully impaired
and written-down in 2010, as stated in note 23 to the financial

TEANZERERME - statements.
ARBRAS
The Group and the Bank
—g-%%
2010
REM2E KRR
N EEL T Effect on other
Effect on income statement comprehensive income
B (RF) BA (RF)
Favourable (Unfavourable) Favourable (Unfavourable)
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
RHRBEE Trading assets
KBRS - Investment funds 416 (416) - -
EEARBIERA R Financial assets designated at fair value
ARBENSHEE through profit or loss
—ERES - Debt securities 4,363 (4,363) - -
AfHERES Available-for-sale securities
—EBES - Debt securities
—Eft - Others - - 1,022 (1,022)
—BRES - Equity securities - - 2,318 (2,318)

204 | RERITEIRBRA S
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(@) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont’d)
(i) Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to
reasonable possible alternative assumptions (cont'd)

AEBRAT
The Group and the Bank
“ETNF
2009
REMZERERB
Pz & Effect on other
Effect on income statement comprehensive income
AN (~H) AN (~F))
Favourable  (Unfavourable) Favourable  (Unfavourable)
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BE Assets
RHRBEE Trading assets
~-REREE - Investment funds 360 (360) - -
T BRBBRARR Financial assets designated at fair value
ARBENSHEE through profit or loss
-EBES - Debt securities 4,156 (4,156) - -
AN EES Available-for-sale securities
—EBES - Debt securities
—Farmington®® & (FI5E()) ~ Farmington investment (Note (i)) - - 8,228 (365,484)
—Efth - Others - - 1,260 (1,260)
- BEREE - Equity securities - - 2320 (2,320)
-REES® - Investment funds - - 5633 (5,633)
TE-TEER
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(a) UAAARBEIIKNEHMTAE(E)

(i) HEZEMHF BHENRRREREE A

1THY 5 BIRR FTEL B E ()
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EEEMEIMRBTEFEREE - At 5
—ERFEAABEMEGEAITHERE
RIEUTHEET - 6 — [EERAMER
I (VAL ]) &R & - TERHBRBIE AF
#310,000,0007T + HH RBA KK RTET
RIS RIBN R1542% - EINRFRE
15 & 18 N7 609,700,0007T © HNR T IR &
=R (WAL |/IE8%) « TERTEIBAIEE M
% 7#1%51,030,700,0007T + AR GIER REBE
BITRIEMEIFRIEN L58% » BEITRF

RE AR D 2= B 8236,200,0007T °

RERITERERAS
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value (cont'd)
(i) Effects of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to

reasonable possible alternative assumptions (cont'd)

Note (i):

The Bank believed that its estimates of fair value for the above financial
instruments were appropriate, but the use of different methodologies
or assumptions could lead to different measurements of fair value. In
2009, the fair value determination for the Farmington capital notes in the
available-for-sale securities portfolio was the most sensitive to changes
in two key subjective inputs, namely the level of collateral defaults and
the rate of collateral prepayments (“CPR"). The level of interest rates
was not considered to have a material effect on fair value, because the
Senior Debt, and the large majority of collateral assets, were both tied
to floating-rate indexes. Accordingly, for fair value measurements in
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, two reasonably possible alternative
cases had been run in following manners. Consistent with a stronger
and faster ("V-shaped”) economic recovery, the projected losses were
assumed to be HK$310.0 million, and collateral prepayments would be
assumed to run at a faster CPR of 15.42%. The discount net present value
would increase as HK$609.7 million. Should it follow with a double-dip
recession (“W-shaped” recovery), projected losses significantly increased
to HK$1,030.7 million and collateral prepayments are assumed to run at
a slower CPR of 9.58%. The discount net present value would reduce to
only HK$236.2 million.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 RRABEEERGE)

42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)
(b) UAAREBEUMNIENESRIAEANAEBE (b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair
value
All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried at amounts

BREBHBAN BRI EHUAARE
EBIE AR E—FFR_TTNF
TZA=T—BHARBEZTKHER
EETK o

(i) THEEE
AEENERMEETERRRS R
17 PRFEFTREMBSBEETR T
FPERRBHR  RENESBITETH -

RIT  PRIRIT R EM S BEBFRN
AABEEZZRRMSHEEE TR
—FREE - Ht - REEEAAEE
HE -

BEFERMBRNAABERERAH
[RECTUE I Sk i TR A RS 0)E2
PREREE  XEBR=_EARNEHE
& SHEFREKEE -

not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2010
and 2009 unless otherwise stated.

(i)  Financial assets

The Group's financial assets mainly include cash, placements
with banks, central banks and other financial institutions, loans
and advances to customers, investments and financial derivative
instruments.

The fair values of placements with banks, central banks and other
financial institutions are mainly priced at market interest rates
and mature within one year. Accordingly, the carrying values
approximate the fair values.

The fair values of loans and advances to customers, taking into
account the relevant market interest rates and being mostly
priced at floating rates close to the market interest rate which are
mainly repriced within 3 months, equal to their carrying amounts.

RHGPHREE - BEABBIERIAKE Trading assets, securities designated at fair value through profit or
NABENELSMAIHEEESENS loss and available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value in the
WMERAARRBEIIEE - financial statements.

TE-ZFFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42 Fair Value Information (cont’d)

(b) UAABEUMNIENESRIAENAEBE (b) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair

(&)
(i) EHEE

BRTaEN  FETRAEHNARE

BEERFSRRER

RZZFE—ZFFER-F

ENFT_A=T—"HHN2AEED

value (cont’d)

(ii)  Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are stated at fair value or carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2010 and 2009 except as follows:

PREBREEAMRK :
rEE
The Group
—F-FF —EFENF
2010 2009
RE<SHE AT
Carrying AREE Carrying NRBE
amount Fair value amount Fair value
BT T BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BBITFRE Certificates of deposit issued
—ERGHE ~ Non-trading 6,209,837 6,216,242 3,693,598 3,702,030
BEITERE S Debt securities issued 231,900 231,900 71,800 71,801
BEBEER Loan capital 7,763,729 8,062,040 3,916,017 4,009,398
14,205,466 14,510,182 7,681,415 7,783,229
17
The Bank
i —FENF
2010 2009
RESHE AT
Carrying NREE Carrying ~rEE
amount Fair value amount Fair value
BT T BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
EBITFRE Certificates of deposit issued
— kR A% — Non-trading 6,209,837 6,216,242 3,693,598 3,702,030
BEIEE AN Loan capital 5,791,576 5,993,639 1,938,661 1,993,210
12,001,413 12,209,881 5,632,259 5,695,240

208 | RIFRITEIRBMRA S
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43 fTATH

(a)

ERTETAEEEENHETEFE
SEREEEMmEARBEELEXGN—@E

RED - FREERBBEEEREN—
R adTAGEREEEARELRTMH
EENTSEAR - AREFMANEENTE
TEHREMEMEREFNGH TR
BHORZNTETR - AEBBERS
NEENITETARHK - AEEAXZ RN
BEPHMERMEH R LREEREMIHE
TETARR e BEMME 1A
BB REHEE B FFEE P -

TETANEREH
TETHARERE - HAXZHEMBBEER
RENEEREETEEBENTHAK - &
LTANABEHRARRATHUNZ 55
W AR EBREER ©

Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Derivatives

(a)

The use of derivatives for proprietary trading and sales to customers
as risk management products is an integral part of the Group's
business activities. These instruments are also used to manage the
Group's own exposures to market risk as part of its asset and liability
management process. The principal derivatives instruments used by
the Group are interest and foreign exchange rate related contracts,
which are primarily OTC derivatives. The Group also participates
in exchange traded derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivatives
positions have been entered into to meet customer demand and to
hedge these and other trading positions. For accounting purposes,
derivatives are classified as either held for trading or held for hedging.

Notional amounts of derivatives

Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on
the value of one or more underlying assets or indices. The notional
amounts of these investments indicate the volume of outstanding
transactions and do not represent amounts at risk.

—E-TEER
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43 FTETH(E)

(a) FTATANEBRSH(E)
ATRAEBEATEREETET AN

Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Derivatives (cont’d)

(@) Notional amounts of derivatives (cont’d)
The following is a summary of the notional amounts of each

LERSENE significant type of derivatives entered into by the Group and the Bank:
5H
The Group
ZE-E% “EENE
2010 2009
HEEAER HETARA
EREARMAR BaRbRBAR
EENSHIA EEMTRIA
—HHETER —fhEmER
Managed in Managed in
conjunction with (B conjunction with (8%
financial instruments BEEE) financial instruments BEEEE)
BYWEE designatedatfairvalue Others (including &g BEREE  designated at fairvalue  Others (including &%
Held for hedging ~ through profitorloss  held for trading) Total  Heldforhedging ~through profitorloss  held for trading) Total
BRI BT E¥TR BT BB BT BB BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ERf4IE Currency derivatives
BT 5 Forwards - - 109,088,547 109,088,547 - - 50,623,365 50,623,365
BER5 Swaps - 78,000 48,492,288 48,570,288 - 78,000 54,795,678 54873678
ENBE Options purchased - - 5,526,754 5,526,754 - - 852,046 852,046
i Options written - - 5,580,800 5,580,800 - - 1,007,133 1,007,133
HEfEIR Interest rate derivatives
EHREERS  Fowardsand futures - - - - - - 155,093 155,093
BER5 Swaps 6,898,787 775,000 47,412,028 55,085,815 2957352 - 49,698,116 52,655,468
EAGE Options purchased - - 277,147 277,147 - - - -
ELGE Options written - - 0147 271147 - - - -
RENETR Equity derivatives
BHS Swaps - - 463,800 463,800 - - 143600 143600
6,898,787 853,000 217,118511 224,870,298 2957352 78,000 157,275,031 160,310,383
HRERITERERA A

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Derivatives (cont’d)

(a) FIETENERSHE(E) (a) Notional amounts of derivatives (cont’d)
A4
The Bank
“F-8% %%
2010 20
SREERRA HEEARA
BRARMAR BENRMAR
EENSHIA EENEBIE
—-HENER —HETER
Managed in Managed in
conjunction with Efh(@fE conjunction with (A
financial instruments BEEE) financial instruments BEEE)
BYWEE  designatedatfairvalue Others (including ag BEWREE  designated atfairvalue  Others (including g
Held for hedging through profitorloss ~held for trading) Total  Held for hedging ~ through profitorloss  held for trading) Total
RETR BETT BETT BETT BT BETTL BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
EX{i4IR Currency derivatives
RERS Forwards - - 107841116 107,841,116 - - 50198972 50198972
BH%5 Swaps - 78,000 48,023,073 48,101,073 - 78,000 54,826,697 54904697
RNt Options purchased - - 5,526,754 5,526,754 - - 852,046 852,046
EfHE Options written - - 5,580,800 5,580,800 - - 1,007,133 1,007,133
HZf4TR Interest rate derivatives
REREETS  Fowards and futures - - - - - - 155,093 155,093
B 5 Swaps 6,898,787 775,000 47,565,333 55,239,120 2957352 - 49915,238 52872590
E B Options purchased - - 277,147 277,147 - - - -
ElLgiE Options wiitten - - 277,147 277,147 - - - -
RENETR Equity derivatives
RERS Swaps - - 463,800 463,800 - - 143600 143600
6,898,787 853,000 215,555,170 223,306,957 2957352 78,000 157,098,779 160,134,131

RHBEAEERNTNERTABEER
BERR ARTEPNXRZESHLEH
KABMELNER  ARREHEAMR
SLEMBENRE -

Trading includes the Group's and the Bank's proprietary positions

in financial instruments, positions which arise from the execution of

trade orders from customers and market making, and positions taken

in order to hedge other elements of the trading book.
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43 FTETH(ME)

(b) STETANRABEREERRINERE

Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Derivatives (cont’d)

(b) Fair values and credit risk-weighted amounts of derivatives

PN |
The Group
—E-EF “EThE
2010 2009

FERE EERR
AREE MESEE “ifEE IR E] IESE
=1 Credit risk- BE BE Credit risk-
Fair value weighted Fairvalue Fair value weighted
liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
BT BETT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETETE Interest rate derivatives 657,502 627,776 727,768 807,456 633920
EXHTETE Currency derivatives 813,636 2,303,093 425,382 300,149 650,228
BRETETR Equity derivatives 6,390 22,037 404 404 5478
1,477,528 2,952,906 1,153,554 1,108,009 1,289,626

(Fff3Enote 29) (fsEnote 200 (Fif3Enote 29)

¥y
The Bank
—E-EF “EThE
2010 2009

FERE EERR
AREE MESEE AR INTRELE] ISR
=1 Credit risk- BE BE Credit risk-
Fair value weighted Fairvalue Fair value weighted
liabilities amount assets liabilities amount
BT BETT BETT BB BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETETE Interest rate derivatives 657,528 625,352 727,052 807,456 631,665
[EXHTETE Currency derivatives 800,579 2,289,722 423,950 299,189 645,691
RETETA Equity derivatives 6,390 22,037 404 404 5478
1,464,497 2,937,111 1,151,406 1,107,049 1,282,834

(Fff3Enote 29) (ff5Enote 200 (Fif3Enote 29)

212| RERITERBRA S
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FTETAR(E)
TTETANAREBEREERRMESZE

(#&)
SERBINESESERBUERITE(EN)
RMANDBEEARFTEZMER - WEURRZ S
HFNM BRI KB HAER TETE o 5%
BB ERAENRBRINEB%E150%TF
(ZEZTNF: 0%E150%) * MIER « FIE K
Hi{TAE T RSN BNE150%0TEF(ZF
THE 0%E150%) ©

REBRBEFANR LEMNEEFEER
- Bt B BERR ARRRRSIR o

EEAUHIANITETANAAEE
AT RANEE R AITHRAEE I RE 1A
TAREREMNENNAREEME :

Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Derivatives (cont’d)

(b) Fair values and credit risk-weighted amounts of derivatives

(cont’d)

The credit risk-weighted amount is the amount which has been
calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules on capital
adequacy and depends on the status of the counterparty and the
maturity characteristics. The risk weights used range from 0% to 150%
(2009: 0% to 150%) for contingent liabilities and commitments, and
from 0% to 150% (2009: 0% to 150%) for exchange rate, interest rate
and other derivatives contracts.

The Group did not enter into any bilateral netting arrangements
during the year and accordingly these amounts are shown on a gross
basis.

(c) Fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments

The following is a summary of the fair values of derivatives held for
hedging purposes by product type entered into by the Group and the
Bank:

REBER AT
The Group and the Bank
—2-2F “TThF
2010 2009

AREE AREE NREE NREE
BE aE BE afE
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
assets liabilities assets liabilities
BET T BT T BT BRI
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FREH Interest rate contracts 56,119 46,342 35,733 127,324

AR REHAEEREREREETEE
HEBEERBENDABERTEHES
BT R (ORI

Fair value hedges principally consist of interest rate swaps that are used
to protect against changes in the fair value of certain fixed rate assets
or liabilities due to movements in the market interest rates.
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43 FTETH(E)

(d) TTETEMERTFH

TRIEHAEEIRIZARD BRI (RN
BEMR MEE SRR EoMITAETA

Notes to the Financial Statements

43 Derivatives (cont’d)

(d) Remaining life of derivatives

The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts of

derivatives of the Group by relevant maturity grouping based on the

ZERTEEON - remaining periods to settlement at the end of the reporting period.
A&EE
The Group
ZE-2F —ETNE
2010 2009
BIEANERSH BIERNEESR
Notional amounts with remaining life of Notional amounts with remaining life of

1E0E 1EME

E5F E5F
&% 1EQUT  Overlyear SENE @®  EFLT  Overlyear SELLE
Total 1yearorless to5years  Over 5 years Total ~ Tyearorless to5years  Qver5years
B¥Tn  BMTr  BMTx  E%Tn B¥Tr BBTx BT A%t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FIRGTATA Interest rate derivatives 55,640,109 18,496,864 33,076,187 4,067,058 52810561 12,855,130 39955431 -
EX{TATA Currency derivatives 168,766,389 134,565,724 34,200,665 - 107356222 104970265 2385957 -
g TET A Equity derivatives 463,800 463,800 - - 143,600 143,600 - -
224,870,298 153,526,388 67,276,852 4,067,058 160310383 11796899 42,341,388 -

&7
The Bank
zg-%fF “ETNE
2010 2009
BRIERNERSHE BIERNEESR
Notional amounts with remaining life of Notional amounts with remaining life of

1E0E 3

E5F E5F
#®  1EQUT  Overlyear SENE @®  EFLT  Overlyear SELLE
Total 1yearorless to5years  Over5years Total ~ Tyearorless to5years  Qver5years
BBTn  BMTr  BEMTx  E%Tn B¥Tr BBTx BT B%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
METETA Interest rate derivatives 55,793,414 18,650,737 33,075,619 4,067,058 53027683 13,072,259 39955424 -
BEITETH Currency derivatives 167,049,743 132,849,078 34,200,665 - 106962848 104576891 2385957 -
RIESTHETA Equity derivatives 463,800 463,800 - - 143600 143600 - -
223,306,957 151,963,615 67,276,284 4,067,058 160134131 117,792,750 42,341,381 -

HERTEBERAA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44 REEE - BEREARE

44 Contingent Assets, Liabilities and Commitments

() REGFENHERERAR

(a) Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit

NTRERETIZXAAGBRAENEGOS
BmE

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

TEE )T
The Group The Bank
ZE-BF _TTNE ZEB-BF _TTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BT T BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
HEEEERER Direct credit substitutes 5,514,355 4,580,235 5,514,355 4,580,235
B 56 EIEE Transaction-related contingencies 394,540 614,836 396,982 614,836
B 5 AEMNEEE Trade-related contingencies 1,840,502 1,299,902 1,540,341 1,159,244
REAFERTE R Forward forward deposits placed - - 2,500 -
H b IE - Other commitments:
—SRITAEEAGMEEUREL — which are unconditionally
ERERARNEERR cancellable or automatically
IR A B B EUH cancellable due to deterioration
in the creditworthiness of the
borrower 21,470,921 19,531,304 21,470,921 19,531,304
—REEEHFE1ESHLAT  — with an original maturity of not
more than 1 year 9,295,373 4,066,281 9,102,709 4,014,044
—REEBEAEVFL £ — with an original maturity of more
than 1 year 5,984,814 3,140,984 5,751,818 3,106,119
44,500,505 33,233,542 43,779,626 33,005,782
SE Rk NESEE Credit risk-weighted amounts 9,130,072 6558920 8,918,119 6,503,159

FBEREMEAEREEEABNTIA 8
BEMER  GRARBMEHREENERK
AHE - SRMARERN FEATFREE
FABMEBSMNEERRER - EHER
EREAHNEBRIRELEFPHERME
AERR S EE o B R A REE 2
RIDRBA - AL IFRIRKR

Ny}
e °

AR E (= B R h0AE 85 & B N4 B
0%ZE150%( ZFENF 1 0%ZE150%) T3 o

RZZE—ZF+_F=+—H AEEK
RITHBB A B ERFEIT114,400,000(F
B 75 #889,400,0007T ) + B AR 1% M 5E40(a)
(INREIMORRIER  BEEERSARFE
BeBEERNERRAITRENBERHE
IR ERE HEEREEEEREK -

Contingent liabilities and commitments are credit-related instruments
which include forward deposits placed, letters of credit, guarantees
and commitments to extend credit. The risk involved is essentially
the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. The contractual amounts represent the amounts at risk
should the contract be fully drawn upon and the client default. As the
facilities may expire without being drawn upon, the contract amounts
do not represent expected future cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk-weighted
amounts range from 0% to 150% (2009: 0% to 150%).

As at 31 December 2010, the Group and the Bank have contingent
assets of US$114.4 million (equivalent to HK$889.4 million) for any
potential CDS loss to be borne by the Group and the Bank which
could be reimbursed from its immediate parent, CIFH, in accordance
with the terms of the Agreement as disclosed in note 40(a)(iii) to the
financial statements.
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44 REEE - BEREE )

(b) BEARERE
R-ZZE-—ZF+_A=+—HB BEBA®
F MR ARER T NORE I 5 R NI &

Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Contingent Assets, Liabilities and Commitments (cont’d)

(b) Capital commitments

Capital commitments for purchase of properties and equipment
outstanding at 31 December 2010 not provided for in the financial

EERERAENT - statements were as follows:
r~EH 1T
The Group The Bank
—E-ZF —ETHhNEFE ZE-ZF —ZTTHhF
2010 2009 2010 2009
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
O NRETA Authorised and contracted for 43,885 35,286 42,521 33,300
BREERETH Authorised but not contracted for 19,519 900 19,519 900
63,404 36,186 62,040 34,700
(c) FAERIE (c) Lease commitments

R-ZFB-ZF+-_A=+—H " RETH

Z

At 31 December 2010, the total future minimum lease payments

AR RR A8 M B B Y R 2R (K FH & 4258 10 under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:
™~
FEE 1T
The Group The Bank
—2-BF —TTNF ZE-BF _—TTNH
2010 2009 2010 2009
BETT BT BETT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
YWEBEER AT HAREM  Properties leases expiring:
TR Within 1 year 148,928 89,513 134,479 77,163
1FEE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 434,533 210,237 431,012 195,639
5 1% After 5 years 252,187 - 252,187 -
835,648 299,750 817,678 272,802
RIBEER T HIRIHAM : Equipment leases expiring:
1A Within 1 year 1,175 2,077 605 1,107
1FE5F After 1 year but within 5 years 439 1,072 439 534
1,614 3,149 1,044 1,641

AEBREATREBLEREN T AEES
BYMEEZE - AR EREENRYHE
ER-—RAE—ENF  AIRNEHRREND
EFAGR - U EHEH NS RAES -

PERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The Group and the Bank lease a number of properties and items
of equipment under operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial period of one to nine years, with an option to renew the
lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44

(d)

45

46

47

Contingent Assets, Liabilities and Commitments (cont’d)

Contingent liability in respect of legal claim

The Group and its subsidiaries are not involved in any legal actions
that would be significant to the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2010 and 2009.

Trust Activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions. These assets
and income arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling Party

At 31 December 2010, the directors consider the immediate parent of
the Group to be CITIC International Financial Holdings Limited, which is
incorporated in Hong Kong, and the ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be CITIC Group, which is incorporated in Mainland China.

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Changes
in assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial
statements in the periods where the assumptions are changed. The
application of assumptions and estimates means that any selection
of different assumptions would cause the Group's reporting to differ.
The Group believes that the assumptions that have been made are
appropriate and that the financial statements therefore present the
financial position and results fairly, in all material respects.

Management discussed with the Audit Committee the development,
selection and disclosure of the Group's significant accounting policies
and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates.
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BERRER
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AREEMBEFT—RBEHEE - BIRIE
ER—HBEREFERTANFERE
AmSERMEL - IERTA - FE
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PERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

47 Accounting Estimates and Judgements (cont’d)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Notes 26(c) and 42 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to valuation of investment property and
fair value of financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairment losses

Loans and advances

Loans portfolios are reviewed periodically to access whether
impairment losses exist. The Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio
is impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future
cash flows. Objective evidence for impairment is described in
the accounting policy note 2(l). If management has determined,
based on their judgement, that objective evidence of impairment
exists, expected future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those of the Group. Historical loss experience
is adjusted on the basis of the current observable data.
Management reviews the methodology and assumptions used
in estimating future cash flows regularly to reduce any difference
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Available-for-sale securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity securities are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value below cost. The determination of when a decline
in fair value below cost is not recoverable within a reasonable
time period is judgemental by nature, so profit and loss could be
affected by differences in this judgement.

(ii)  Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information.
Where available, quoted market prices are used. If quoted price
is not available on a recognised stock exchange or from a broker
or dealer for non-exchange traded financial instruments or from
a readily available latest trading price, the fair value is estimated
using present value or other valuation techniques using current
market parameters. The fair value of structured investment
vehicles is based on their net assets value provided by investment
managers and has taken into consideration of other risk factors.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

47 Accounting Estimates and Judgements (cont’d)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

Fair value of financial instruments (cont’d)

All valuation models are validated before they are used as a basis
for financial reporting. Wherever possible, the Group compares
valuations derived from models with quoted prices of similar
financial instruments, and with actual values when realised, in
order to further validate and calibrate the models.

These techniques involve uncertainties and are materially affected
by the assumptions used and judgements made regarding risk
characteristics of various financial instruments, discount rate,
estimates of future cash flows, future expected loss experience
and other factors. Changes in assumptions could materially affect
these estimates and the resulting fair values. Derived fair value
estimates cannot necessarily be substantiated by comparison to
independent markets and, in many cases, could be realised in an
immediate sale of the instruments.

Other accounting estimates

Judgement has been exercised in determining the amount
which may be payable to customers in respect of complaints or
legal claims arising from the sale of investment products. In 2009,
a charge was recognised in the income statement representing
amounts paid and an estimate of future amounts which could
be payable. No additional charge was recognised in 2010 (see
note 11(c)). Management is of the opinion that the residual
amount, which could be recovered from the Lehman Brothers
Minibonds on collateral recovery and realisation, cannot be
reliably estimated and therefore no residual value of the Lehman
Brothers Minibonds has been recognised on the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2010 and 20009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

48 Comparative Figures

The comparative figures of gross loans and advances to customers

and collectively assessed impairment allowances have been restated

to conform with current year’s presentation to include trade bills as

loans and advances to customers. The comparative figures of trade
bills of HKS$1,035,773,000 at 31 December 2009 and its respective
collectively assessed impairment allowances of HK$7,157,000 have

been included in gross loans and advances to customers.

Further

details of these changes are disclosed in note 22.

49 Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and
Interpretations Issued but not yet Effective for the Year

Ended 31 December 2010

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA

has issued a number of amendments, Interpretations and one new

standard, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December

2010 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

These include the following which may be relevant to the Group:

R =gl
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

- REKEBEBEFWRS
E£32H-T2MITA:
— Bz D8]

- BR(BERMBREENZE -
ZEg)RES G- T#a
TREHEMAE]

- REFKEBEHE
— [ BB T 8

— (BB BRELES

A -
2%

PN

T

81 )55 2458 -
BIVEYE#E(2010) -

— REKBEAWHREEADER -

—[¢RIA BE-cpEEE
%)
— KETKEBEERNE 125 -
—[Fr13%t]
— (BEBPBREEL)FENH -
—[&@ITA]
FIERITEEERAQA

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Amendment to HKAS 32, Financial

instruments: Presentation — Classification of rights

issues
IFRIC 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments

Revised HKAS 24, Related party disclosures

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:

Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

20102 A 1H
1 February 2010

20107H 18
1 July 2010

2011118
1 January 2011

010F7A1882011F1 818

1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011
NF7A1H
1 July 2011

0RF1 AR
1 January 2012

201351 A1 H
1 January 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements

49

50

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and
Interpretations Issued but not yet Effective for the Year
Ended 31 December 2010 (cont’d)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position except for the amendments to HKAS
12, Income taxes. The amendments to HKAS 12 will be adopted in
the 2012 financial statements and the Group will be required to make
retrospective adjustments at that time to the amounts reported in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2010, to the extent that the
tax consequences that would apply on the sale of the properties at
their carrying amount would differ from the amounts accrued for
deferred tax under the current policy, in respect of those properties
which are not held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time. The Group has not yet completed its assessment
of the impact of this new accounting policy on the accrual for
deferred tax.

Non-adjusting Post Balance Sheet Events

The Bank, together with 15 other distributing banks of the Lehman
Brothers Minibonds (“LB Minibonds") issued by Pacific International
Finance Limited (the “Issuer”), have been working towards a
satisfactory outcome for the recovery of the Minibonds collateral, and
have reached to a final resolution proposal for Series 10 to 12, 15 to 23
and 25 to 36 of the LB Minibonds (the “Relevant Minibonds”).

Following the offer of the Repurchase Scheme entered on 22
July 2009 as disclosed in note 11, each of the distributing banks
committed to assist in and to expedite the recovery of the collateral
for, among other outstanding LB Minibonds, the Relevant Minibonds
(“Collateral”) by the trustee for the LB Minibonds (the “Trustee”). The
Trustee had already appointed receivers (the "Receivers”) for the

Collateral.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

50 Non-adjusting Post Balance Sheet Events (cont’d)

On 28 March 2011, the Receivers announced that Lehman Brothers
Special Financing Inc. (“Lehman Brothers”), the Trustee, the Receivers
(as agents of the Issuer and without personal liability) and others
have reached into the Conditional Agreement to settle opposing
claims asserted by LB in respect of the Collateral (the “Conditional
Agreement”). The Receivers advised that the agreement will, upon
it becoming unconditional, enable investors of Relevant Minibonds
to recover between 70% and 93% of the amounts they invested.
The actual distribution to each investor (the “Recovery Payment”)
will depend on the specific circumstances of the investor. Investors
should also refer to the Receiver's announcement for further details.

The Conditional Agreement mentioned above is dependent on the
following:

(i) the US Bankruptcy Court confirming that its previous orders
which lay down procedures for Lehman Brothers to enter into
settlements in respect of claims arising under certain derivatives
contracts apply to settlements relating to the Collateral. The
Receivers have advised that an application will be made by
Lehman Brothers to the US Bankruptcy Court on 29 March 2011
for this purpose; and

(i) the passing of extraordinary resolutions for each and every
Relevant Minibonds. For this purpose, the Issuer will convene
a meeting for each series of the Relevant Minibonds which
can only be attended by persons (“noteholders”) who hold
a beneficial title in the Relevant Minibonds. If investors have
transferred the beneficial title in their Relevant Minibonds to the
Bank pursuant to either the Repurchase Scheme or some other
settlements with the Bank, the Bank will participate and vote in
such noteholder meetings. The Bank, based on the information
available to it on 28 March 2011, decided to accept the Receivers'
recommendation for the Relevant Minibonds owned by it
and will vote in favour of the extraordinary resolution at the
noteholder meetings so that this matter can be resolved in a way
which maximises the benefits to investors within a reasonable
timeframe.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

50 Non-adjusting Post Balance Sheet Events (cont’d)

51

In addition to the Collateral recovery amount, as a goodwill gesture
and not part of the Repurchase Scheme, the Bank and other
distributing banks have resolved to offer an ex-gratia payment
scheme to Eligible Customers (as defined in the Repurchase Scheme)
of Relevant Minibonds. The amount of ex-gratia payment is investor-
specific and will depend on the Collateral recovery amount as well
as the amount (if any) previously received from the Bank as part of
a settlement. Based on the rates of recovery of between 70% and
93% as advised by the Receivers, the total level of recovery to Eligible
Customers, after taking into account the offer of ex-gratia payments,
will be in the range of 85% to 96.5% of the principal amount of their
investments.

As part of this final resolution proposal, the Bank and the other
distributing banks will increase the funding available to the Trustee
to approximately HK$662 million from HK$291 million, by way of the
Expense Funding Agreement dated 30 October 2009, to pay for all
related fees and expenses which may be incurred in connection with
the recovery of the Collateral of the outstanding LB Minibonds and
the Trustee’s role in respect of the LB Minibonds.

No additional or release of provision has been made for the year
ended 31 December 2010 as the management of the Bank is of the
opinion that the outcome of above resolution proposal cannot be
reliably estimated as at the date of this report because it is subject
to (i) certain conditions as mentioned above; (ii) investor specific
circumstances; and (iii) the net amount which could be recovered
from the LB Minibonds on collateral recovery.

Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 30 March 2011.
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FEFIZmM I EER Unaudited Supplementary
Financial Information

(R BIPIBRINABEE R ERL) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(A) EXFZREE=R (A) Capital Adequacy Ratio
(i) EXFZRELEE (i) Capital adequacy ratio
rEE
The Group
—=F —ZTTNEF
2010 2009
M12A31HMEART B X Capital adequacy ratio at 31 December 19.03% 16.44%
R12A31 B E AN B = Core capital ratio at 31 December 11.23% 11.91%
RZE—ZEFRZEEANFTH=T— The capital adequacy ratio (“CAR") and core capital ratio, at 31
H BARFTELELERZOLDERLE 2R December 2010 and 31 December 2009, are computed on the
BFeERAEEETRENRERGRITE consolidated basis covering the Bank and certain of its subsidiaries
(§$)%EE'J>> BARTREETHEARN as required by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and are in
SHEEFE - NMTERAIBREREIFE accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. The Bank has adopted
EERR N TISERARRINESEE - m the “standardised approach” for the calculation of the risk-weighted
FERERB BB EXRERA] - amount for credit risk and market risk and the “basic indicator

approach” for the calculation of operational risk.

224 RERITERBRAF
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(A) BEXZZRLER(E) (A) Capital Adequacy Ratio (cont’d)

(i) HBRBIEBRERER

(ii) Capital base after deductions

rEE
The Group
—E-FF —ETNF
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BB Core capital
BT R Paid up ordinary share capital 7,283,341 7,283,341
S Svpiki] Share premium 282,930 282,930
] Reserves 3,991,655 3,082,578
B Profit and loss account 1,056,657 950,994
B EIER B R A E Less: Net deferred tax assets (98,376) (99,637)
HIBRBIE Al VA2 O E R A 58 Total core capital before deductions 12,516,207 11,500,206
B OB ARRIEE Less: Deductions from core capital (514,786) (720,880)
HBRRIEEZ O E R EE Total core capital after deductions 12,001,421 10,779,326
HEIER Supplementary capital
HR AR EEGRGERIETER Unrealised fair value gains arising from holdings
BBERUREAREBE of equities and debt securities designated
2 I MAB TS 38 75 h £ Y at fair value through profit or loss
REREBN(AHENELRR) (in supplementary capital) - 9,918
—RRIRITERBR A ET RS Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 732,504 587,892
LR A TR E R Collectively assessed impairment allowances 359,960 313,096
KAIBIEETE Perpetual subordinated debt 1,972,153 1,977,356
BHEEFERE Term subordinated debt 5,791,576 1,938,661
HBREIEAI BN E A K Total supplementary capital before deductions 8,856,193 4,826,923
HBRRIER W E KB Total eligible supplementary capital before
BEXRMEHE deductions 8,856,193 4,826,923
VB BN E AREIRIE B Less: Deductions from supplementary capital items (514,786) (720,880)
MBRBIEAR @B EAREE Total supplementary capital after deductions 8,341,407 4,106,043
HNBRRERAERER Total capital base after deductions 20,342,828 14,885,369
BOEARRFBEIERN Total deductions from the core capital and
HRIEE #%E supplementary capital 1,029,572 1,441,760
[ B b #E B 2R Risk-weighted amount
—EERR — Credit risk 99,703,001 84,297,234
— M5 E — Market risk 2,195,788 2,315,613
—ZiER R — Operational risk 5,000,600 3,935,475
106,899,389 90,548,322
—m_mrEgwg |25
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RECEZH T BER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(A EXFZELE(E) (A) Capital Adequacy Ratio (cont'd)
(i) MEE S L E (iii) Liquidity ratio
rEH
The Group
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
HE12A318 1EFE ¥ Average liquidity ratio for the year ended

MENE & L R~ 31 December* 44.71% 48.78%

v REENTHRDASLEASEANTY
FRASLE METHY - LRESED
BEEAOFART - RATRRETHEA
A GRS - DA EBCRITE IS
RIUMEEEH -

The average liquidity ratio for the year is the simple average of each
calendar month'’s average liquidity ratio, which is computed on the
consolidated basis covering the Bank and certain of its subsidiaries as
required by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes, and is in accordance
with the Fourth Schedule to the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

(iv) mEER (iv) Basis of consolidation

SREFRIZIBASN - REEHBHRERNAE
MEERB ARG = HER S RS -

AEBNEARELERRBESRLE
DIRBEREEMS NAESERER - 54
AR estmsElnEETEMsNER 05
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A FBAT
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— A~ BERECRITE CRA) RAD &
5 - SERBRIERTRIERITE(ER)
RANEBO K - RE—HARRBIET
BII747 2 BB 2 It HAAT 2 B AT R b
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MEAREHE
CKWH-UT2 Limited
EFEEFBERAT]

PERITERERA S
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Unless otherwise stated, all financial information contained in the
financial statements are prepared according to the consolidation basis
for accounting purpose.

In preparing the CAR and liquidity ratio of the Group, they are
prepared according to the basis of consolidation for regulatory
purposes. The main difference between the consolidation basis for
accounting and regulatory purposes is that the former includes the
Bank and all its subsidiaries whereas the latter includes the Bank and
only some of the Group's subsidiaries, which are discussed as follows:

The Bank calculates the CAR in accordance with Banking (Capital)
Rules effective on 1 January 2007. The HKMA has granted approval
under section 28(2)(a) of the Banking (Capital) Rules for the Bank to
calculate its CAR on a solo-consolidated basis instead of solo basis in
respect of the following subsidiaries of the Bank:

Name of subsidiaries
CKWH - UT2 Limited
Viewcon Hong Kong Limited
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(A) BEXZZRLER(E) (A) Capital Adequacy Ratio (cont’d)

(iv) e BB (&)

(iv) Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

S—HE - ATERBGRTE G E
BDE - BEA ERBIELTHEAT
WEHH R AR T RLLE o

o) NG
BBEAMBEBERAT
PIERERRSAR AR
RERTUSFE)BRAR

On the other hand, the Bank is required under section 98(2)(b) of the
Banking Ordinance to calculate its CAR on a consolidated basis in
respect of the following subsidiaries:

Name of subsidiaries

HKCB Finance Limited

CITIC Insurance Brokers Limited
The Ka Wah Bank (Trustee) Limited

KWB Management Limited KWB Management Limited
CKWH - UT2 Limited CKWH - UT2 Limited
EEEEBRAR Viewcon Hong Kong Limited

ERER AR AT

RERITEIR (R E) AR QA
CKWB - SN Limited

Ka Wah International Services Limited
RERBEARAT
REBRVBERAT

RBGRITR(BER)RADE =8 - K17
ZERER W NBIEATHEB AR -

MEAR AR
SERT(REB)BRAF
Security Nominees Limited

BABEARIT(REAN)BRAT]

Carford International Limited

CITIC Bank International (China) Limited

CKWB — SN Limited

Ka Wah International Services Limited

KWB Investment Limited

Ka Wah International Merchant Finance Limited

The following subsidiaries are deducted from the Bank's capital base
under Part 3 of the Banking (Capital) Rules:

Name of subsidiaries

The Ka Wah Bank (Nominees) Limited

Security Nominees Limited

The Hongkong Chinese Bank (Nominees) Limited

—E-TEER
Annual Report 2010

227



AEEZHAIIEER

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

B) E—F T MBEFERRBN (B) Further Analysis on Loans and Advances to Customers
BFEFKBREZEREFL  BHESER Loans and advances to customers analysed by the coverage of
TEEENEBEMEMIEL DN « K& HEITE collateral, overdue amount and the impairment allowance is as
EITHOSMENEERMEANSERTE follows. The economic sector analysis is based on the categories and
EY=P definitions used by the HKMA.

PN |
The Group
—2-Ef “EENEF
2010 2009
HEERN [epegewtilin
EFEFR BFEFR
EEERK B RFEHR BaE
HE BAE BIR% BOX
Gross loans % of gross loans Gross loans % of gross loans
and advances and advances and advances and advances
to customers to customers to customers to customers
BETT covered AT covered
HK$'000 by collateral HK$'000 by collateral
IEsR Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEER - Property development 313,400 100 303,000 100
—-WEKE - Property investment 11,585,272 98 9,226,709 98
—fEbE - Financial concerns 4,386,559 45 4,407 441 33
-RE&L - Stockbrokers 182,000 7 21428 100
-WELTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 9,189,862 34 3,775,792 48
—BUER - Manufacturing 9,490,999 39 5,212,804 29
—BHNERRE - Transport and transport equipment 2,940,451 71 2,878,221 76
—REED) - Recreational activities 261,747 80 190,354 92
— BB - Information technology 16,370 41 24,061 75
—Htt - Others 2,692,537 47 2472175 57
A Individuals
—-BEEEEHETE] . - Loansfor the purchase of flats
[FAABRELE under the Home Ownership
EBEFE IR EEE Scheme, Private Sector
HEFEMEFER Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 25,806 100 28,981 100
-BEEMEE - Loans for the purchase of
MENER other residential properties 10,912,294 100 10,673,018 100
—EBEFREX - Credit card advances 267,441 - 310,487 -
—Hft - Others 4,430,096 95 3,626,044 93
EERFERNETR Gross loans and advances for use
AFATE in Hong Kong 56,694,834 69 43,150,515 74
BHME Trade finance 7,360,087 25 4416212 28
EEBUIMERNMET R Gross loans and advances for use
BEE outside Hong Kong 24,763,314 36 25,683,857 36
RFEFRB AR Gross loans and advances to customers 88,818,235 56 73,250,584 58
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(B) Further Analysis on Loans and Advances to Customers
(cont’d)

The analysis of impaired loans and advances to customers of the
individual loan usage category, which accounted for 10% or more of
the gross loans and advances to customers, is as follows:

rEE
The Group
“§-%F
2010
FRERER
5%,/ (E5)
WHESSE
BHEF K] &8 HEEF Impairment
LEVEEN HERME REEE  EXRER charged to/
Overdue loans Individual Collective Impaired loans (written back)
and advances impairment impairment  and advances income statement
to customers allowances allowances  to customers  during the year
BRI BRI BRI BETR BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MERE Property investment - - 1,975 - (1,209)
BENTER Wholesale and retail trade 40,066 18,337 69,472 43,769 (13,498)
Blig% Manufacturing 97,632 59,219 94,796 130,950 119,726
BEAMIENE Loans for the purchase of
HEX other residential properties - 865 85 13,793 577
EBEBUIMERAER  Grossloans and advances for use
LBFEH outside Hong Kong 888,048 153,582 70,766 919,941 (6,279)
1,025,746 232,003 237,094 1,108,453 99,317
N3]
The Group
“ZTNE
2009
FRERGER
%,/ (B#)
MAEER
BAHEP (&)l e REZRP Impairment
ERRER RIEER REEE  ERRBHX charged to/
Overdue loans Individual Collective  Impaired loans (written back)
and advances impairment impairment  and advances  income statement
to customers allowances allowances  tocustomers  during the year
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NERE Property investment 12,995 3932 5278 49610 2,189
BEEMEIENE Loans for the purchase of
HEX other residential properties 30 - 209 936 (514)
EEBUIMEBMER  Gross loans and advances for use
RBFBE outside Hong Kong 361,281 174,579 65,432 966,318 186,436
374,306 178,511 70919 1,016,864 188,111
—E-TEER
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(B) Further Analysis on Loans and Advances to Customers

(cont'd)
RiE DT By geographical areas
A58
The Group
—g-%%
2010
EFEX BHEF HEEF 15l ®e
RB% ERRER  ERREX HEER BEER
Loansand Overdue loans Impaired loans Individual Collective
advances andadvances andadvances  impairment  impairment
to customers  to customers  to customers allowances allowances
BET T BET T BET T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
00 Hong Kong 59,947,840 307,795 349,791 133,449 229,106
B Mainland China 19,626,028 78,498 56,132 1,461 90,087
E351 USA 1,795,773 - - - 5,528
Hith Others 7,448,594 744,438 824,889 162,724 35,239
88,818,235 1,130,731 1,230,812 297,634 359,960
rEE
The Group
“ETNE
2009
EPEX BEER REEP &5 7a
kBF  BRRBX  ERREX REER REERE
Loansand  Overdue loans  Impaired loans Individual Collective
advances  andadvances  and advances impairment impairment
to customers  tocustomers  to customers allowances allowances
BT BT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e Hong Kong 51,070,380 261,836 383,367 130,818 217,646
B A Mainland China 12,860,500 52,244 54,070 1,492 52,646
e USA 1,740,451 - 38,195 24,053 8,437
Hih Others 7,579,253 256,587 828,505 154,774 34361
73,250,584 570,667 1,304,137 311,137 313,090

bl DM 2R 5 HF &) i &l
D UEERRRER BHEXZHFE
RARBERE— 5 R ERNERERAS

BEZERTOBEREAS ©

BEE R

Eo
A °

BWEE R RBREERERNEELRETH

EEHEB=EANE

BER BT @RI FHEER -

HERTEBRERAE

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of the
counterparties after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a
claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from the
counterparty, risk will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.

Overdue loans and advances are loans that have been overdue more
than three months.

Impaired loans and advances are individually assessed loans which
exhibit objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.



RIECEZH T BER Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(C) BHAEE (C) Overdue Assets
(i) BEFEFNBER (i) Overdue loans and advances to customers
b |
The Group
—E-ZF “TENF
2010 2009
HEFER HEFPEX
B R#SEE
BRE ERR
% of total loans % of total loans
BT T and advances BT and advances
HK$'000 to customers HKS$'000 to customers
ERRBREECHIE:  The gross amount of loans and advances
has been overdue for periods of:

=38 A EZ6(EA - 6 months or less but over 3 months 56,383 0.06 23,682 0.03
—6HAREE1E ~ 1 year or less but over 6 months 808,971 0.91 121,699 0.17
—1FUE —Over 1 year 265,377 0.30 425,286 058
1,130,731 1.27 570,667 0.78

BIRAAMETLBR Secured overdue loans and advances 207,008 186,700

sRFRRER BT Unsecured overdue loans and advances 923,723 383,967

1,130,731 570,667

BAEBEAAMERNER  Market value of collateral held against the

ZERETE secured overdue loans and advances 384,033 969,663
BRI EERE Individual impairment allowances made 241,294 121,110
ERBERAZERREBR  BEARE Loans and advances with a specific repayment date are classified as
FMEEBE  WRFHEBDREZ - 87 overdue when the principal or interest is overdue and remains unpaid
E@EIRIE - AIFEIHAC B - BB Flﬂﬁ at the year end, loans repayable on demand are classified as overdue
RNREEFBA - BEEXRANKRIZER either when a demand for repayment has been served on the
BR R/ REREBLEERAEBAN borrower but repayment has not been made in accordance with the
HOEMREE - ML B R 5 A 8 i 57 HR demand notice, and/or when the loans have remained continuously
R - N5 VEa HA R IR - outside the approved limit advised to the borrower for more than the

overdue period in question.

—E-mEEH |23
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(C) BHAEE (&) (C) Overdue Assets (cont'd)

(i) BHREFERRBI(E) (i) Overdue loans and advances to customers (cont’d)

HRBRERLBR - AITHENABRE
EEMRIEZEBRFMENR - SRER
/AR A NI EM

Z B ENTER A IR R E 3k Al & IR 3
HEENMEE

(b) FEEANRTSHERE -_FmGAR
R EERE

© AITEBAIELIBERNER T RER
TR EENER &

d) AITEB T B A E L B B TR HIRE -
RZE—ZFF+_A=+—BEK=ZFZTh

FT_A=1t—B A5EYEARESB
=EAMIRTT R E M & BB -

Eligible collateral, which held in respect of the overdue loans and
advances, is "Eligible Physical Collateral” which mainly comprises real
estate properties. The eligible collateral should generally satisfy the
following:

(@) The market value of the asset is readily determinable or can be
reasonably established and verified;

(b) The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
secondary market for disposal of the asset;

(c) The Bank's right to repossess the asset is legally enforceable and
without impediment; and

(d) The Bank s able to secure control over the asset if necessary.
There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions

which were overdue for over 3 months at 31 December 2010 and
2009.

(i) Htt@pEE (i) Other overdue assets
rEH
The Group
—E-ZF —ERNF
2010 2009
BET T BT T
HKS$’'000 HKS'000
At EFAEDBEE - Available-for-sale securities which have been overdue for:
— 1 E — Over 1 year 13,421 14,519
FERITEBEERQ A

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(D) REHER (D) Rescheduled Loans
X5E
The Group
—2-Ef “EENE
2010 2009
EEFER HEPER
RBRMAE RBHAHE
A% BAX
% of total loans % of total loans
BT  andadvances BT and advances
HK$'000 to customers HK$'000 to customers
RERET Rescheduled loans 283,179 0.32 136,982 0.19
KEHEFREEERAR RV RE & Rescheduled loans are those advances which have been restructured
BENMEERMEE T RBEXNEHERK or renegotiated because of a deterioration in the financial position
FTEIM B - BB ETHERIGHE AR of the borrower, or the inability of the borrower to meet the original
SEMEWIF—MEAEBKR TFREAE repayment schedule and for which the revised repayment terms are
RE MR HEZEHRE®E = E A W2 RH T non-commercial to the Group. Rescheduled loans to customers are
(OEFRAVE HAZAZK - stated net of any advances that have subsequently become overdue

for over 3 months and reported as overdue advances in note (C).

RZZE—ZEF+A=+—BEKZZZTh There were no advances to banks and other financial institutions
FHZA=+—H AEETEDSEALHD which were rescheduled at 31 December 2010 and 31 December
HRIT R E A& BB R - 2009.
(E) MEEE (E) Repossessed Assets
rEE
The Group
—E-FF —ZTThF
2010 2009
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
B ARFEREBHRK Included in loans and advances to customers
HAARIEH and other accounts 4,000 48,498
hemEaN—E—SFE+-_A=+—0K The amount represents the estimated market value of the repossessed
—EEAFE+ A=+ BHKEEEY assets at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009.
fhETTME -

—E-mEER |23
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(F) BB ERE

BREESLEERBRERREIZETF
T E  REERBERANETNRS
HFRARE - HEXSH FRNTRER
B — T E M IER O EHEE R A EHER TS
HBIZRERIES o RITHEMSRBE DT
HEREE R RIS E AR RN RE
o EBBERREABREEAD Z T

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(F) Cross-Border Claims

Cross-border claims are on statement of financial position exposures
of counterparties based on the location of the counterparties after
taking into account the transfer of risk. For a claim guaranteed by a
party situated in a country different from the counterparty, risk will be
transferred to the country of the guarantor. For a claim on the branch
of a bank or other financial institution, the risk will be transferred to
the country where its head office is situated. Claims on individual

A E R BRI SR skt R R T

countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the
aggregate cross-border claims are shown as follows:

i |
The Group
—E-ZF
2010
BITREM
Banks and DNEEE
other financial Public sector Hity k)
institutions entities Others Total
BETT BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB ERE Asia and Pacific excluding Hong Kong 16,406,753 236,008 21,761,227 38,403,988
HeAgi of which Australia 2,970,715 1,950 733,512 3,706,177
HeamhBE R of which Mainland China 8,362,781 66,054 18,290,877 26,719,712
7R Western Europe 10,087,353 2,401 2,141,922 12,231,676
HAE of which France 1,285,045 - 6,614 1,291,659
HE# of which Netherlands 951,367 - 719,951 1,671,318
HmmF of which Spain 1,112,956 - 215,048 1,328,004
Hlg+ of which Switzerland 1,161,563 - 158,524 1,320,087
HA % of which United Kingdom 2,580,236 971 567,109 3,148,316
A5E
The Group
“ETNF
2009
|ITREAM
SREIEE
Banks and N
other financial Public sector Eih k]
institutions entities Others Total
BB BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BRMINERR Asia and Pacific excluding Hong Kong 12,258,959 161,789 14,642,430 27,063,178
Hem of which Australia 3,641,571 2392 429,004 4,072,967
Heh B A of which Mainland China 3,445,286 70,670 11,560,682 15,076,638
izl Western Europe 16,876,515 217357 3,589,064 20,682,936
HeZH of which France 2,008,770 - 737,922 2,746,692
HfzE of which Germany 1,178,037 - 24,060 1.202,097
HHEH of which Netherlands 2,341,431 - 683,923 3,025,354
HA 5 of which United Kingdom 5,912,778 738 1,484,513 7,398,029
RSRITEIR AR A

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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(G) Bl I IR 1T 3 F mL BRI

RE A IFRITH T ARAE AT
Wi B IFIRITH F R 5 P E £ 2 BB &
o LATNIE B RATTIRBCIRTT R G H1)E
BRI TEE RN EAMIFRITHEF
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(G) Non-bank Mainland China Exposures

Non-bank Mainland China exposures are Mainland China exposures

to non-bank counterparties. The categories follow the non-bank
Mainland China exposures submitted by the Bank to the HKMA
pursuant to section 63 of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

r5E
The Group
—E-EE
2010
BERRRA  BERRRSD
R BRI 9L PR AR
On-statement  Off-statement R HEEE
of financial of financial Individual
position position ok impairment
exposure exposure Total allowances
BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B A R Mainland China entities 16,096,399 7,878,958 23,975,357 11,048
EEERARTERN Companies and individuals outside
FERBE AN AT REA Mainland China where the creditis
granted for use in Mainland China 26,151,097 14,784,059 40,935,156 35,600
42,247,496 22,663,017 64,910,513 46,648
yi-SE]
The Group
—ETNF
2009
BBEMRAERA  BBRRRN
(R B A H B 2
On-statement Off-statement BERREERE
of financial of financial Individual
position position k] impairment
exposure exposure Total allowances
BT BB BT BT
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
RE A Mainland China entities 15,236,777 5,392,627 20,629,404 11,406
EEERANTEANM Companies and individuals outside
FERE A AT REA Mainland China where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland China 14,702,545 9,587,187 24,289,732 37,949
29,939,322 14979814 44919,136 49,355
—E-TFFR
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management

(i) Capital requirement

The capital requirements of the Group on each class of exposures

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

BRI ENT B ERAENE RS calculated under the standardised (credit risk) approach at the end of
EAHT : each reporting period can be analysed as follows:
—ZF —EENF
2010 2009
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
R psEEER Classes of exposure:
B Sovereign 11,059 7,244
NERE Public sector entity 2,464 8535
RIT Bank 966,143 999,702
FeE VNG Securities firm 200 2,751
1% Corporate 4,553,878 3,719,698
ERRICETE Collective investment scheme 333 289
RWeIEE Cash items 49,496 9,766
BEETE Regulatory retail 403,133 375,316
FEZBERK Residential mortgage loans 504,220 502,483
E i 3EmEa e Other exposures which are not past due 368,815 425,960
B Past due 131,709 57,751
HM‘“HX/R%EW}—L 8 E Y Total capital requirements for on-statement of
KB AIRTE financial position exposures 6,991,450 6,109,495
BEEEERER Direct credit substitutes 239,205 112,347
WM S EErAIEE Transaction-related contingencies 13,732 21,654
HE S AR EEE Trade-related contingencies 47,577 28,318
H fth Other commitments 380,466 179,030
EXNEEEH Exchange rate and gold contracts 184,247 52,018
FMEELD Interest rate contracts 50,222 50,714
a4 Equity contracts 1,763 438
B TS AR R AN B A IE Y Total capital requirements for off-statement of
BELRIRE financial position exposures 917,212 444,513
FERBAERETE Total capital requirements for credit risk 7,908,662 6,554,008
HRERITERERA A
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management
(cont’d)

(ii) Capital charge
The capital charge for operational risk of the Group calculated in
accordance with the basic indicator approach at the end of the
reporting period is:

—E-ZF —ETNF

2010 2009

BT BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

EGRERBAERELK Capital charge for operational risk 400,048 314,838

(iii) EE R RAIE
N B {2 I MR R A R &S0
BEETREETG T SEERRBA
¥ o MALBRITIRPHOEETRLER
TARDERRFEEBTE(EAR)BRAED
ERFTat—EK -

&

(iii) Credit risk exposure
Credit ratings such as from Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and
Moody's Investors Service are used for all classes of credit exposures
mentioned below. The Group follows the process prescribed in Part
4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules to map the ratings to the exposures
booked in the Group’s banking book.

—E-TEER
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management

(cont’d)

(i) Credit risk exposure (cont’d)

An analysis of the credit risk of the Group by class of exposures at the

EFEERBWT : end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E-ZF
2010
BREREH
REENE
IEGHRE
ZBBRE
Total exposure
BREARE  covered by
SRANEEERRRHL BEZ  recognised
HERE eyl BERE  quarantees or
Exposures after recognised BRNESE MAEHE Totalexposure  recognised
credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total  covered by credit
AR B RETR B4R RETR risk-weighted  recognised  derivative
Total Exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
BRI BETR E¥TR BRI BETR E¥TR BRI BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A BBIRARA A On-statement of financial position
1. BB 1. Sovereign 14,697,631 15,750,376 - 138,239 - 138,239 - 1,052,746
) RERE 2. Public sector entity 176,558 153,977 - 30,795 - 30,795 - 104,891
3. BT 3. Bank 36,412,025 28,804,491 8,902,364 12,066,732 10,057 12,076,789 - 1,294,830
4 EHLA 4. Securites firm 5,001 - 5,001 - 2,501 2,501 5,001 -
5. ©o# 5. Corporate 63,761,008 4,925,492 52,887,214 4,036,267 52,887,214 56,923,481 1,710,967
6. ERREHE 6. Collective investment scheme 4,162 - 4,162 - 4,162 4,162 - -
7. Bg 7. Cashitems 188,297 - 4,301,018 - 618,696 618,696 3,814,342 -
8 EETE 8. Regulatory retal 7,174,609 - 6718879 - 5039160 5039160 1,840 -
9. FERBEN 9. Residential mortgage loans 17,102,224 - 17076472 - 6,302,756 6,302,756 - -
10 ok fER 10. Other exposures which are not past
due exposures 4,618,125 2,789,916 1,820,278 2,789,916 1,820,278 4,610,194 - -
1. REER 11. Past due exposures 1,156,916 167 1,156,749 - 1,646,359 1,646,359 160,699 3,176
B. BIEHREIN B. Off-statement of financial position
1. BIMIEIARSR 1. Off-statement of financial position
EETETARH exposures other than OTC
POMEBIRRR N derivative transactions or credit
el derivative contracts 43,312,834 883,545 42,429,289 404,216 8,108,033 8,512,249 825,082 89,554
2 BIMTETARS 2. OTC derivative transactions 210,646,013 136,056,141 74,589,872 750954 2,201,952 2,952,906 471,289 -
NBRFBRETEREBRAE  Exposures deducted from capital base 1,020,350

HERTEBRERAE

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management

(cont’d)

(i) Credit risk exposure (cont’d)

—ETNF
2009
DERAY
SEENE
TARWRE
LERRE
Total exposure
TERR coveredby
AR EEERRTHE BEZ  recognised
HERE 2Rk BEBE  quarantees or
Exposures after recognised BB IIESE MMEHE  Totalexposure  recognised
credit risk mitigation Risk-weighted amounts Total covered by credit
AiEng R RETR B BBTR  riskweighted  recognised derivative
Total Exposures Rated Unrated Rated Unrated amounts collateral contracts
BETT BETT BT BETT BETT BETTL BETT BETTL
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
A BIBHARA A On-statement of financial position
1. BREE 1. Sovereign 5415041 6,210,446 - 90,544 - 90,544 - 795,405
2 REEE 2. Public sector entity 552813 533432 - 106,686 - 106,686 - 127900
3. BT 3. Bank 31,975,950 27,955,543 4881146 10,417,758 2,078,530 12,496,288 - 860,739
4 FHDA 4, Securities firm 5429 - 68,770 - 34,385 34,385 5429 63,340
5 % 5. Corporate 49,839,885 4756,969 42,641,091 3,843,346 42,652,892 46,496,238 1,108,864 242253
6, EELAHE 6. Collective investment scheme 3607 - 3607 - 3607 3607 - -
1. Be 7. Cashitems 162,647 - 1,259,926 - 122072 122072 937,033 -
8 BETE 8. Regulatory retai 6,578,069 - 6,255,261 - 4691446 4691446 4503 -
9 FEREER 9. Residential mortgage loans 16,764,105 - 16,735,152 - 6,281,039 6,281,039 - -
10 Aok HEkR 10. Other exposures which are not past
due exposures 5328298 2,789916 2534585 2789916 2,534,585 5324501 23,040 -
1. BHER 11. Past due exposures 539,630 167 539,463 - 721883 721,883 115,519 167
B BHHRESN B. Off-statement of financial position
1. BIMIETEARHR 1. Off-statement of financial position
EEEIEAD exposures other than OTC
PAMOBIRAR R RSN derivative transactions or credit
il derivative contracts 31,058,327 393,062 30,665,265 189,721 4,077,061 4,266,782 1,060,014 78374
2 BMIETARS 2. OTC derivative transactions 152188117 99861542 52326575 42,739 846,887 1289626 2748710 -
MBFERENEREABARE  Exposures deducted from capital base 1432605
TE-ZFFR
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management

(cont’d)

(iv) Counterparty credit risk exposures

The following tables summarise the Group's main credit exposures

arising from over-the-counter ("OTC") derivative transactions:

(1) Below is an analysis of the counterparty credit risk exposures.

—E-ZF —TTNF
2010 2009
BIMTE HIMTHE
TAXRS TERS
OTC derivative OTC derivative
transactions transactions
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
JECBEEERS - Non-repo style transactions:
BmEAREBEESE Gross total positive fair value 1,707,719 1,220,044
FEZRESRE Credit equivalent amount 4,703,352 2,517,766
EERFANERA®D Recognised collateral held:
— EFEBH LA — Other than debt securities 24,437 15,236
R OHERAEMBEBERZN{EE  Credit equivalent amounts or net credit exposures
2SS IR EER G AE net of recognised collateral 4,703,352 2,517,766
BB N g s Risk weighted amounts 2,952,906 1,289,626
FIERTERERAR

CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management

(cont’d)

(iv) Counterparty credit risk exposures (cont’d)

(2) Below is an analysis of the major classes of exposures by

RIS - counterparty type.
—E-FF —ETNEF
2010 2009
S IMITE BIMTE
TAXRS TARS

OTC derivative
transactions

OTC derivative
transactions

BET T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
HETR Notional amounts:
—iR7T — Banks 129,399,753 114,014,212
— 1% - Corporates 80,807,626 35,425,195
—HAth - Others 438,634 2,748,710
210,646,013 152,188,117
EECZHEEEHE Credit equivalent amounts:
—3R1T — Banks 2,213,127 1,693,552
—1E - Corporates 2,483,790 813,857
—HAth - Others 6,435 10,357
4,703,352 2,517,766
[E\Bg Nt 20 EE - Risk-weighted amounts:
—R7T — Banks 613,744 485,065
— 1% - Corporates 2,339,162 804,561
2,952,906 1,289,626
—B-BEER
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(v) BIEEEREBEZHE
AEBBRBNGEAR BEFRAXRS
B F R A GORMITR AT R SH SR F A
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(vi) T35 RS
N EF BZREA EEAETIBER -

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management

(v)

(cont’d)

Credit risk mitigation

The Group mitigates credit risk by means of taking collateral and
entering into offsetting or netting agreements with borrowers
and counterparties, as the case may be, should such clauses and
agreements be legally established and enforceable.

Common types of tangible collateral acceptable to the Group include
land, real estates, equipment & machinery, equity shares, bonds and
other marketable securities. In determining the loan advancing level,
respective haircuts will be applied on the current market value of
the collateral. The Group also accepts intangible collateral such as
government guarantees, bank guarantees, corporate guarantees and
personal guarantees.

(vi) Market risk

The Group uses the standardised approach for calculation of market

risk.
—E-ZF —EENF
2010 2009
BAERER BREK
Capital charge Capital charge
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
=& & E (B FE EARE) Interest rate exposures (including options) 120,036 98,160
% e R P HE (R FE HARE ) Equity exposures (including options) 484 410
SNE R R AE (BEE S MEIRE)  Foreign exchange exposures (including gold and options) 55,143 86,679
175,663 185,249

PERITERERA S
CITIC BANK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(H) Additional Disclosures on Credit Risk Management
(cont’d)

(vii) Asset securitisation
The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to calculate
the credit risk for securitisation exposures. It is an investing institution
for all classes of exposures below.

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and Moody's Investors Service are
the external credit assessment institutions that the Bank has used in
relation to the securitisation exposures of the “Others”.

—g-%%
2010
B R E
Exposures deducted from its
AMEE EBRNERE BAEXR HHER
EHCER Outstanding  Risk-weighted Capital BUOEZX  Supplementary
Securitisation exposures amounts amount  requirements Core Capital Capital
ki e BETR BETR BETR BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PHER Instalment loans - - - 33 33
Hib Others 2,404,207 1,253,190 100,255 510,175 510,175
2,404,207 1,253,190 100,255 510,208 510,208
—ETHhEF
2009
R AR
Exposures deducted from its
ANeE  ERNERE BEREX HBER
L ES Outstanding  Risk-weighted Capital %UOEZR  Supplementary
Securitisation exposures amounts amount requirements Core Capital Capital
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DHER Instalment loans - - - 190 190
Hit Others 3,538,118 2,393,071 191,446 716,113 716,113
3,538,118 2,393,071 191,446 716,303 716,303

—E-THEEH |23
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

() Corporate governance

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and has complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with
the module on “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated
Authorised Institutions” issued by the HKMA. The Board of Directors
of the Bank has established a number of committees including the
Audit Committee, Executive Personnel Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Credit & Risk Management Committee. The
compositions and functions are explained in detail in the “Corporate

goverance and other information”.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance

and has complied, in all material respects, throughout the year with the

module on “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorised
Institutions” issued by the HKMA.

Board Committees

The Board of Directors of the Bank has established the following

committees:

0]

(ii)

Audit Committee

The committee, being an independent body, assists the Board of
Directors in monitoring compliance with the policies, procedures,
and internal and statutory regulations. It also assists the Board of
Directors in providing independent review of the effectiveness of the
Bank's financial reporting process and internal control systems. The
committee comprises five Non-executive Directors of the Bank and
three of them are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Personnel Committee

The committee provides oversight of the appointment or termination
of, and the succession plan of the senior executives. It also assists
the Board of Directors in selecting and recommending candidates
for vacancy on the Board of Directors. The committee comprises
seven Directors of the Bank, including an Independent Non-executive
Director.

(iii) Remuneration Committee

The committee was newly established on 11 August 2010 and was
responsible for reviewing and approving the remuneration-related
policies, variable compensation schemes, remuneration packages
of senior management, proposed bonus pool and compensation
arrangement in relation to dismissal or removal of Directors. The
committee comprises three Directors of the Bank, including two
Independent Non-executive Directors.

—E-TEER
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

(iv) Credit & Risk Management Committee

The committee oversees the Bank's risk management strategy, policies
and mechanism. The risks concerned primarily include credit, market,
interest rate, liquidity, operational, reputation, legal and strategic risks.
The committee carries out its oversight function on the Bank’s risk
management through various committees at the Bank’s management
level, including: Credit Committee, Non-performing Loans Committee,
Asset and Liability Committee ("“ALCO”") and Operations Committee.
The committee comprises six Directors of the Bank, including an
Independent Non-executive Director.

The ALCO is responsible for the implementation and maintenance
of the overall risk management framework relating to statement
of financial position structure, market risks, funding and liquidity
management across the Group's banking business. It approves policy
and guidelines. The committee comprises the Chief Executive Officer,
the Chief Financial Officer, the Treasurer, the Director of Risks and the
respective Heads of Wholesale Banking Group, Retail Banking Group
and Market Risk. It meets every alternate week and more often when
conditions require.

Remuneration Matters

The Bank seeks to reward staff for their contribution to the success and
sustainable growth of the Bank. To this end, the Bank has constructed a
reward system with consistent and explainable structure. This also enables
the Bank to attract and retain appropriate people in the highly competitive
manpower market.

(i) Structure of reward system
The reward system is designed based on the Total Compensation
Framework (“TCF"). Total Compensation comprises a fixed component
(Guaranteed Cash), a variable component and benefits.

The variable component includes short-term reward (in the form
of performance bonus scheme and sales incentive) rewarding
performance in the preceding year, medium-term reward (“MTR") for
retention, and long-term incentive (“LTI") that motivates executives
towards increasing shareholders’ wealth.
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

(ii)

Methodologies and approaches
Methodologies and approaches applied to remuneration arrangement
include but not limited to the followings:

Total compensation framework to ensure optimal level of
remuneration and to deliver balanced solution.

Market benchmarking to take into account market relativities,
having regard to the need to attract, motivate and retain talents.

Job evaluation to determine relative size of different position in
different grade and therefore corresponding level of reward.

Performance management system linked with reward system
to support performance-oriented culture.

Talent identification and classification method taking into
account performance and potential for differentiation when
granting variable rewards.

Promotion committee approves recommendations on
promotion of staff to senior level.

Remuneration committee to assist the Board in the design and
operation of the remuneration system.

Engagement of external consulting firm in verification of
incentive scheme to ensure effectiveness (to be commissioned
by the Chairman of the Board), when necessary.

(iii) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel

Aggregate quantitative information on remuneration for the senior
management and key personnel is set out below.

(@) Amounts of remuneration for the financial year 2010, split into

S R BN R T ABUEITED fixed and variable remuneration, and number of beneficiaries:
(&1 7E % A FEVE
Fixed Remuneration Variable Remuneration
BT IT BT ZEHAH
HK$'000 HKS'000 Number of beneficiaries
23,749 33,513 9

—E-TEER
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PEES R EAMER Corporate Governance and Other Information
(i) SREEABRBEEE THVEE) (iii) Remuneration of Senior Management and Key Personnel
(cont’d)

) —ZE-TEHFRFRZBHMNSE RN (b) Amounts and form of variable remuneration for the financial year
B LB &) - EREESREA 2010, split into cash, shares and share linked instruments and
TR ETE S other instruments:

LUEER &R LR EH B A = 3

R B E A 9 % B 5 BN

(FHEBFEH) (RIMEHNEERSER)

UREEA BN Variable Variable remuneration
Y% B A remuneration in form of LTI S BN
Variable remuneration in deferred cash (Target cash value Total variable
in cash (MTR) at maturity) remuneration
BB TT BT T BB T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(A) (B) © (A)+B)+O)
17,882 7,965 7,666 33,513

O ZE—ZFFEENOFMEE/BE (©)  Amounts of deferred remuneration for the financial year 2010 was
15,631,0007C(B+C) o Lilt {EFT K B A — HK$15,631,000 (B+C). The aforesaid are the MTR and the LTl to be
T —ZFFE AP B EN BRI B % T 80 granted for the year of 2010. According to the terms of the MTR
REV BV BN o B4R H B = BN ) B scheme, the deferred cash will be payable in 2012. As for the LTI,
B BEREER-E——FEX - payment will be determined by the long-term goals set over the
0 5= H B 5 BN A S A S BUR R a8 S /9 performance period of 3 years. The variable remuneration in form
ﬁ,ﬁﬂ BRE=FHRANRERR - £ 1 of LTI reported in (C) above is the target cash value at maturity.

QF PR EI LA R B A B Zr BN R T 2B )%
@J R = 2 HARS B IR IR (B E -

d) BRIEY R ERE BN BN AN = BB B BN Y — (d) The MTR and LTI were unvested in the financial year 2010.

ffiﬁiﬁﬁﬂliﬁﬁﬁixﬂﬁﬁ o EIt - R Accordingly, there was no deferred remuneration awarded
—SEFEWEITEE DB H for the financial year 2010 being paid out or reduced through

ﬂl%%fﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁaﬂﬁk ° performance adjustment.

HEMNAERE  —EELFELEND From a payment perspective, deferred bonus with regard to 2007,

R LRSS - TR T A %1,605,000 being paid out in 2010 amounted to HK$5,730,000, after having

T RZE—EFEERINOEEAS discounted HK$ 1,605,000 through performance adjustment.

#5,730,0007T °

@ RIZE—ZFHBFEERTahER (e) A deferred joining bonus amounted to HK$800,000 payable in
A B BIREAT N ER 5245 1Y B ER /575 1800,000 2011 was granted to a Senior Management during the financial
T WHRZE——FEXN - year of 2010.

WZE-—ZTFEFE  TEREAEREEA No Senior Management or Key Personnel has been awarded
BNARETERRESR severance payment during the financial year of 2010
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